


SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN  
OILFIELD EQUIPMENT AG

TERNITZ, AUSTRIA

01

01
02

16 17

18

19

15

14

03

10

11

04

05
06 07

08
09



12

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN OILFIELD 
TECHNOLOGY GMBH 
Ternitz, Austria

KNUST-GODWIN LLC 
Houston, USA

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN SALES CO. L.L.C. 
Houston, USA

THE WELLBOSS COMPANY, LLC 
Houston, USA

BICO DRILLING TOOLS INC. 
Houston, USA

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN ENERGY  
SERVICES L.L.C. 
Broussard, USA

BICO FASTER DRILLING TOOLS INC. 
Nisku, Canada

THE WELLBOSS COMPANY, INC. 
Calgary, Canada

DSI PBL DE MEXICO, S.A. DE C.V. 
Villahermosa, Mexico 

SCHOELLER BLECKMANN DO BRASIL LTDA. 
Macae, Brazil

KNUST-SBD PTE LTD. 
Singapore

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN OILFIELD 
EQUIPMENT VIETNAM CO., LTD. 
Binh Duong, Vietnam

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN DARRON 
(ABERDEEN) LTD. 
Aberdeen, UK

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN DARRON LTD. 
Noyabrsk, Russia

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN OILFIELD 
EQUIPMENT MIDDLE EAST FZE 
Dubai, UAE 

DSI FZE 
Dubai, UAE

BICO DRILLING TOOLS FZE 
Dubai, UAE

SCHOELLER BLECKMANN SAUDI LLC 
Al-Khobar, Saudi-Arabia

03

02

09

18

05

12

07

14

04

11

19

06

13
V I E T N A M

08

16

15

17

10
13



"��In 2020, the world experienced the largest economic crisis 
since World War II. The targeted measures we launched 
helped us cushion the adverse effects as much as possible. We 
are convinced that we are well set for 2021."
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
IN MEUR 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Sales 291.2 445.3 420.2 324.2 183.0

Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation 
and Amortization (EBITDA) 27.1 108.6 120.0 74.7 -2.5

EBITDA margin (%) 9.3 24.4 28.6 23.0 -1.4

Profit from operations (EBIT) -28.0 60.2 46.9 25.6 -58.3

EBIT margin (%) -9.6 13.5 11.2 7.9 -31.9

Profit before tax -31.2 47.9 32.0 -69.8 -45.1

Profit after tax -21.7 32.3 17.5 -54.4 -28.0

Earnings per share1 (in EUR) -1.38 2.03 1.10 -3.41 -1.75

Free Cashflow 80.1 63.8 -0.3 16.6 -69.1

Liquid funds 314.0 265.2 241.5 166.0 193.5

Net liquidity + / Net debt - 9.5 -20.1 -62.5 -50.7 -51.0

Equity 287.0 370.1 344.8 322.0 425.7

Total assets 777.9 874.6 878.0 750.2 802.1

Dividend per share (in EUR) 0.002 1.20 1.00 0.50 0.00

Shares issued3 16,000,000 16,000,000 16,000,000 16,000,000 16,000,000

thereof own shares 276,535 44,597 50,597 46,597 52,597

1 Based on average shares outstanding 
2 Dividend proposed 
3 Shares issued as of 31 December at par value EUR 1.00 per share

 
 
ENERGY CONSUMPTION OF THE SBO GROUP

UNIT 2020 2019

Energy consumption GJ 9,836.1 12,825.0

CO2 emissions Tonnes 10,160.2 13,288.3
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	﻿  TO OUR STAKEHOLDERS	 �   

TO OUR 
STAKEHOLDERS

Klaus Mader 

Member of the Executive Board and CFO

Gerald Grohmann 

Chairman of the Executive Board and CEO
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PREFACE OF THE 
EXECUTIVE BOARD

Dear shareholders and  
business partners,

In 2020, the world was faced with the largest economic 

crisis since World War II. The repercussions of the 

COVID-19 pandemic left their mark on our business 

year: The energy sector was hit hard, business activity 

and transport were curbed dramatically as a result of 

lockdowns imposed in many countries. The fact that 

we are experienced in managing the cyclicality of our 

industry was a definite advantage for us in this situation.

In response to the crisis, we launched targeted 

measures promptly and adjusted capacities, cut back 

on CAPEX and implemented cost-cutting programs 

as per the local requirements. While we had to 

intervene more massively in North America due to 

market circumstances and reduced the headcount 

by more than 40 %, capacity utilization at some sites 

was strong enough in the first half of 2020 to maintain 

our production output. Additionally, we benefited from 

restructuring activities conducted in the past, such as 

most recently the closure of the unprofitable branches 

in the United Kingdom and Mexico.

While the programs we launched helped us mitigate 

adverse effects as much as possible, we ultimately 

could not escape the impact of the crisis. Exchange 

losses and non-cash impairments in North America 

in addition to restructuring activities turned the profit 

before tax negative at MEUR 31. In contrast and 

despite the extremely difficult environment, we achieved 

a break-even operating result. This is an extraordinary 

achievement made possible by our strong team who 

we are proud of and who we would like to thank 

explicitly for their outstanding commitment at this point.

PREFACE OF THE 
EXECUTIVE BOARD
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Our sound balance sheet makes us strong enough 

to navigate through challenging times: In 2020, we 

generated a strong cashflow, had a high liquidity 

position of MEUR 314 and recorded net liquidity of 

MEUR 9 at year-end. This means that we have the 

resources required to be ready for any form of recovery.

All in all, we look back on a year of many challenges 

which we managed well considering the circumstances 

thanks to the efforts of our crisis-tested management 

team. Despite and even more so in view of the 

current situation, we are holding on to our strategy of 

sustainable growth. In line with our corporate policy we 

did not cut back on research and development in the 

past months, but are pushing ahead with projects for 

the innovations of tomorrow.

This includes Direct Metal Laser Sintering (DMLS), an 

innovative 3D metal printing technology, with which 

we have gained a leading position in the industry over 

the last years. Meanwhile, we operate a large DMLS 

center and have set ourselves the goal of increasingly 

offering our manufacturing expertise to various industrial 

sectors outside oil and gas. Highlights have been, for 

instance, orders for space programs, but also the 

semiconductor industry is part of our customer base. 

Although volumes are still low in this area, we are pro-

actively exploring new horizons. The purpose of a new 

initiative is to gradually identify potential new business 

areas for our high-precision manufacturing and to 

broaden our portfolio.

"�Despite and even more so in view of the current situation, we 
are holding on to our strategy of sustainable growth."
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Likewise, we are pursuing our ESG efforts to further 

strengthen our exemplary positioning in the industry. 

We are consistently working on various environmental 

aspects, such as to avoid and recycle waste, and 

reduce water and energy consumption. In terms 

of employee safety, the main focus in 2020 was on 

COVID-19 prevention which we handled with great care 

by implementing a very large number of precautionary 

measures. For in-depth information please refer to our 

integrated non-financial statement.

We are convinced that we are well set for the year 2021: 

Our balance sheet is strong, our measures are taking 

effect, our innovation projects are ongoing. While 

uncertainties in the markets remain high, a noticeable 

recovery is expected for the second half of the year. In 

any case, we are ready to ensure that our high-quality 

products will continue to contribute to an efficient global 

energy supply.

We would like to thank our employees for their 

continued commitment and strong dedication on this 

path, as well as our shareholders, business partners 

and stakeholders for their support and trust. We look 

forward to continuing our good cooperation in the 

current financial year 2021.

The Executive Board, March 2021

	 Gerald Grohmann	 Klaus Mader 
	 Chairman of the Executive Board	 Member of the Executive Board 

	 and CEO	 and CFO



"�We are committed to transparent and active communication 
with the capital market."
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INVESTOR 
RELATIONS
The share of SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN OILFIELD 

EQUIPMENT Aktiengesellschaft is trading on the 

prime market of the Vienna Stock Exchange under 

ISIN AT0000946652 and ticker symbol "SBO". On 

2 January 2020, the share started the trading year at a 

price of EUR 50.30. Due to the outbreak of the corona 

virus pandemic and the ensuing global economic 

crisis, the SBO share was unable to escape the 

downward trend and closed at a price of EUR 31.10 on 

30 December 2020. It arrived at its low of EUR 15.74 

on 17 March 2020. The market capitalization was 

EUR 498 million at year-end. In total, the share price 

of SBO in 2020 fell by 38.2 %. The Oil Service Sector 

Index (OSX) recorded a decline of 43.4 % in the 

same period. The Vienna leading index ATX dropped 

from 3,186.94 points at the beginning of the year to 

2,780.44 points on 30 December 2020, down 12.8 %.

In March 2020, SBO launched a share buyback pro

gram, under which 231,938 shares were repurchased 

at MEUR 6.5. The share buyback program was based 

on the authorization granted by the Annual General 

Meeting of 24 April 2018 and aimed at potential future 

employee participation plans or as an option to use 

treasury shares in the event of acquisitions. Despite its 

temporary termination, the program can be resumed at 

a later date.

KEY SHARE FIGURES
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Shares issued 16,000,000 16,000,000 16,000,000 16,000,000 16,000,000

thereof own shares 276,535 44,597 50,597 46,597 52,597

High / low (in EUR) 53.50 / 15.74 89.90 / 46.40 111.60 / 53.00 86.83 / 52.59 79.00 / 40.33

Last close at year end (in EUR) 31.10 50.30 57.35 85.00 76.53

Market capitalisation at year-end  
(in EUR)  497,600,000 804,800,000 917,600,000 1,360,000,000 1,224,480,000

Average daily trading volume  
(shares)1 68,052 39,763 28,861 29,707 30,875

Dividend per share (in EUR) 0.002 1.20 1.00 0.50 0.00

1 Single counting, rounded  
2 Dividend proposed

INVESTOR RELATIONS___
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SHARE PERFORMANCE

"�The SBO share has performed well in comparison to  
the industry peers."

 SCHLUMBERGER	  BAKER HUGHES	  HALLIBURTON	  WEATHERFORD	  HUNTING	  NATIONAL OILWELL VARCO 

 FORUM ENERGY	  DRIL-QUIP	  VALLOUREC	  WTI	  BRENT	  SBO 
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

The shareholder structure showed internationality 

also in 2020. As at the end of the financial year, the 

shareholder structure, from what is known, was as 

follows: Core shareholder Berndorf Industrieholding AG 

held 33.4 % of the shares as at 31 December 2020, 

leaving a free float of 66.6 %, of which 44 % were 

held by investors from the United States, 13 % each 

by investors from the United Kingdom and Germany, 

12 % by investors from Austria, 7 % by investors from 

France and 6 % by investors from Norway. Further 

shareholders of SBO included investment funds, 

among them from Australia, Belgium, Denmark, 

Japan, Canada, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, 

Poland, Romania and Switzerland.

Shareholder structure as at 31 December 2020 
based on Big Dough data from January 2021.

* FREE FLOAT

44 % USA

13 % United Kingdom

13 % Germany

12 % Austria

7 % France

6 % Norway

5 % Others:  
Australia, Belgium, Denmark, Japan, Canada, 
Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Poland, 
Romania und Switzerland

FREE FLOAT*
APPROXIMATELY 67 %

BIH AG
APPROXIMATELY 33 %
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CAPITAL MARKET COMMUNICATION AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2020

SBO is committed to transparent and active 

communication with the capital market. The Executive 

Board and the Investor Relations team, headed by 

Andreas Böcskör, reacted immediately to the travel 

restrictions associated with the COVID-19 pandemic 

and the lockdowns imposed in various states and 

switched over to an active, as before, but virtual 

communication format to reach out to investors and 

shareholders irrespective of time zones and regions.

In line with the corporate communication strategy, the 

meetings with institutional and private investors and 

shareholders were used to explain the business model 

and sustained growth strategy of the SBO Group, 

comment on published figures and assess market 

expectations.

The 2020 Annual General Meeting was the first of 

its kind to be held virtually in the German-speaking 

countries. This offer was used widely, shown in an 

exceptionally large number of shareholders attending 

the Annual General Meeting in person.

The following invest firms analyzed SBO in year 2020: 

Baader Bank

Berenberg Bank

Credit Suisse

Deutsche Bank

Erste Bank

Kepler Cheuvreux

Raiffeisen Centrobank

Hauck & Aufhäuser

ODDO BHF

MainFirst Bank, a Stifel Company
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Investor Relations service

Our Investor Relations service is available to investors or individuals interested in the capital market. For potential 

investors and shareholders, we provide ongoing information about events occurring in the Company that are 

relevant to the capital market. Regular and ad-hoc reporting is accompanied by this additional information 

channel.

Investor Relations contact 
Andreas Böcskör – Corporate Communications 

investor_relations@sbo.co.at | +43 (0)2630 315 252

CORPORATE CALENDAR 2021

DATE PUBLICATION

17 March 2021 Annual financial statements for 2020

29 April 2021 Annual general meeting 10:00 a.m. (CET)

19 May 2021 Q1 2021

19 August 2021 HY 2021

25 November 2021 Q3 2021



18

	  THE SBO GROUp	 �   

THE SBO 
GROUP
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THE SBO GROUP

THE COMPANY___

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN OILFIELD EQUIPMENT 

Aktiengesellschaft (SBO) is a globally operating group 

of companies and a leading supplier of sophisticated 

industrial production methods. The SBO Group is 

the world market leader in the manufacture of high-

precision components made from non-magnetic, 

high-alloy stainless steels produced according to the 

specifications of customers. At the same time, the 

SBO Group holds a leading position in high-efficiency 

drilling tools and equipment for the oil and gas industry. 

With our subsidiaries and 1,131 employees worldwide 

at year-end 2020, we are successfully positioned in 

technologically demanding and profitable niches. The 

Group is headquartered in Ternitz, Austria.

Lines of business

The core activity is located in the energy industry. 

Our services contribute to securing the global energy 

supply and making it more efficient and environmentally 

friendly. High-quality products and solutions from the 

SBO Group are used in the oil and gas industry. They 

include customized and high-precision high-alloy 

stainless steel components as well as cutting-edge 

high-performance drilling motors and highly efficient 

drilling tools that are versatile and extremely reliable. 

For downhole completions, we offer a wide range of 

innovative technologies. In addition, the SBO Group 

aims to expand the fields of application of its high-

quality products and diversify their use. We have 

launched an initiative to make our expertise in innovative 

3D printing of metal components available to a variety 

of industries and sectors, including the aerospace or 

semiconductor industries where we provide our high-

precision manufacturing expertise. SBO has been 

certified for the aerospace sector since 2016. Some 

of our products are also used for projects in the field of 

geothermal energy. 
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Innovative and sustainable

Drawing on the high level of technical know-how 

and many years of experience of our employees, we 

develop innovations that secure us an outstanding 

position in our niches. We consistently pursue more 

efficient environmental management in production and 

attach the greatest importance to sustainability. This 

puts the SBO Group in an exemplary position within the 

industry. For more details please refer to our integrated 

non-financial statement in the chapter "Non-Financial 

Highlights".

Sustainable energy supply

The world needs more and more energy going forward: According to the International Energy Agency (IEA), 

global primary energy demand will increase significantly until 2040. Currently, crude oil at 31 %, coal at 26 % 

and natural gas at 23 % are the three leading primary energy sources. Renewable energy sources cover 14 % 

of demand. Despite their growth, fossil fuels will continue to meet the majority of energy demand in the coming 

decades, according to the IEA. Among fossil fuels, coal in particular poses a threat to the climate goals, as coal 

produces carbon emissions that are 50 % higher than those of oil and even 75 % higher than those of gas. In 

order to comply with the Paris Climate Agreement, not only the share of renewable energies must go up, but 

above all coal must be replaced by gas on a large scale. With its quality products, SBO contributes to ensuring 

that this change is brought about in a resource-saving and efficient way.
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Products and services

1 �NON-MAGNETIC STEELS  
Development of high-alloy stainless steels offering 

high material strength and corrosion resistance

2 �DIVERSIFIED METHODS AND 
INDUSTRIES  

Design, 3D print, machining of high-alloy metal 

parts in supreme manufacturing quality 

3 �HIGH-PRECISION COMPONENTS 

High-precision manufacture of components 

customized from non-magnetic corrosion-

resistant stainless steels 

4 �HIGH-TECH SERVICE AND REPAIR  

Digital and on-the-spot maintenance as well as 

repair, which is performed using state-of-the art 

methods
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5 �HIGH-PERFORMANCE DRILLING 
MOTORS  

Cutting-edge drilling motors with high torques and 

intelligent protection systems for directional and 

horizontal drilling

6 �CIRCULATION TOOLS  
Circulation tools for sealing liquid-permeable 

zones of boreholes and for borehole cleaning

7 �WELL COMPLETION  

High-efficiency products for Plug-n-Perf and 

Sliding Sleeve and Smart Dart applications
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND 
GLOBAL NETWORK___

The SBO holding company is headquartered in 

Ternitz, Austria, from where we are managing our 

subsidiaries. Our deliberately lean organization and 

short communication paths allows us to implement 

decisions at our 19 locations swiftly and effectively.

Our globally operating group of companies is divided 

into two segments, which also are the basis of reporting:

The "Advanced Manufacturing & Services" (AMS) 

segment comprises high-precision machining 

and repair of components made of non-magnetic, 

corrosion-resistant stainless steels.

The "Oilfield Equipment" (OE) segment bundles a 

broad range of highly specialized solutions for the oil 

and gas market, including high-performance drilling 

motors and tools for directional drillstring drive as well 

as downhole circulation tools and products for the 

efficient and resource-saving completion of reservoirs 

using the Plug-n-Perf, Sliding Sleeve and Smart Dart 

technologies.

Our subsidiaries and branch offices represent our 

company in the following regions:

EUROPE AND RUSSIA

In this region, the SBO Group is present at four 

locations. The roots of our Group lie in Ternitz, Lower 

Austria, where we, with decades of experience in 

high-precision manufacturing, produce customized 

01

02

14

Europe
- �Ternitz, Austria
- Aberdeen, UK

 

15 Russia
- Noyabrsk

01
02

14

15
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components defined according to customer 

specifications from non-magnetic, corrosion-resistant 

stainless steels. In the United Kingdom and Russia 

we operate repair and service companies on site. 

Maintenance work mainly involves the regular 

inspection of components. As reflected by the one-

stop-shop principle, we offer local proximity to our 

customers combined with comprehensive product 

and service support.

NORTH AMERICA (INCLUDING MEXICO)

The SBO Group is represented by eight companies 

in North America. We develop drilling motors such as 

the "SpiroStar Supreme", which stands out by up to 

50 % more torque than conventional motors. In the field 

of "Composite Frac Plugs" we are the technological 

leader. The patented design, manufacturing know-

how as well as high quality standards of the products 

have created a strong position for us in the market. Our 

innovative Smart Dart system adds a groundbreaking 

new development to our well completion product 

range. Our Direct Metal Laser Sintering (DMLS) center 

in the United States has successfully established our 

expertise in 3D metal printing technology, supporting 

our efforts toward diversification in different industries. 
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LATIN AMERICA

One SBO Group company is domiciled in Brazil for 

sales and service operations for various SBO Group 

products and solutions so as to serve an important 

continent.

MIDDLE EAST

In Saudi-Arabia, a key oil market, we bundled our 

activities under the umbrella of a newly developed 

and expanded branch office. Three of the Group's 

companies are operating in Dubai, including production 

and distribution of our global market-leading circulation 

tools.

11 Brazil
- �Macae

11

16
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UAE
- Dubai

19
Saudi- 
Arabia
- Al-Khobar 
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ASIA

The SBO Group operates one company each in 

Vietnam and Singapore. The production facility in 

Vietnam delivers the Asian markets with high-precision 

components. In Singapore, our Group provides high-

precision components, services and repair for the 

Asian region. 

12

13

12 Singapore

13
Vietnam
- �Binh Duong 

Province
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BUSINESS MODEL AND 
STRATEGY___

The SBO Group has a long-standing reputation as 

a highly specialized quality leader, and its size allows 

to respond promptly and flexibly to market needs. 

As a technology group, we manufacture customized 

applications from high-alloy, non-magnetic stainless 

steels using sophisticated processes and offer highly 

efficient solutions for special applications in drilling and 

completion operations in the oil and gas sector. Across 

the entire value chain, we support our customers to be 

more successful and profitable.

Our business model is based on selling such products 

as well as on the rental of tools used mainly for special 

applications in drilling. In addition, we provide service 

and repair as separate offers. Our worldwide network is 

the pillar for operating at the highest level of customer 

proximity.

The business development of our Group is heavily 

dependent on business cycles. Therefore, our manu

facturing subsidiaries are designed to operate with the 

highest possible flexibility, while the holding company 

sets the strategic and financial goals. The focus on 

a cyclical business environment ensures that even a 

crisis such as the COVID-19 pandemic has no impact 

on the Group's business model.

ACQUISITIONS
IN STRATEGICALLY

FITTING AREAS

ORGANIC
GROWTH

Sustainable
Growth

DEVELOPMENT AND
LAUNCH OF NEW

PRODUCTS AND TECHNOLOGIES

" �Quality First "
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Strategically, the SBO Group is committed to sustainable 

growth. We consistently pursue this goal based on 

our long-term corporate strategy, which is divided into 

three focal areas: Organic growth, development and 

market introduction of new products and technologies, 

growth through acquisitions in strategically fitting areas. 

These three approaches to growth are intertwined and 

support our position as a leader in technology, quality 

and innovation. For a detailed description of our model 

please refer to the chapter "Sustainable Growth".

As innovation leader, we are consistently working on 

the technologies of tomorrow. We drive forward our 

activities as part of our sustainable growth strategy, 

regardless of which stage of the cycle the market is 

currently going through. Additionally, we develop our 

existing products and manufacturing technologies to 

the next level, maximizing their efficiency and reliability. 

We believe that the growing demands of customers for 

ever more efficient solutions are a great opportunity for 

our Company.

At the same time, we are constantly screening the 

market to identify new niches in our fields of activity 

and expand our portfolio through suitable acquisitions. 

We pursue selective acquisitions that strengthen our 

strategic position or open up new business areas. Due 

to our conservative capital structure policy and forward-

looking securing of long-term financing we are able to 

respond promptly to both opportunities and challenges.

All our activities are underpinned by the guiding principle 

of "Quality First", a concept that encompasses a number 

of strategic aspects and is the fundamental guideline 

for all activities. The chapter "Quality Management" 

provides a summary of this principle and describes 

our demands on suppliers, with whom we generally 

maintain long-term, sustainable relationships.

We are committed to careful treatment of our 

environment and fair interaction with our employees and 

the social community. For our employees, customers 

and suppliers, we strive to act as a reliable and secure 

partner. To achieve this goal, we have committed 

ourselves to our binding business ethics. We ensure 

its implementation in our day-to-day operations by 

constantly reviewing and intensifying our efforts in all of 

the areas mentioned.

"�We are focused on sustainable growth and consistently pursue 
this goal based on our long-term corporate strategy."
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OUR MISSION STATEMENT___
Our daily activities are guided by the fundamental 

principles summarized in the mission statement of 

the SBO Group. This framework demonstrates what 

we stand for and offers guidance for our employees 

around the world in their everyday work.

 

 

 

 

	� The umbrella organization  
of SBO provides a strong  
strategic and financial basis 
for our highly autonomous 
subsidiaries.  
 
Common objectives and  
a clear communication are  
the basis of our success.	� We strive for a sustained rise in 

corporate value that will allow to

•	�remain a long-term, reliable and  
innovative partner of our customers,

•	pursue new business opportunities  
	 and invest in advanced technologies,

•	�offer an attractive return to  
our shareholders.

	� We encourage and reward 
innovative behavior in  
our employees.

	� We are dedicated to operate 
in a safe and environmentally 
responsible manner.
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	� We promote an environment  
of openness and trust.

	� We are dedicated to  
integrity and honesty and  
act accordingly.

	� We strive to be an attractive 
company for our employees 
and offer them challenging 
opportunities in a  
performance-oriented 
organization.

	 We strive to be a reliable,  
	 long-term partner for our  
	 customers:

•	In day-to-day business by providing both  
	 high-quality products, services, and feasible 
	 solutions to create added value for our 
	 customers.

•	�As a long-term strategic partner by further 
developing advanced technologies, products, 
and services which help our customers 
achieve their objectives.

•	�By our commitment to protect the proprietary 
know-how of our customers.

	� We are committed to  
continuous improvement  
and strive to be  
the best in the  
field of our activities.



"�The 2020 financial year was a challenge. However, as we 
have often demonstrated in the past, we can rely on our 
profound experience to navigate safely through a crisis in a 
cyclical environment. Owing to our high liquidity base and 
effective anti-crisis measures already taken, we believe we 
are well prepared for 2021. We are consistently pursuing 
our ESG efforts to further strengthen our exemplary 
positioning in the industry."
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MANAGEMENT 
REPORT

The consolidated management report relates 
to the IFRS consolidated financial statements 
according to Section 245a UGB (Austrian 
Commercial Code)
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Financial Highlights: 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020 

The COVID-19 pandemic caused a global recession 

whose scope was surpassed only by the two world 

wars and the Great Depression in the 1930s in the 

past 150 years. Global economic output was massively 

impacted by government restrictions, spending was 

cut back massively due to the uncertain situation, and 

concerns about the viability of global value chains and 

the course of the pandemic placed a heavy burden on 

international trade.

MANAGEMENT 
REPORT
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MARKET ENVIRONMENT___

1	 IMF, World Economic Outlook Update, January 2021.

In view of this exceptional crisis situation, global 

economic output slumped sharply in the past business 

year. According to the International Monetary Fund 

(IMF), global economic output in 2020 went down 

by 3.5 %, compared to an increase of 2.8 % in the 

previous year. The downturn occurred across all 

regions, as both economic output in industrialized 

nations recorded a decline of 4.9 % in 2020, compared 

to an increase of 1.6 % in 2019, and also the economic 

output in emerging markets. Those dropped by 2.4 %, 

following 3.6 % in 2019.1

Regions

EUROPE AND RUSSIA

European countries reacted promptly to the pandemic. 

Internal border closures and strict lockdown policies 

were accompanied by public subsidy measures and 

tax incentive schemes. Economic output in Europe fell 

by 7.2 %, according to IMF. Russia was also unable 

to escape the effects of stagnating oil prices, with a 

decline of economic output by 3.6 %.

01

02

14

Europe
- �Ternitz, AT
- Aberdeen, UK

 

15 Russia
- Noyabrsk

01
02

14

15



36

	 Financial Highlights: The financial year 2020   |   Management Report	 �   

NORTH AMERICA (INCLUDING MEXICO)

The North American economic environment was also hit 

hard by the pandemic. In the United States, economic 

output went down by 3.4 %. In Canada, according 

to IMF, the decline came to 5.5 %. Substantial fiscal 

support for household incomes, far exceeding similar 

measures taken during the global financial crisis, 

contributed to an initial recovery in the third quarter 

of 2020, which was subsequently interrupted by a 

massive resurgence of the pandemic. 

ASIA

The Asia-Pacific region is recovering from a severe 

recession. Countries in Asia took strict measures 

to contain the COVID-19 pandemic while limiting its 

economic costs. Early implementation of containment 
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measures proved crucial in flattening the pandemic 

curve and avoiding an even deeper and longer-lasting 

recession. In China, the economy went back to normal 

faster than expected and this was the only major 

economy to record growth of 2.3 % in 2020. 

LATIN AMERICA

Latin America and the Caribbean (LAC) were hit hard by 

the COVID-19 pandemic, both in terms of human lives 

and the region‘s economic conditions. Six out of the 

ten emerging economies with the highest COVID-19 

deaths per capita in the world are located in LAC, 

including five of the six largest economies in the region. 

Latin American labor markets were severely impacted 

by the economic repercussions of the COVID-19 

pandemic, with employment figures dropping sharply 

across the region. As a result, economic output in Latin 

America declined by 7.4 % in 2020. 

11 Brazil
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MIDDLE EAST

2	 International Energy Agency (IEA), Global Energy Review 2020, April 2020.

The countries in the Middle East, North Africa, 

Afghanistan and Pakistan (MENAP) region as well as 

countries in the Caucasus and Central Asia (CCA) 

continue to face an uncertain and difficult environment, 

despite rapid and stringent action against COVID-19. 

Oil exporters were particularly hit hard by the economic 

impact of lockdowns and the resulting sharp decline 

in oil demand and prices. The necessary public health 

response to the pandemic has severely restricted 

mobility and has come at a high economic cost. As 

a result, economic output in the region is expected to 

decline by 3.2 % in 2020. Saudi Arabia, like many oil-

exporting countries, was affected by low oil prices, with 

economic output there shrinking by 3.9 % in 2020. 

EFFECTS ON ENERGY DEMAND

The restrictions imposed against the spread of 

COVID-19 had far-reaching repercussions on people‘s 

lives and the way energy is used in entire economies. As 

a result of the global lockdown measures implemented 

in the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic, mobility, and 

therefore transport, declined at an unprecedented rate 

in March and April 2020. For example, by the end of 

March 2020, global road transport activity was almost 

50 % below the 2019 average and commercial air travel 

activity was down almost 60 % from the 2019 level.2 
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According to the International Energy Agency (IEA), 

energy demand fell by about 5 % in 2020 compared 

to the previous year, with demand for natural gas 

declining 3 %. Thus, natural gas was more resilient 

to the immediate effects of the COVID-19 crisis than 

coal and oil. Coal bore the brunt of the decline in 

electricity demand associated with the pandemic 

and related shutdowns. Demand for coal went 

down by 7 % in 2020 and will also be down 8 % 

going forward compared to pre-crisis projections.3 

 

Average global oil demand decreased by 8.7  million 

barrels per day (mb/d), or 8.7 %, to 91.0 mb/d in 2020 

(2019: 99.7 mb/d), according to the IEA. The decline 

in oil demand is mainly due to the sharp drop in the 

transport sector caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Crude oil production was also dramatically curbed, 

arriving at 94.0  mb/d. To stabilize the oil market 

impacted by the decline in demand and to support 

prices, the OPEC+ alliance on 13 April 2020 agreed on 

a historic production cut starting at 9.7 mb/d.4 

The global rig count shrank drastically by 46 % during 

2020 to 1,104 rigs (December 2019: 2,043 rigs). This 

decline was primarily relating to the US rig count, which 

decreased by 58 % to 339 rigs (December 2019: 

804 rigs). Internationally, there was also a significant 

drop of 40 % to 665 rigs (December 2019: 1,104 rigs). 

The US rig count, which had plummeted since March 

2020, bottomed out in August with a count of 250 rigs. 

3	 International Energy Agency (IEA), World Energy Outlook, October 2020.
4	 International Energy Agency (IEA), Oil Market Report, February 2020.
5	 Baker Hughes Rig Count.
6	 Bloomberg: CO1 Brent Crude (ICE) and CL1 WTI Crude (Nymex).
7	 Evercore ISI, The 2021 Evercore ISI Global E&P Spending Outlook, December 2020.

From September, a gradual slight recovery set in again 

until the end of the year.5

The sudden drop in the demand for oil made an action 

by the OPEC states and their partners necessary in 

order to stabilize the prices. Since an agreement on 

the shortening of the oil production could not be made 

initially, the production conflict between Saudi-Arabia 

and Russia as OPEC+ partner even escalated over 

the weekend of 7 March 2020, the agreement could 

be made on 13 April 2020 only. Therefore, the price of 

North Sea crude Brent decreased from the beginning 

of the year until 21 April 2020 from USD 66.00 to 

USD 19.33. The price of North American WTI crude oil 

from USD 61.06 to USD 10.01. Due to trade-related 

effects, it even turned negative on 20 April 2020 

with USD minus 40.32. From that point on, oil prices 

recovered gradually and with the recovery of the capital 

markets quite significantly towards year-end. North 

Sea crude Brent closed at the end of December with 

a price of USD 51.80, representing a reduction of 

21.5 % during the course of the year. The price of North 

American crude WTI ended at USD 48.52, a reduction 

of 20.5 %.6

Global spending for exploration and production (E&P) 

dropped by 25.3 % in 2020, with the largest declines 

seen in North America. While the international decrease 

in E&P spending was 17.9 %, North America recorded 

a contraction of 45.8 %.7
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN 2020___
The SBO Group achieved a break even operating result 

in the 2020 financial year despite the profound crisis. 

The high level of cash and the net liquidity strengthened 

the Company in a very challenging market environment. 

Targeted measures reduced the negative impact of the 

COVID-19 pandemic. However, the exceptional global 

situation and the associated decrease in demand for 

oil and gas caused a decline in sales and earnings. As 

the global economic environment was massively hit by 

COVID-19, SBO made non-cash impairments of assets 

at subsidiaries in North America, which impacted the 

result. Restructuring expenses and exchange losses 

also had a negative effect on the result. In the third 

quarter of 2020, SBO further expanded its existing 

strong liquidity base by raising loans in the amount of 

MEUR 81.0. 

SALES AND EARNINGS

IN MEUR  

BOOKINGS	 01-12/2020�  
	 01-12/2019	

SALES	 01-12/2020	�
	 01-12/2019	

ORDER BACKLOG	 31.12.2020	  
	 31.12.2019	
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SBO Group sales fell by 34.6 % due to the global 

economic crisis and decreased energy consumption, 

arriving at MEUR 291.2, down from MEUR 445.3 

in 2019. Bookings came to MEUR 235.1 (2019: 

MEUR 467.2), a decrease of 49.7 %. The order backlog 

was MEUR 65.2 at the end of 2020 (31 December 

2019: MEUR 123.0).

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and 

amortization (EBITDA) arrived at MEUR 27.1 (2019: 

MEUR 108.6). Profit from operations was positive at 

MEUR 1.2, but was impacted by exchange losses of 

net MEUR 6.8. As a result, profit from operations (EBIT) 

before one-off items was MEUR minus 5.6 (2019: 

MEUR 60.8), due to non-cash asset impairments at 

subsidiaries in North America and incurred restructuring 

expenses of MEUR 22.3. EBIT after one-off items was 

MEUR minus   28.0 (2019: MEUR 60.2). The EBITDA 

margin was 9.3 % (2019: 24.4 %), and the EBIT margin 

was minus 9.6 % (2019: 13.5 %).

The financial result in 2020 arrived at MEUR minus 3.2 

(2019: MEUR minus 12.3). Profit before tax declined 

to MEUR minus 31.2 (2019: MEUR 47.9). Profit after 

tax came to MEUR minus 21.7 during 2020 (2019: 

MEUR 32.3). Earnings per share were EUR minus 1.38 

(2019: EUR 2.03). 
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SEGMENT RESULTS

The SBO Group‘s business is divided into two 

segments, "Advanced Manufacturing & Services" (AMS) 

and "Oilfield Equipment" (OE). The AMS segment sales 

arrived at MEUR 159.7 (2019: MEUR 223.8). Profit from 

operations (EBIT) before one-off items was MEUR 14.4 

(2019: MEUR 33.9). In the "Oilfield Equipment" (OE) 

segment, sales amounted to MEUR 131.5 (2019: 

MEUR 221.5) and profit from operations (EBIT) 

before one-off items was MEUR minus  6.8 (2019: 

MEUR 28.7).

BALANCE SHEET FIGURES AND CASHFLOW

IN MEUR 

Equity arrived at MEUR 287.0 in 2020 (2019: 

MEUR 370.1). SBO‘s equity ratio was 36.9 % at the 

end of 2020 (2019: 42.3 %). Due to a high positive 

cashflow, net debt turned into net liquidity of MEUR 9.5 

in 2020 (2019: net debt MEUR 20.1). Accordingly, 

gearing also decreased from 5.4 % at the end of 2019 

to minus 3.3 % on 31 December 2020.
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Cash and cash equivalents increased sharply, arriving 

at MEUR 314.0 (2019: MEUR 265.2).

In the third quarter of 2020, SBO‘s existing strong 

liquidity base was further strengthened raising loans of 

MEUR 81.0. 

IN MEUR 

The operating cashflow arrived at MEUR 94.3 in the year 

2020 (2019: MEUR 98.1). Free cashflow increased from 

MEUR 63.8 in 2019 to MEUR 80.1. Capital expenditure 

on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

(CAPEX) amounted to MEUR 16.2 (2019: MEUR 31.5). 

As at 31 December 2020, purchase commitments for 

property, plant and equipment came to MEUR 3.7 

(2019: MEUR 5.0).

DIVIDEND PROPOSAL

Due to the development of the crisis year 2020 and 

the negative result, the Executive Board will propose 

to the Annual General Meeting on 29 April 2021 not to 

distribute a dividend for the financial year 2020 (2019: 

EUR 1.20 per share).

LIQUIDITY	 31.12.2020	�
	 31.12.2019	
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ANALYSIS AND RESULTS___

The consolidated financial statements of the Company 
have been prepared in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Sales

Sales decreased by 34.6 %, from MEUR 445.3 in 2019 

to MEUR 291.2 in 2020 due to the global economic 

crisis triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic and the 

associated decrease in demand for oil and gas. 

In the previous years, the US dollar remained the most 

important currency for the SBO Group. In 2020, 76 % 

(compared to 84 % in 2019) of sales were generated 

in US dollars, and approximately 57 % (compared 

to 59 % in 2019) of expenses were also incurred in 

US dollars. The average exchange rate for 2020 at 

EUR 1  = USD 1.1413 was weaker than in 2019, 

where it had been EUR 1 = USD 1.1196, and had a 

dampening effect. The US dollar fell considerably over 

the euro in the course of the year. The closing price 

on 31 December 2020 was EUR 1  = USD 1.2271, 

down by around 9 % from EUR 1 = USD 1.1234 on 

31 December 2019.

Exchange rate development

IN EUR/ 
USD HIGH LOW AVERAGE CLOSING

2020 1.2281 1.0707 1.1413 1.2271

2019 1.1535 1.0889 1.1196 1.1234

In the preparation of the annual financial statements 

2019 and 2020, the average exchange rates of 

these years have been used for the consolidated 

profit and loss statements, and the closing rates as of 

31 December for the consolidated balance sheets.

Sales by business segments

IN MEUR 2020 2019

"Advanced Manufacturing & 
Services" (AMS) 159.7 223.8

"Oilfield Equipment" (OE) 131.5 221.5

Total sales 291.2 445.3

While the "Advanced Manufacturing & Services" (AMS) 

segment benefited from sound capacity utilization 

at the beginning of the year, significant cutbacks on 

customers‘ CAPEX spending impacted the late-cycle 

AMS segment as well. The decline in sales arrived at 

IN MEUR
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28.6 %, from MEUR 223.8 in 2019 to MEUR 159.7 in 

2020.

The "Oilfield Equipment" (OE) segment was hit 

particularly hard by the weakness of the North American 

market, which set in as early as March 2020 as reflected 

in a dramatic drop in the number of active drilling rigs. 

The sharp fall in drilling and completion activities led to 

a decline in sales of 40.6 % to MEUR 131.5 in 2020, 

compared to MEUR 221.5 in 2019.

Gross profit

 IN MEUR

Following MEUR 132.6 in 2019, gross profit in 2020 

fell to MEUR 66.1, and with it the gross margin, which 

went from 29.8 % in 2019 to 22.7 % in 2020.

The lower gross margin is a result, on the one hand, 

of capacity underutilization, and, on the other hand, of 

lower demand. Especially in the "Oilfield Equipment" 

(OE) segment, the lower demand put increased 

pressure on prices. Immediately implemented cost 

reduction programs partially compensated for the 

margin reduction.

The major elements of production costs are expenses 

for materials and energy, costs of personnel and 

depreciation of fixed assets.

Selling, general, and administrative expenses

 IN MEUR

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 

by 11.0 %, from MEUR 67.3 in 2019 to MEUR 59.9 in 

2020. They rose from 15.1 % of sales for the year 2019 

to 20.6 % for the year 2020.

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist 

mainly of salary and salary-related expenses, 

professional fees for operational activities, travel and 

entertainment costs, communication and insurance 

expenses.

Other operating expenses and income

IN MEUR

Other operating expenses amounted to MEUR 18.2 

in 2020 (2019: MEUR 12.9). This item includes 

research and development costs of MEUR 8.3 (2019: 

MEUR 8.8) as well as exchange losses of MEUR 9.8 

(2019: MEUR 3.0). The marked drop in the value of 

the US dollar against the euro over the course of the 
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year led to a significant increase in exchange losses 

resulting in a rise in other operating expenses.

IN MEUR

Other operating income in 2020 totaled MEUR 6.5 

(2019: MEUR 8.5) and, apart from exchange gains, 

consisted of rental income, service charges and 

income from the sale of fixed assets. The reduction in 

other operating income is due mainly to lower exchange 

gains of MEUR 3.0 in 2020, compared to MEUR 6.0 

in 2019.

Profit from operations before  
non-recurring items

IN MEUR

Due to the reduction of gross profit, profit from 

operations before non-recurring items of MEUR 60.8 

in 2019 went down to MEUR minus 5.6, accounting 

for minus 1.9 % of sales, compared to 13.7 % in the 

previous year. 

Adjusted for the net effect of exchange losses 

(MEUR 9.8) and exchange gains (MEUR 3.0) of 

MEUR 6.8, a slightly positive operating result before 

non-recurring items of MEUR 1.2 was achieved in the 

2020 financial year.

Non-recurring items

IN MEUR

In the 2020 financial year, expenses for non-recurring 

items totaled MEUR 22.3, of which MEUR 20.2 

related to asset impairments in North America. 

Thereof MEUR 12.1 related to impairment of goodwill, 

and MEUR 1.7 to impairment of property, plant and 

equipment, and MEUR 0.9 to impairment of intangible 

assets, and MEUR 5.5 to impairment of inventories. In 

addition, expenses of MEUR 1.4 were incurred for the 

restructuring of production sites in the United Kingdom 

and Mexico. A further MEUR 0.8 related to the effect 

from the deconsolidation of the closed subsidiary in 

Mexico.

Expenses for non-recurring items in the 2019 financial 

year totaling MEUR 1.4 comprise MEUR 0.5 for 

impairment losses on property, plant and equipment 

and MEUR 0.9 for restructuring measures at production 

sites in the United Kingdom and Mexico. These 

expenses contrast with income of MEUR 0.7 from the 

sale of property, plant and equipment associated with 

said restructuring measures.
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Profit from operations

IN MEUR

Due to the reduction in sales and the associated lower 

gross profit and higher expenses from non-recurring 

items, profit from operations fell from MEUR 60.2 in 

2019 to EUR minus 28.0 in 2020, resulting in minus 

9.6 % of sales, compared to 13.5 % in the previous year.

Financial result

IN MEUR

The financial result in 2020 was MEUR minus 3.2, 

compared to MEUR minus 12.3 in 2019. The significant 

reduction in the negative financial result is due to the 

absence of expenses in connection with the put / call 

option agreements.

In the past financial year, the net interest result was 

MEUR minus 3.2 (2019: MEUR minus 5.1). The lower 

expense resulted from the discontinuation of the 

accrued interest on option liabilities which amounted to 

MEUR 2.8 in 2019. The net interest result also includes 

the profit portion of the shares and participation 

rights in individual subsidiaries held by the respective 

managements which came to MEUR 0.0 in 2020 

(2019: MEUR minus 0.7). 

Other financial expenses for the year 2019 amounting 

to MEUR 10.9 include dividend payments to minority 

shareholders for shares in companies for which put /

call option agreements were in place. The revaluation of 

option commitments has led to an income of MEUR 3.7 

for the year 2019.

Profit before tax

IN MEUR

Profit before tax for 2020 was MEUR minus  31.2, 

compared to MEUR 47.9 in 2019. 
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Income taxes

IN MEUR

Income taxes in 2020 amounted to MEUR 9.5 (2019: 

MEUR minus 15.6), consisting of current tax income 

of MEUR 4.8 mainly resulting from loss carryback 

opportunities in the United States, and deferred tax 

income of MEUR 4.7.

Profit after tax / dividend

IN MEUR

Income after tax for 2020 was MEUR minus 21.7, 

compared to MEUR 32.3 in the year before. 

Earnings per share arrived at EUR minus 1.38 

in 2020, compared to EUR 2.03 in 2019. 

The Executive Board proposes to the Annual General 

Meeting not to distribute a dividend for 2020.

Assets and financial position 

Group equity as at 31 December 2020 was 

MEUR 287.0, compared to MEUR 370.1 as at 

31 December 2019. This reduction is due to negative 

profit after tax, the dividend payment and the acquisition 

of treasury shares in 2020, as well as the lower USD 

exchange rate, which led to a negative development 

of the currency translation reserve. The equity ratio 

decreased to 36.9 % compared to 42.3 % in the 

previous year.

Following a net debt of MEUR 20.1 as at 31 Decem

ber  2019, net liquidity of MEUR 9.5 was reported 

as at 31  December  2020. Gearing (net debt as a 

percentage of equity) thus improved from 5.4 % 

as at 31 December  2019 to minus 3.3 % as at 

31 December 2020.

Cashflow from profit came to MEUR 36.6 in 

2020, compared to MEUR 88.4 in 2019. The key 

components of this indicator in 2020 were profit after 

tax of MEUR minus 21.7 (2019: MEUR 32.3), as 

well as depreciation, amortization and impairment of 

MEUR 55.0 (2019: MEUR 48.4). 

Net working capital fell from MEUR 187.9 as at 

31 December 2019 to MEUR 120.1 as at 31 Decem

ber 2020. This decrease is mainly due to a significant 

reduction in trade receivables and inventories. As a 

result, cashflow from operating activities of MEUR 94.3 

almost reached the high level reported in the previous 

year (MEUR 98.1). 

Net cash outflows from investing activities totaled 

MEUR 14.2 (2019: MEUR 34.3), of which MEUR 16.2 

(2019: MEUR 31.5) were spent for additions to property, 

plant and equipment and intangible assets. Thereof, 

MEUR 11.8 were used for the "Oilfield Equipment" (OE) 

segment, mainly for further expanding the rental fleet 

of drilling motors and downhole circulation tools. In the 
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AMS segment, spending of MEUR 4.4 was made, in 

particular, on the machinery.

Due to the reduced CAPEX spendings compared to 

the previous year, a free cashflow of MEUR 80.1 was 

achieved in 2020, compared to MEUR 63.8 in 2019.

Report on the main features of the internal  
control system and risk management system  
in relation to the financial reporting process

The Executive Board has overall responsibility for the 

risk management of the SBO Group, whereas direct 

responsibility lies with the managing directors of the 

operational entities.

Consequently, the system of internal continuous 

reporting to corporate headquarters plays a particularly 

important role in identifying risks at an early stage and 

implementing countermeasures. Operational entities 

provide the necessary information by timely monthly 

reporting to the Executive Board.

The Group has defined uniform standards for the 

global subsidiaries regarding implementation and 

documentation of the complete internal control system 

and, in particular, the financial reporting process. 

The underlying objective is to avoid risks leading to 

incomplete or erroneous financial reporting.

Furthermore, internal reports prepared by subsidiaries 

are checked for plausibility at corporate headquarters 

and compared with budgets in order to take appropriate 

action whenever deviations occur. For this purpose, 

subsidiaries are required to prepare annual budgets 

and mid-term planning to be approved by the Executive 

Board.

In addition, liquidity planning of the subsidiaries 

is continuously monitored and aligned with the 

requirements defined by the holding company.

Group controlling monitors subsidiaries’ compliance 

with accounting regulations. Moreover, the annual 

financial statements of all operational subsidiaries and 

holding companies are audited by international auditors.

At the Executive Board’s regular meetings with local 

managing directors, current business development and 

foreseeable risks and opportunities are discussed.

In addition to the International Financial Reporting 

Standards, internal Group guidelines are in place for 

the preparation of the consolidated financial statements 

to ensure uniform presentation by the companies 

reporting (accounting and disclosure issues). A 

certified consolidation program equipped with the 

necessary auditing and consolidation routines is used 

for automated preparation of the consolidated financial 

statements.

Events after the balance sheet

Reference is made to Note 41 in the consolidated 

financial statements.

Information according to Sections 243a and 267 
(3) (3) UGB (Austrian Commercial Code)

Reference is made to Note 22 in the consolidated 

financial statements.

Hedging transactions

Reference is made to Note 35 in the consolidated 

financial statements.
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OUTLOOK___

8	 IMF World Economic Outlook, January 2021.

Following a global decline in economic output of 3.5 % 

in 2020, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) forecasts 

global economic output to come to 5.5 % in 2021. The 

economies of the industrialized countries are expected 

to grow by 4.3 % in 2021, compared to a decline of 

4.9 % in 2020 and a rise of 1.6 % in 2019. According to 

the IMF, economic output in emerging and developing 

countries should rise by 6.3 % in 2021, compared 

to a drop of 2.4 % in 2020 and a growth of 3.6 % in 

2019. This should bring about significant recovery in 

2021, in particular from the second half of the year 

onward, following the sharp slump in global economic 

output seen in 2020. However, these projections 

depend to a large extent on the further course of the 

COVID-19 pandemic and how quickly the vaccine will 

help to contain the global crisis.8 The UK's exit from 

the EU (BREXIT) is not expected to have any significant 

implications for SBO.

Forecast of economic development in individual regions and countries

The specific outlook varies from country to country, depending on infection rates and containment measures, 

political responses, scope of contact-intensive activities and external demand.

•	� In the Eurozone, economic output is projected to grow by 4.2 % in 2021 (compared to minus 7.2 % in 

2020), while Russia, as estimated by the IMF, should achieve economic output of 3.0 % in 2021 (compared 

to minus 3.6 % in 2020). 

•	� The economy in the United States is expected to grow by 5.1 % in 2021 (compared to minus 3.4 % in 

2020), that in Canada by 3.6 % (compared to minus 5.5 % in 2020). In many countries in Latin America, 

which have been hit hard by the pandemic, the economy should gradually recover in 2021 and grow by 

4.1 % (compared to minus 7.4 % in 2020). 

•	� The same applies to many countries in the Middle East and Central Asia. In these regions the economy 

is expected to grow by 3.0 % in 2021 (compared to minus 3.2 % in 2020). 

•	� In China economic output is projected to increase by as much as 8.1 % in 2021 (compared to 2.3 % 

in 2020). 
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9	 International Energy Agency (IEA), World Energy Outlook 2020, October 2020.
10	International Energy Agency (IEA), Oil Market Report, February 2021.
11	Evercore ISI, The 2021 Evercore ISI Global E&P Spending Outlook, December 2020.

The International Energy Agency (IEA) expects energy 

consumption in industry to return to pre-crisis levels by 

2022. Natural gas should recover comparably quickly 

and rise by almost 3 % in 2021. By 2030, demand is 

expected to go up to 14 % above 2019 levels, with 

growth being concentrated to Asia. China and India will 

account for about 45 % of total growth of gas demand 

over the next decade. Growth is also robust in the 

Middle East and Southeast Asia. In the United States, 

shale gas, in particular, should favor a switch to natural 

gas in electricity generation.9

Oil demand is also expected to rise in 2021: Oil demand 

is projected to increase by 5.4 mb/d to 96.4 mb/d. In 

OECD countries, average oil demand should come to 

44.7 mb/d, up 2.6 mb/d from 2020. For non-OECD 

countries, average demand is expected to go up by 

2.8 mb/d to a total of 51.7 mb/d.10

Although the uncertain current situation hardly allows 

for reliable, resilient forecasts of future economic 

development and the recovery of the oil market, 

there are clear signs of an upward trend: The industry 

bottomed out in the third quarter of 2020, leading to 

a slight recovery in the market, which will continue in 

the following quarters and should lead to a noticeable 

rise, in particular from the second half of 2021 onward. 

However, these projections depend largely on how 

quickly the COVID-19 pandemic is contained and 

global economic output picks up again.

For 2021, renowned banks and analyst firms expect 

global spending for exploration and production (E&P) 

to increase by 6.8 %. As a result, global E&P spending 

should partially recover from its contraction of minus 

25.3 % in 2020. The driver is the international market, 

where E&P spending should climb by 7.2 %. North 

America is expected to grow at a slightly lower overall 

rate of 5.1 %, that is 5.4 % in the United States and 

3.0 % in Canada.11

In the past, the SBO Group often demonstrated that it 

can rely on its profound experience to safely navigate 

through a crisis in a cyclical environment. For 2021, 

we see ourselves well set owing to our strong liquidity 

base and effective anti-crisis measures already in 

place. Demand for energy should increase significantly 

again as soon as the vaccination against COVID-19 

is rolled out globally and health policy restrictions are 

scaled back accordingly. At the same time, demand 

for our products and services should also rise again. 

That is why we are expecting a moderate increase of 

activities in the first half of 2021, which should show an 

increased momentum in the second half of 2021. More 

than 50 % of the world‘s energy supply will continue to 

be covered by oil and gas for decades to come.

With its high-quality products, the SBO Group 

contributes to making the supply of energy more 

efficient and more environmentally friendly. In parallel, 

we are continuously working on the implementation 

of our sustainable growth strategy and are gradually 

expanding the scope of application of our technologies 

in the oil and gas market, as well as other industries. 

Research and development, spending alongside the 

sound positioning in demanding niches will secure the 

frontrunning position of the SBO Group going forward.
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Non-Financial Highlights: 
SUSTAINABLE MANAGEMENT

PART 1: 
SUSTAINABILITY IN 
THE SBO GROUP_
The SBO Group represented in its subsidiaries, is front-running in clearly defined niches of 

the market. Their products are predominantly used in the oil and gas industry. Although we 

are not performing drilling and completion operations ourselves, we are taking a relevant 

part in the increase of efficiencies of those operations and after all the resource-saving 

extractions of oil and gas. By doing so, meeting of the demand for oil and gas is secured.

Our Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of 

the Austrian Sustainability and Diversity Improvement Act (Nachhaltigkeits- und 

Diversitätsverbesserungsgesetzes or NaDiVeG). In addition, we are committed to the United 

Nations "Agenda 2030 for Sustainable Development" presented in September 2015. The 

17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) are considered to be common focal points 

of a global sustainable development of the current complex societal challenges. We have 

defined the goals that we can influence and have entrenched them in our sustainability 

management.

In 2019, the consolidated financial statements of the SBO Group had already been 

audited by the Austrian Financial Reporting Enforcement Panel (OePR) in the area of the 

non-financial statements and remained without any objections. In the following year, we 

were evaluated by the Austrian daily newspaper "Kurier" in categories such as ecological, 

economic and social sustainability, reputation, technology and innovation, and were 

subsequently awarded the title of "Sustainable Company of Austria 2021".
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Out of the 17 SDGs, the following 11 are considered particularly relevant for SBO:
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MATERIALITY ANALYSIS: STAKEHOLDERS AND TOPICS 
OF SUSTAINABILITY

 

In its sustainability management, the SBO Group focuses on the economic, ecological and social 

effects of its activities. As part of a materiality analysis, we have identified relevant stakeholders, 

recorded the most important topic areas for sustainability and defined twelve key action areas. 

 

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

In the SBO Group, we define as stakeholders those people and organizations that we are 

in contact with, influence our business development and have an effect on our activities. 

The analysis and identification of these stakeholders is based on the characteristics and 

specifics of our business activities, including, among others, the global presence of our 

production sites and subsidiaries, our special role as a leading niche provider and the 

value chain of the oilfield service industry.

We consider our stakeholder value to be a key factor for our corporate management. We 

break down our stakeholders according to their interests in the following two main groups: 

Those who are part of the value chain, that is suppliers, employees and customers. They 

are particularly interested in operational performance criteria, such as safe work processes, 

high-quality products and sustainable value-adding business relationships. The second 

group is composed of the owners and the capital market, the social environment and the 

media. They are primarily interested in our business success and our activities from an 

ecological and social perspective. 
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Maintaining close contact with all stakeholder groups and a partnership-based exchange 

are pivotal to us, as this contributes to our business success and reputation. At the same 

time, this helps us identify risks timely and take proactive countermeasures as necessary.

SBO

EMPLOYEES

CUSTOMERS

SUPPLIERS

SOCIAL 
ENVIRONMENT

SHAREHOLDERS /
THE CAPITAL

MARKET

THE MEDIA

STAKEHOLDERS OF 
THE VALUE CHAIN

STAKEHOLDER OF THE 
EXTERNAL COMMUNITY
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At the strategic level, the following SDGs and key topics of sustainability are crucial for 

SBO:
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KEY TOPICS OF SUSTAINABILITY 

In accordance with its business model, the SBO Group has identified key areas of 

sustainability. As stipulated by the Sustainability and Diversity Improvement Act, we have 

conducted interviews with managing directors and employees, analyzed discussions with 

customers, assessed internal quality and supplier management guidelines, evaluated staff 

training and development programs, and held talks with capital market participants.

In the evaluation of the interviews conducted and the non-financial performance 

indicators collected, particular attention was paid to the sustainable growth strategy 

and the concerns explicitly mentioned by stakeholders or discussed in the studies. 

Additional reportable topics arise from our compliance organization, in particular the Code 

of Conduct and the underlying regulations.

This was used to group and rate material topics based on two criteria: Their impact on our 

stakeholders and their decisions regarding SBO, and the social, ecological and economic 

effects of the SBO Group. The result is a two-dimensional materiality matrix that serves 

as foundation of our sustainability strategy. Topics that did not appear recurrently in the 

evaluation were classified as "low" relevance, while those considered essential in at least 

two of the sources used were marked with "high" relevance.
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This results in twelve material fields of action for SBO:

MATERIAL FIELDS
SDG 

3
SDG 

4
SDG 

6
SDG 

8
SDG 

9
SDG 

10
SDG 

12
SDG 

14
SDG 

15
SDG 

16
SDG 

17

Organic growth • • •

Research & development • • •

Acquisitions • • •

Quality management • •

Respect for  
human rights • • • • • • • • • • •

Human resources 
development • •

Health and safety •

Compliance and 
combating corruption 
and bribery

• •

Corporate governance • •

Energy consumption and 
CO2 emissions • • •

Water consumption • • • •

Waste management • • •

We cover these fields of action in four strategic sustainability areas, where we manage 

and record the relevant topics. In Part 2 of our non-financial statement, we describe 

these areas and their development in the reporting year in detail. In line with SBO's 

communication guidelines, we do not provide forecasts on key performance indicators 

and specific targets.
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MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The SBO Group operates along the lines of a long-term strategy and sustainable business 

practices. Our goal is to create long-term added value and to work in a spirit of trust 

with our stakeholders, employees, suppliers and customers. The 2020 environment that 

was marked by the COVID-19 pandemic did not change this approach: Our business 

model builds on the cyclicity of our industry and ensures that the Group's sustainable 

growth strategy is implemented throughout the cycles. This is evidenced by decades of 

customer-supplier relationships and a reliable core workforce whom we offer a fair working 

environment and interesting development opportunities.

We take responsibility for our actions and production. The SBO Group's sustainable growth 

is managed centrally, while sustainability issues are implemented on a decentralized basis 

under central strategic control. This is why we can take a far-sighted look beyond national 

borders and time horizons and at the same time react promptly and precisely in a dynamic 

market environment. Group guidelines apply within our Group for topics related to the 

environment, social affairs and employees as well as respect for human rights, combating 

corruption and bribery. These guidelines are implemented locally by the management of 

our subsidiaries according to the framework conditions on site.

A major yardstick is our Group-wide Code of Conduct, which is available for download 

online on our website and explains our responsibility for employees, customers, other 

stakeholders and, as a company listed on the Vienna Stock Exchange, for shareholders 

and the investment community. The Code of Conduct calls for continuous optimization 

and expansion of competencies and know-how.

These processes are constantly monitored and improved by both the SBO Executive 

Board and Group Compliance. Operational management is obliged to regularly record and 

monitor efficiency and growth potentials and to immediately eliminate any risks that arise. 

Violations of our Code of Conduct are penalized. Furthermore, we pursue a zero tolerance 

policy toward any form of corruption or anti-competitive behavior. We create programs for 

our employees to continuously promote them, keep them at the highest possible level of 

training and retain them in the long term.

Supreme quality is the core element of our corporate strategy, which specifically ensures 

corporate sustainability. Our sustainability strategy is also aligned with the "Quality First" 

principle. As a metal-processing company, we pay very close attention to options for 

optimization in the area of sustainability. This includes rigorous waste, energy and water 

consumption management as well as stringent quality management.
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The Group management defines uniform standards, including consistent measurement 

parameters and measurement units in all companies so as to identify potential for 

improvement and the efficient use of resources more easily. For example, production 

processes and products are continuously evaluated with regard to their energy use, 

carbon dioxide emissions or waste quantities, and changes are documented accordingly.

The company attaches great importance to selling waste as secondary products, 

thus transferring it to new uses. In the fight against climate change, we are working to 

continuously optimize and reduce the carbon dioxide emissions and energy consumption 

of our Group.

We are actively contributing to improving the economic, social and environmental issues 

in our operations and minimizing our ecological footprint. This strategy is consistently 

pursued during the COVID-19 pandemic as well. 

RESULTS AND RISKS

In the risk report, which is part of the consolidated financial statements, the SBO Group 

gives a comprehensive overview of the risks it is exposed to. In this chapter, we only deal 

with risks associated with sustainable corporate management. All risks have arisen from 

our own business activities and not from our business relationships, products or services. 

The risks listed below have been evaluated based on non-financial key performance 

indicators and the qualitative explanations provided in the areas of production, products 

and suppliers:

Environmental issues

Production processes and products with regard to direct risks to air, water and 

soil: For an assessment, relevant KPIs, such as carbon dioxide emissions or 

waste quantities are compared.
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Social and employee matters

Employee development, employee turnover and lost time due to occupational 

accidents.

Compliance

Applicable penalties, qualitative reports of violations of corporate governance, 

incidents of disregard for human rights (e.g. discrimination), and of corruption 

and bribery.

	

The following risks are regularly identified and documented in order to initiate strategic 

improvements as required: 

Market environment

The products of the SBO Group are predominantly used in the oil and gas 

industry, which is traditionally characterized by cyclical phases. Upturns can be 

followed by longer downturns, which has a direct effect on corporate growth as 

well as the environmental, social and employee-related concerns of the SBO 

Group. We seek to mitigate these risks by expanding our product and customer 

portfolio.

Demand-oriented human resources planning

The cyclical industry environment requires a high degree of flexibility and 

prompt reaction to heavily fluctuating market movements. During upswings, our 

challenge is to rapidly expand our capacities, while in downturns, with declining 

numbers of incoming orders and low capacity utilization, we need to adjust our 

personnel resources to demand. We reduced the number of dismissals in past 

cycles by introducing, for instance, short-time work and time accounts. SBO 

classifies the risk of a potential labor shortage in the oil and gas and oilfield 

service industries as low.
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Safety at work

Misconduct and carelessness in work processes entail risks for the safety of 

our employees in the workplace. Introduction and maintenance of site-specific 

HSE programs is mandatory within the SBO Group. Specific directions for each 

workplace, detailed instructions on the respective work processes, signs and 

forward-looking education and further training measures have been implemented 

to minimize the risk of accidents at the SBO Group.

Quality assurance

Product defects such as material breakage may involve risks for our customers 

and the environment – incidents, for instance, could damage or contaminate the 

soil. We actively counteract these risks through consistent quality management 

in our supply chain and production. This serves to protect the environment as 

well as the business success both of our customers and the SBO Group.

Compliance and anti-corruption regulations

At SBO, strict internal rules and regulations define binding, ethical conduct 

throughout the Group. Non-compliance with these rules could cause serious 

economic drawbacks and harm our reputation. We support our employees 

worldwide by providing training measures to further entrench ethical behavior 

and ensure full compliance with our regulations. Regardless of their geographic 

location, our employees receive in-depth training on corruption prevention.
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Data privacy and trade secrets

Our business model as a leading technology company conducting innovative 

research and development activities is subject to particularly high protection 

requirements. The protection of trade secrets includes confidential treatment 

of research and development data, know-how, confidential business figures 

including planning and budgets, and data related to customers and employees. 

The SBO Group maintains a data protection regime that is based on the 

regulations established by the European Union (EU General Data Protection 

Regulation / EU GDPR).

Climate change

The energy sector is undergoing a long-term transformation process aimed 

at gradually replacing fossil fuels with renewable energy sources. A tightened 

climate policy and the resulting decline in the demand for crude oil could impact 

the business of the SBO Group. However, energy transition will be achieved 

only with the reasonable use of fossil energy resources, as they are important 

raw materials for renewable energy technologies. Moreover, gas will remain 

indispensable in the energy mix and play a crucial role in the phase-out of coal. 

SBO therefore sees itself as part of the energy transition and considers climate-

related risks to its business model as low.

The risks identified were evaluated internally and incorporated into the work procedures 

and manuals. Implementation of the measures was checked in regular (remote) audits. In 

the 2020 financial year, we focused on numerous topics, such as water consumption and 

the volumes of waste generated. Regarding employees, appropriate precautions against 

COVID-19 were taken to keep the risk of infection as low as possible. As a result, the 

infection rate remained at a low level in total.
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PART 2: 
AREAS OF SUSTAINABILITY 
AND DEVELOPMENTS 
IN 2020___

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN 2020 AT A GLANCE:

THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND ITS EFFECTS

In 2020, the global economy was marked by the massive worldwide effects of the 

COVID-19 pandemic. The SBO Group was not immune to this development. After a good 

start into the year, the lockdowns imposed in many countries in spring led to a slowdown 

or even a standstill in global economic processes. In order to mitigate the negative effects, 

we took pro-active measures at all our locations at an early stage. We were frontrunners 

in the digitalization of shareholder meetings: In April, the SBO Group held the first virtual 

annual general meeting in German-speaking countries to inform shareholders about the 

financial year and the situation of the company and arrange for a dialogue amid global 

pandemic-related precautions. 
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MEASURES TO PROTECT OUR EMPLOYEES

We introduced strict precautionary measures in the production operations of our 

subsidiaries. In addition to educating employees, we launched tightened hygiene 

measures, maintained minimum distances and blocked access in cases of suspicion. 

Travel activities were reduced accordingly and administrative staff switched to work from 

home where reasonable and possible. Strict adherence to all government regulations was 

maintained.

MEASURES TO MITIGATE THE ECONOMIC REPERCUSSIONS

Pro-active crisis management is one of the core competencies of the SBO management 

team. Restructuring measures, such as most recently the closure of the unprofitable 

branches in the United Kingdom and Mexico conducted in the past, benefited our 

Group against a background marked by COVID-19. High liquidity and a sound balance 

sheet support our position even in a challenging environment and ensure our long-term 

success. Consistent working capital management, generation of high cashflows and 

precautionary borrowing of loans improved our liquidity base that had been strong even 

before. Spending was reduced to a minimum and cost savings were implemented as 

part of crisis management. This did not include the area of research and development: 

Innovation is one of our strategic core areas for organic growth. Therefore, as in previous 

times of crisis, we did not cut back on any projects or expenses in this area.

The capacities of the SBO Group had to be adjusted according to local requirements. 

Capacity utilization varied greatly from region to region during the year. While management 

continuously adjusted the headcount at the SBO subsidiaries to the order level, retaining 

our core team was a top priority. Overall, the number of employees in the SBO Group fell 

by 26.3 % to 1,131 employees worldwide. For details, please refer to the chapter "social 

and human resources concept".

However, the professional crisis management of the SBO Group does not only focus on 

the prevailing market situation and staff downsizing required in times of crisis. Decisions 

are made with foresight. One of the Group's strengths is to mobilize quickly when the 

first signs of recovery start to appear. Launching prudent action is essential to take on 

employees promptly and ramp up spending. 
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SHORT, MEDIUM AND LONG-TERM IMPACT

Global economic output was severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. 

Forecasts for the short-term impact on the global economy remain subject to a high 

degree of uncertainty. The majority of the SBO Group's products and services are used 

in the oil and gas market.

In the medium term, demand for oil and gas will rise again, and there should even be a 

pent-up demand for spending in exploration and production. It is an undisputed fact that 

oil and gas will continue to play a key role in the world's energy supply for decades to 

come and cover more than 50 % of global energy demand. 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENERGY TRANSITION

The COVID-19 pandemic and the lockdowns in many countries had an immediate effect on 

the energy demand and the global carbon dioxide emissions. These effects on the global 

climate were also discussed in public and a accelerated energy turnaround was called for.

The SBO Group supports with the offering of subsidiaries the security of supply. Oil 

natural gas are relevant to warrant security of supply, as they are major commodities for 

technologies in the field of renewable energies. In addition, increased use of gas can 

also reduce carbon dioxide emissions from electricity generation and thus contribute 

to a reduced use of climate-damaging coal: Today, coal covers around 37 % of global 

electricity generation, while around 3 % comes from oil and 23 % from gas. This share 

shall reduce gradually over the decades to come. A reduction in the share of coal in the 

energy mix is important in order to secure a constant amount of carbon dioxide emissions 

of 33,274 Mt globally in an environment of a significantly increasing electricity production 

by approximately 50 % until year 2040.12

In their own production operations, the SBO subsidiaries pay attention to the efficient use 

of resources such as energy or water and continuously upgrade measures to keep their 

CO
2
 footprint structurally low. 

12	IEA World Energy Outlook 2020, Stated Policies Scenario.
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SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND PROFITABILITY

The focus of the SBO Group is on long-term, sustainable growth which is also at the 

core of its strategy. We pursue a selective niche strategy and grow organically, through 

research and development and through acquisitions, provided these form a meaningful 

extension of our portfolio. In doing so, we take a particularly far-sighted and responsible 

approach, enabling us to maintain and expand our sound market position continuously. Our 

approach, even in a year like 2020, when a global recession triggered by the COVID-19 

pandemic prevailed, is to ensure a high level of financial flexibility. We engage in active 

cash management, allowing us to pursue our strategy of sustainable growth even in times 

of crisis.

ORGANIC GROWTH

We aim to continuously expand our business areas and drive forward the market 

penetration of our products worldwide. Despite the prevailing market conditions in 2020, 

SBO subsidiaries focused on pushing ahead with the internationalization of the North 

American product offering.

The SBO Group further broadened its expertise in Direct Metal Laser Sintering (DMLS), an 

innovative 3D metal printing technology, in 2020. We operate one of the world's largest 

DMLS centers in our industry. To gradually establish and expand this business segment, 

we launched the new Diversified Methods and Industries (DMI) initiative that aims at 

using the skills of a dedicated team to drive the growth of our DMLS business, and the 

associated services and offering connected to it, in other industries as well.

One example is the aerospace sector, for which the SBO Group has been certified 

since 2016. Therefore it is possible to supply the demanding aerospace industry with 

special parts made of stainless steel. 
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

One of the core competences of the SBO Group is its ongoing commitment to research 

and development (R&D). Even in a crisis-ridden year like 2020 requiring numerous cost-

cutting measures, we did not cut back on spending for innovations. They will help our 

subsidiaries to provide our customers with new products and services and expand our 

market lead in line with the market recovery.

This is why we pushed ahead with our innovations in 2020:

Direct Metal Laser Sintering (DMLS) – We are part of a three-phase research project 

for the aerospace and aeronautics industry dedicated to the production of a new type 

of material that is to be introduced across industries. We have also developed a high-

precision manufacturing machine for 3D printing, the first in the world to have a one-meter 

Z axis. This will allow us to 3D-print large parts, opening up more markets.

Smart Dart System – The innovative Smart Dart system, which combines the benefits of 

both an efficient Plug-n-Perf and Sliding Sleeve solution for well completion, was launched 

on the market. Early in 2021, the portfolio of Smart Dart options was further expanded with 

a limited-entry system featuring a single dart that opens multiple sleeves in a frac phase.

Dissolvable Plugs – In well completion, a new approach was developed for a dissolvable 

plug that better suits current market conditions. This will provide us with an easy-to-use, 

optimized-design and cost-efficient plug to complement our program for this field of 

application.

With its HydraFlow, SBO has developed a hydraulically activated thru-tubing multiple 

activation bypass tool that can be activated and deactivated without using balls, darts, 

RFID chips or electronic pulses. Operators achieve effective well cleaning and well 

management while maintaining high downhole flow rates.

The PBL BOOSTER Bypass Tool is used for controlled distribution of the drilling and 

completion fluid within the drill string.

These examples and many other innovations under development in our global network 

demonstrate that we are actively working to maintain our quality leadership.
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ACQUISITIONS

Selective acquisitions in attractive niches for the SBO Group round off our sustainable 

growth strategy. In the past two decades, we were gradually uniting numerous successful 

subsidiaries under the umbrella of the SBO Group. We are constantly screening the 

market for acquisition candidates that could be a meaningful addition to our capabilities 

in our niches. We are searching for applications in and outside the oil and gas industry to 

expand our business sustainably. 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONCEPT

As a provider of sophisticated manufacturing processes, our group of companies places 

high value to minimizing the footprint on the planet created by our industrial production 

activities. We regularly analyze our processes and their impact on the environment, identify 

and gradually implement potential optimizations. We report our progress on sustainable 

management in our regular publications. Our environmental measures are adapted to site-

specific conditions. We work consistently to ensure supreme quality and to further reduce 

waste generation and energy and water consumption. We succeeded in doing this again 

in 2020: On the one hand, clearly as an effect of the decline in business caused by the 

COVID-19 pandemic, but on the other hand also of the specific measures that the SBO 

Group has actively taken to improve its ecological footprint. 
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QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Our guiding principle "Quality First" is a fundamental component of our global activities 

and integrated in stringent quality management. As a quality and technology leader, we 

set ourselves the highest standards for our products and in production. We are constantly 

working on the reliability and performance of our products and further improvement of 

our production processes. Each product is specified on the basis of clearly defined 

characteristics and is then inspected continuously. Each production step is recorded in a 

quality control chart and confirmed by the employees in charge. 

Our quality management accompanies the complete product life cycle and ranges from 

the manufacturing process to our service and repair shops, which safeguard optimal 

maintenance of our products. We document and analyze complaints and improve the 

products and processes concerned. The machines of the SBO Group meet state-of-the-

art standards and are regularly measured against them. By ensuring the highest possible 

quality we not only maintain our competitiveness, but also strengthen our customers' trust 

in the SBO Group and in our subsidiaries.

In the SBO Group's high-precision production manufacturing, material-adapted and precise 

machining of non-magnetic specialty steels, accuracy and quality assurance are essential 

factors. This also includes additive manufacturing processes of metal components in 3D 

printing which the SBO Group intends to use to gradually open up new sectors. As global 

technology leader, SBO produces components such as those that are used by customers 

in various industries and for directional drilling for oil and gas. This technology develops 

reservoirs with utmost precision and achieves a high recovery rate with only one mother 

well over a large number of horizontal wells. Drilling motors produced by the SBO Group, 

are designed to be extremely reliable and powerful in achieving high penetration rates also 

in hard rock formations. Special tools in our range are used to clean or seal boreholes as 

needed during the drilling process, reducing the risk of pressure fluctuations in the drilling 

fluid.

Regular quality tests guarantee the compliance with the quality standards at our production 

sites. Many of our worldwide locations work according to the leading industry standards 

API Spec Q1, 7-1 and/or ISO 9001 and are audited accordingly at regular intervals. At 
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our Ternitz site, we have additionally obtained certification according to EN ISO 14001 

(environmental management).

We have automated or digitalized work steps in the areas of quality management as 

well as product and process control by using up-to-date software solutions to automate 

processes in production that require intensive planning and are prone to errors. This saves 

time, reduces costs and leads to a significant increase in overall efficiency at a lower rate 

of defects.

To ensure that our suppliers meet the defined high quality standards of SBO they are 

evaluated at regular intervals with regard to the materials supplied and their certifications. 

In case of critical suppliers, we carry out assessments on site, first article inspection or 

an analysis of the origin of the product concerned. If a supplier does not meet our high 

standards, we will terminate the business relationship in case of doubt.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND CO2 EMISSIONS

The production of our products requires a lot of energy, mainly electricity. SBO's subsidiaries 

source electricity largely from public power grids, trying to avoid the use of generators 

where possible. We strive to reduce our energy consumption through ongoing efficiency 

REDUCE CO2 
EMISSIONS

BEST POSSIBLE USE  
OF RESOURCES

LOWER ENERGY 
CONSUMPTION
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enhancement and make the best possible use of the resources applied. Our clear aim is 

to gradually reduce SBO's CO
2
 emissions.

At our largest production site in Ternitz we operate a photovoltaic system with a total 

output of 720 kWp (kilowatt peak). Part of our electricity demand in production can 

therefore be covered with renewable energy, a contribution to reducing CO
2
 emissions. 

We are constantly enhancing our use of resources, especially through the continuous 

improvement of our systems.

Total energy consumption in production in 2020 fell to 9,836.1 gigajoules (GJ), a decrease 

of 23.3 % from the previous year (2019: 12,825.0  GJ). Calculated carbon dioxide 

emissions fell by 23.5 % to 10,160.2 tonnes (2019: 13,288.3 tonnes). Therefore, both 

energy consumption and CO
2
 emissions dropped, mainly due to scaled down production 

activities in the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION OF THE SBO GROUP
UNIT 2020 2019

Energy consumption* GJ 9,836.1 12,825.0

Carbon emissions Tonnes 10,160.2 13,288.3

* �Energy consumption based on the calculation of the Umweltbundesamt (Federal Environmental Office) as at October 2017 
(for more information see: http://www5.umweltbundesamt.at/emas/co2mon/co2mon.html)
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WATER CONSUMPTION

Since water is one of the most valuable resources in our world SBO pays great attention 

to its economical, efficient and careful use at all locations. The main objectives of our water 

management are the reduction of water consumption, efficient use of water resources and 

appropriate waste water treatment. As water-based emulsions are essential coolants in 

the machining of stainless steels, we use circulation water instead of process water for 

cooling machines at some production sites.

In recent years, the SBO Group has taken numerous measures to structurally reduce its 

water consumption. Considerable improvements have been achieved, especially at the 

site in Austria. In the coming years, it is planned to change over additional machines to 

circulating water, which should bring about further savings.

In 2020, the SBO Group used 83,687.4 cbm of water worldwide (2019: 89,947.7 cbm). 

Some sites source water supply simultaneously from industrial water and public water 

pipelines, with the main focus on industrial water. The reduction in water consumption by 

7.0 % is due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the associated lower production output. In 
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addition, water consumption (cooling water) varies from machine to machine, and changes 

in water consumption may occur due to different capacity utilization.

WATER WITHDRAWAL OF THE SBO GROUP			 

UNIT 2020 2019

Water withdrawal* cbm 83,687.4 89,947.7

thereof industrial water cbm 54,900.9 58,806.9

thereof water from public systems cbm 28,786.5 31,140.8

* Water withdrawal at the respective operating site, if identified reliably

WASTE MANAGEMENT

As early as when developing and selecting materials, in particular stainless steels, the SBO 

Group pays attention to the reduction of pollutant-containing raw materials. As a result, 

production rejects are largely free from pollutants and their disposal is environmentally 

safe. As a fundamental principle, we order materials close to limit specifications such as 
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shape and size, therefore requiring less material, avoiding unnecessary production waste 

and reducing our ecological footprint as transport volumes are kept low.

Within the SBO Group, a sound input-output ratio is achieved in most manufacturing 

processes. In order to minimize production waste and retain it in the value chain, we sell a 

large portion of steel chips from the production process as valuable raw material for steel 

production. Waste that cannot be reused is disposed of at all locations in accordance 

with the latest environmental standards. Depending on the location, lubricants such as 

production oils are collected during oil separation in ongoing production, filtered and 

reintroduced in the production cycle. Continuously increasing the recycling rate is part of 

the environmental management at SBO.

In 2020, 3,047.3 tonnes of total waste were generated across the Group (2019: 

3,862.5 tonnes). This included 759.6 tonnes of hazardous waste, representing a share of 

24.9 %. In addition to metal waste from production that is classified as hazardous under 

the Basel Convention, hazardous waste also includes contaminated cleaning water from 

tools used in drilling operations. Total waste fell by 21.1 % due to lower production activity 

during the COVID-19 pandemic.

WASTE MANAGEMENT OF THE SBO GROUP
UNIT 2020 2019**

Total waste* Tonnes 3,047.3 3,862.5

thereof non-hazardous waste Tonnes 2,287.7 3,005.5

thereof hazardous waste Tonnes  759.6 857.0

Internationally shipped waste  
classified as hazardous  
(acc. to Basel Convention) Tonnes 0.0 0.0

*	� Total waste including production waste and packaging material. Hazardous waste including waste water contaminated 
by hazardous waste. Definition of hazardous waste based on Basel Convention 

**	Restated due to uniform definition of "hazardous waste"
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SOCIAL AND HUMAN RESOURCES CONCEPT

The SBO Group is convinced that its well-trained and, in many areas, even highly 

specialized employees are crucial to sustainable business success. The teams in the 

production department of SBO's subsidiaries ensure top-notch quality of our products 

and thus the satisfaction of our customers. We protect and promote our experienced team 

and provide an appealing, safe working environment. Our common core values building 

on mutual respect, trust and professionalism provide a sound basis for communication 

between our employees and management.

We create and promote equal opportunities and diversity: We hire our employees based 

on their qualifications and regardless of nationality, origin, ethnic and political affiliation or 

belief. We have established employee representation at all locations where our employees 

have asked us to do so. We respect the fundamental right to freedom of association in our 

worldwide subsidiaries and, where established, maintain a good understanding with the 

works council as well as the trade unions.

In an environment hit by COVID-19, we took far-reaching measures in the 2020 financial 

year to protect the health of our employees and ensure their highest possible safety. 

Strict guidelines and precautions were implemented at our production sites, including 

mandatory face masks, maintaining safe distances, regular disinfection, dissolving group 

rooms and prohibiting third-party staff from entering our premises. Delivering appropriate 

information and training, we raised our workforce's awareness for the importance of these 

measures and urged them to strict compliance. This approach aims to ensure that health 

risks are minimized or systematically avoided. Where feasible, we arranged for options 

to work from home in the administrative area. Meetings were largely switched to video 

conferences, and business trips were replaced by video or telephone conferences. 
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HEALTH AND SAFETY AT WORK

Launching systematic measures, the SBO Group ensured that the risks of illness and 

health hazards in the Company were kept as low as possible throughout its worldwide 

network soon after the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. Our pronounced goal was 

and remains the best possible protection of our team from infections. At some sites, we 

additionally offer employees COVID-19 rapid tests. We developed appropriate guidelines 

at an early stage and implemented them without delay to largely prevent internal COVID-19 

infections in order to pro-actively avoid relevant interruptions to operations. These and 

other specific operating instructions help us minimize the risk of infection in the workplace.

We are committed to the standards of the Occupational Health and Safety Assessment 

Series (OHSAS). Apart from our internal rules for the prevention of COVID-19 infections, we 

have introduced a number of activities to keep our staff healthy and productive, including 

first aid courses for medical care in emergencies. At some sites, and in consideration of 

the COVID-19-preventive measures, we offer access to gyms, and in some cases we 

have set up separate fitness rooms.

Safety in the workplace is a top priority at SBO. We have established strict internal safety 

guidelines and their compliance is regularly monitored. They consist of clearly defined work 

processes and responsibilities, path markings and stringent instructions for the use of 

equipment and machinery. Employees are continuously updated on the applicable safety 

guidelines and local legal provisions on occupational safety. The aim is to avoid accidents 

and eliminate sources of accidents as far as possible. Depending on local conditions, we 

have appropriate checklists and emergency plans in place.

Where necessary and possible, we regularly upgrade our processes to ensure even 

greater safety. We encourage our employees to play an active role and take action against 

potentially unsafe working practices. Thanks to the consistent implementation of these 

measures, the number of work-related accidents is low throughout the Group. The lost 

time injury rate (LTIR) in 2020 was 12.9 accidents per one million working hours (2019: 

11.9 accidents per one million working hours). The severity of accidents (SA) was 9.0 lost 
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workdays per incident (2019: 5.4 lost workdays per incident). We actively strive to keep 

the number of incidents low. All incidents are documented and reviewed for improvement 

potentials.

SAFETY AT WORK
UNIT 2020 2019

Lost-time incident*
Number of accidents involving lost 
workdays (1 day or more) 32 36

Work-related fatality Number 0 0

Lost time injury rate (LTIR)

Number of accidents involving lost 
workdays (1 day or more) per 1 million 
working hours 13 12

Fatal accident rate (FAR)
Number of fatalities per  
1 million working hours 0 0

Severity of accident (SA)

Number of lost workdays (calendar 
days without accident date) in relation 
to the number of accidents  
(i. e. average lost workdays) 9 5

* Incidents included from lost time of 8 working hours

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT AND  
FLEXIBLE WORK-TIME MODELS

The COVID-19 pandemic that prevailed in 2020 spared no continent and hardly any 

industry. The SBO Group also had to adapt its capacities to the decline in business. We 

made the necessary personnel adjustments depending on the location. In North America, 

where business declined the most, we had to downsize our team by more than 40 %. 

The Austrian location recorded largely high capacity utilization and therefore only a small 

reduction in the headcount. In addition, a specific model was implemented there allowing 

employees to accumulate overtime in strong business phases and reduce it again in times 

of crisis. This helps us to keep jobs and highly qualified employees as long as possible and 

only make selective adjustments. Despite the crisis-ridden environment we pushed ahead 

with training and further education in 2020 and increased the number of our apprentices 

to 27. Since 1 January  2021, we have used the option of short-time work for part of our 

workforce in Austria. 
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TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY TYPE OF EMPLOYMENT,  
GENDER AND REGION*� 31.12.2020

EMPLOYEES AUSTRIA

NORTH AMERICA 
(INCLUDING 

MEXICO) REST OF WORLD TOTAL

Total 353 464 314 1,131

Status

White-collar 69 204 129 402

Blue-collar 257 260 185 702

Apprentices 27 0 0 27

GENDER

Men 314 414 265 993

Women 39 50 49 138

* Total number each as at December 31, countries defined by registered seat of the employing company 

TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY TYPE OF EMPLOYMENT,  
GENDER AND REGION*� 31.12.2019

EMPLOYEES AUSTRIA

NORTH AMERICA 
(INCLUDING 

MEXICO) REST OF WORLD TOTAL

Total 393 788 354 1,535

STATUS

White-collar 77 312 126 515

Blue-collar 293 476 228 997

Apprentices 23 0 0 23

GENDER

Men 350 698 304 1,352

Women 43 90 50 183

* Total number each as at December 31, countries defined by registered seat of the employing company 
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Our Company offers flexible working time models worldwide depending on the specific 

function. It goes without saying that we comply with local working time restrictions and 

regulations. Full-time and part-time employment models are offered in central work areas. 

In 2020, 2.7 % of our employees worked part-time (2019: 1.9 %).

TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY TYPE OF EMPLOYMENT AND REGION� 2020

TYPE OF CONTRACT AUSTRIA

NORTH AMERICA 
(INCLUDING 

MEXICO)
REST OF  
WORLD TOTAL

Total 353 464 314 1,131

Full-time 338 462 300 1,100

Part-time 15 2 14 31

TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY TYPE OF EMPLOYMENT AND REGION� 2019

TYPE OF CONTRACT AUSTRIA

NORTH AMERICA 
(INCLUDING 

MEXICO)
REST OF  
WORLD TOTAL

Total 393 788 354 1,535

Full-time 373 788 345 1,506

Part-time 20 0 9 29

Performance-related remuneration is an important pillar in attracting and retaining the best 

specialists for our company. This is why we attach great importance to sound remuneration. 

Depending on the success of the company, our employees receive performance-related 

variable remuneration in addition to their regular pay.

We not only invest financially in the employees of the SBO Group, but, in addition to 

mandatory schemes, also offer them ongoing training and further education programs. 
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We provide a productive, innovative work environment and encourage our workforce 

actively to make their contribution to further product development. At our site in Ternitz, 

we train the skilled workers of tomorrow under our apprentice program, which we have 

developed specifically for the tasks at SBO. SBO has repeatedly received awards for 

this commitment to training. In 2020, the focus clearly was on information measures and 

training our employees on the operational regulations for protection against the corona 

virus.

In 2020, the focus of training was not only on operational topics. At 48 %, the main 

emphasis was on health and safety, technical education and further training stood at 40 %. 

In addition, in-depth training was provided in applied IT (10 %). In total, 17,407 hours of 

training were completed.

EDUCATION AND FURTHER TRAINING BY EMPLOYEE CATEGORY AND 
TRAINING FOCUS� 2020

TOTAL  
HOURS

HEALTH & 
SAFETY

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY

LEGAL & 
COMPLIANCE

TRAINING & 
QUALIFICATION MANAGEMENT ADMINISTRATION PRODUCTION

17,407 48 % 10 % 2 % 40 % 7 % 19 % 74 %

						    

EDUCATION AND FURTHER TRAINING BY EMPLOYEE CATEGORY AND 
TRAINING FOCUS� 2019

TOTAL  
HOURS

HEALTH & 
SAFETY

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY

LEGAL & 
COMPLIANCE

TRAINING & 
QUALIFICATION MANAGEMENT ADMINISTRATION PRODUCTION

24,260 35 % 5 % 5 % 55 % 9 % 16 % 75 %
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COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

For the SBO Group, partnership-based relationships with local communities are crucial. 

Our goal is to form strong communities and support the social environment at our 

sites. Therefore, it is essential for us to build and maintain mutual trust, foster respectful 

relationships and invest in local development. In this context, we provide financial support 

to organizations such as the Red Cross and other NGOs. 

CONCEPT FOR THE RESPECT FOR HUMAN RIGHTS AND 
FOR COMBATING CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY

RESPECT FOR HUMAN RIGHTS

The SBO Group conducts its business operations with the highest respect for the 

catalogue of internationally recognized human rights. We are committed to the principles 

of equal opportunity and equal treatment in working life, regardless of skin color, gender, 

origin, nationality, ethnic or political affiliation, religion, age, sexual orientation, language 

or physical or psychological impairments. We regard diversity as an important factor of 

success and promote diversity in our industry. A detailed description of the Diversity 

Concept of the SBO Group is available in the Corporate Governance Report.

Executives and employees are obliged to take appropriate action to detect, prevent and 

mitigate potential and actual violations of human rights. Our Code of Conduct confirms 

that we are committed to ethical conduct and integrity and that we consistently enforce 

such conduct worldwide, regardless of local conditions. No human rights violations were 

reported in the SBO Group during the period under review.
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COMPLIANCE AND PREVENTION OF CORRUPTION 

The SBO Group strives to earn the trust of stakeholders by firmly embedding transparency, 

predictability and an open communication policy in corporate management. Legally 

compliant and ethical conduct is essential to our reputation and a key factor for successful 

business development. The Compliance Management of the SBO Group ensures that the 

understanding of correct corporate governance is implemented uniformly throughout the 

Group and that risks and potential misconduct are identified and avoided at an early stage. 

Consistent compliance and corresponding, increased training in this area prevented fraud 

attempts via e-mail, which we recorded more frequently in 2020. Our measures launched 

in the area of data protection and data security were effective. During the changeover 

to work-from-home schemes, the necessary equipment was promptly provided for 

employees.

We encourage our employees to openly address any misconduct, incidents and 

situations that may not comply with the Code of Conduct, and also provide anonymous 

communication channels such as a separate online platform established for this purpose. 

In the 2020 financial year, there was no notification made on the whistleblowing platform.

We pursue a zero-tolerance policy with regard to any form of bribery, fraud and corruption. 

Group Management is committed to actively combating corruption and bribery and 

to complying with relevant laws and regulations. Any behavior that is contrary to the 

principles of business ethics and prudent business conduct will be sanctioned harshly. 

These requirements are laid down in strict Group-wide guidelines and are subject to zero 

tolerance for both employees and business partners.

Compliance with these strict prohibitions in day-to-day business is constantly monitored. 

Training and professional contact persons ensure that our employees follow the Group-

wide guidelines. In the period under review, no risks relating to corruption or bribery were 

identified at SBO. Furthermore, no official measures were taken with regard to potential 

corruption offences nor were legal claims asserted for breach of regulations.



"�Since 2005, we have been committed to the Austrian 
Code of Corporate Governance and have consistently 
followed and implemented these rules. In this way we 
contribute to strengthening confidence in Austrian companies 
and the Austrian capital market."
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 
REPORT
SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN OILFIELD EQUIPMENT 

Aktiengesellschaft (SBO) has committed itself to 

comply with the Austrian Corporate Governance Code 

since 2005 and has consistently implemented its rules. 

The Austrian Corporate Governance Code is a set of 

rules meeting international standards for responsible 

management and governance of companies. By 

observing the Austrian Governance Code, SBO makes 

a contribution to strengthen trust in Austrian companies 

and the Austrian capital market.

The Austrian Corporate Governance Code, as 

amended in January 2021 and applicable to this report, 

is accessible on the website of the Austrian Working 

Group for Corporate Governance at www.corporate-

governance.at.

SBO complies with the Austrian Corporate Governance 

Code. The rules of the Code are subdivided into three 

categories:

First: L-Rules (Legal Requirements): They describe 

mandatory legal requirements that must be 

complied with by law.

Second: C-Rules (Comply or Explain):

This category contains customary international 

provisions; non-compliance must be explained. 

Third: R-Rules (Recommendation): 

These rules are recommendations only;  

non-compliance requires neither disclosure nor 

explanation.

SBO complies fully with the mandatory legal require

ments (L-Rules). The disclosure requirements according 

to L-Rules 29a and 50 with respect to the remuneration 

of members of the Executive Board and the Supervisory 

Board, will be met in the remuneration report.

Regarding the 2020 financial year, SBO had to 

prepare both a consolidated and a non-consolidated 

Corporate Governance Report. Pursuant to Section 

267b in conjunction with Section 251 (3) UGB (Austrian 

Business Code), these reports may be merged into 

one report. Therefore, this report contains the data 

required pursuant to Section  243c  UGB as regards 

both the parent company (SBO) and the subsidiaries of 

SBO included in consolidation. The Diversity Concept 

according to Section 243c (2) (3) UGB is described in 

the subchapter "Diversity Concept".
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EXPLAIN

SBO largely complies with the C-Rules. Deviations are 

explained as follows (according to the guidelines under 

Annex 2b to the Austrian Corporate Governance Code):

C-Rule 27

The Rule stipulates, inter alia, that contracts with 

members of the Executive Board shall contain 

provisions to the effect that companies may reclaim 

variable remuneration components if it becomes 

clear that the member concerned has received them 

on the basis of false data. The provision to reclaim 

variable remuneration components from members 

of the Executive Board does not exist currently. New 

contracts and prolongations of contracts will, however, 

contain provisions in line with C-Rule 27 of the Austrian 

Corporate Governance Code, if it becomes clear that 

payment has been made based on evidently false data 

("Clawback"). 

C-Rule 28

The remuneration of 6,000 SBO shares per year agreed 

with Gerald Grohmann, Chairman of the Executive 

Board, is subject to a two-year restriction on disposal 

and encumbrance (instead of at least three years). In 

the opinion of the Supervisory Board, the objectives of 

C-Rule 28 are also achieved with a two-year retention 

period.

C-Rule 39

The Rule provides, inter alia, that a committee of the 

Supervisory Board shall be authorized to take decisions 

in urgent cases. As the Supervisory Board of SBO has 

only a limited number of members and took decisions 

promptly in urgent cases in the past, SBO has not set 

up such a committee. As it is always the full Supervisory 

Board that deals with such matters, this ensures that 

the expertise of all members of the Supervisory Board 

is taken into account in its decisions in urgent cases 

as well. 

C-Rule 41

In line with the Austrian Corporate Governance Code, 

the function of the Nomination Committee is exercised 

by the joint Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

instead of a Nomination Committee established 

separately from the Remuneration Committee. As 

the Executive Board consists of only two members 

and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is 

responsible for all other issues related to the Executive 

Board, this appears to be appropriate for efficiency 

purposes.
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THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

The rules of procedure for the Executive Board govern 

the composition and working method of the Executive 

Board, cooperation between the Executive Board and 

the Supervisory Board, the procedure in the event of 

conflicts of interest, information and reporting duties of 

the Executive Board and the approval requirements of 

the Supervisory Board which also extend to the material 

business transactions of the major subsidiaries. The 

Executive Board consists of two members whose 

allocation of responsibilities is regulated as described 

below. Fundamental decisions are the responsibility of 

the full Executive Board. These include, in particular, the 

specification of the company's objectives and definition 

of the corporate strategy. As a rule, the Executive 

Board holds meetings at least once a week to provide 

each other with information and adopt resolutions. 

The members of the Executive Board are obliged to 

keep each other informed of all important events and 

business transactions.

In the 2020 financial year the Executive Board was 

composed of the following members:

YEAR OF BIRTH DATE OF  
FIRST APPOINTMENT

END OF  
CURRENT TERM OF OFFICE

Gerald Grohmann  
Chief Executive Officer 1953 3 October 2001 31 December 2021

Klaus Mader  
Chief Financial Officer 1970 1 October 2015 30 September 2023

Since 24 March 2020, Gerald Grohmann has held 

one Supervisory Board mandate each at Berndorf AG, 

Berndorf Immobilien AG and Berndorf Automotive AG.

Allocation of responsibilities

Allocation of responsibilities and cooperation of the 

members of the Executive Board are governed by the 

rules of procedure for the Executive Board.

The Executive Board has not set up any committees. 

The areas of responsibility allocated to the members 

of the Executive Board have been laid down by the 

Supervisory Board as follows, notwithstanding the 

collective responsibility of the Executive Board:

Gerald Grohmann Strategy, marketing, technology, public relations, sustainability, compliance

Klaus Mader Finance and accounting, human resources and legal matters, digitalization

As representatives of the SBO parent company, the 

members of the Executive Board perform a supervisory 

function at the subsidiaries included in consolidation 

(see consolidated financial statements), similar to 

that of a supervisory board function in Austrian stock 

corporations, but no management or executive function.
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THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

In the 2020 financial year, the Supervisory Board was 

composed of five members elected by the Annual 

General Meeting:

YEAR OF BIRTH DATE OF  
FIRST APPOINTMENT

END OF  
CURRENT TERM OF OFFICE

Norbert Zimmermann 
Chairman 1947 10 April 1995 2022

Brigitte Ederer  
Deputy Chairwoman 1956 23 April 2014 2024

Helmut Langanger 1950 29 April 2003 2024

Karl Schleinzer* 1946 24 May 1995 2020

Wolfram Littich 1959 27 April 2016 2021

Sonja Zimmermann 1972 24 April 2018 2023

* Karl Schleinzer has retired from the Supervisory Board upon conclusion of the Annual General Meeting 2020.

According to the articles of association of SBO, each 

year one member of the Supervisory Board retired 

from the Supervisory Board at the end of the Annual 

General Meeting, safeguarding effective control by the 

shareholders. The retiring member can be reelected 

immediately.

Other seats in supervisory boards or comparable 

functions in Austrian or foreign listed companies are 

disclosed as follows:
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COMPANY FUNCTION

Norbert Zimmermann - -

Brigitte Ederer Marinomed Biotech AG
Member of the Board of Directors  

as Non-Executive Director

Helmut Langanger* - -

Karl Schleinzer** - -

Wolfram Littich - -

Sonja Zimmermann
Bank für Tirol und Vorarlberg 

Aktiengesellschaft
Member of the Board of Directors  

as Non-Executive Director

*	 The Supervisory Board mandate at EnQuest plc ended on 31 March 2020
**	Retired

No member of the Supervisory Board holds a 

management or supervisory function in one of the 

subsidiaries of the SBO Group included in consolidation. 

Working method of the Supervisory Board

In exercising its functions, in particular monitoring 

and strategic support of the Executive Board, the 

Supervisory Board discusses the situation and targets 

of the Company and adopts resolutions.

The rules of procedure for the Supervisory Board govern 

in detail the composition, working method and tasks 

of the Supervisory Board, the procedure in conflicts 

of interest, and all committees (Audit Committee, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee) and their 

responsibilities.

The Supervisory Board held five meetings in the period 

under review. Moreover, the Executive Board submitted 

several oral and written reports to the Supervisory Board 

to inform about the development of business and the 

situation of the Company and the Group companies. 

The main focus of discussions was on the strategic 

orientation and development of the Group and on major 

business transactions and measures taken.

All members of the Supervisory Board personally 

attended more than half of the meetings of the 

Supervisory Board in the period under review.

Committees

The Supervisory Board appoints the members of the 

Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee from among its members.

No separate Strategy Committee nor a committee 

to take decisions in urgent cases has been set up; 

pertinent matters are dealt with by the Supervisory 

Board collectively.

The committees are elected for the terms of office of 

their members. Each committee elects a chairman 

among from its members.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing 

and preparing the adoption of the annual financial 

statements, the proposal for the distribution of profits 

and the management report. The Audit Committee 

also reviews the consolidated financial statements. 

In particular, it is also responsible for monitoring 

the accounting process, the effectiveness of the 

internal control and risk management system, the 

independence and activities of the auditor (group 

auditor) and for approving non-audit services. It carries 

out the procedure for selecting the auditor (group 

auditor), taking into account the appropriateness of the 

fee, and makes a recommendation to the Supervisory 

Board for the auditor's appointment.

Members:	� Norbert Zimmermann (Chairman) 
Wolfram Littich 
Sonja Zimmermann

The Audit Committee held two meetings in the year 

under review, at which topics relating in particular to 

the annual financial statements and consolidated 

financial statements, the internal control system and 

risk management were discussed.

The effectiveness of the risk management system was 

assessed by an independent audit firm. The auditor's 

report on the assessment of the effectiveness of risk 

management was discussed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

deals with matters relating to the remuneration of the 

members of the Executive Board and of the Supervisory 

Board and the terms and conditions of the employment 

contracts concluded with members of the Executive 

Board. Furthermore, it submits to the Supervisory Board 

proposals to fill vacant positions in the Executive Board 

and deals with issues of succession planning. Unless 

allocated mandatorily to the responsibilities of the full 

Supervisory Board, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee is responsible for the following matters:

a. �negotiation, conclusion, amendment and termination 

of employment contracts with the members of the 

Executive Board, but not the appointment and 

dismissal of Executive Board members under 

company law

b. �establishment of the principles for the remuneration 

of members of the Executive Board (remuneration 

policy) as well as the determination of the specific 

remuneration components to be granted, including 

the underlying targets 

c. �preparation of the remuneration report on the 

remuneration of the members of the Executive Board

d. �approval of the granting of a loan to a member of the 

Executive Board by the Company 

e. �granting of an exemption from the non-competition 

clause 
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f. �establishment of the principles for the remuneration of 

the members of the Supervisory Board (remuneration 

policy) 

g. �preparation of the remuneration report on the 

remuneration of the members of the Supervisory 

Board

Members:	� Norbert Zimmermann (Chairman) 
Helmut Langanger* 
Karl Schleinzer** 
Sonja Zimmermann

*	� Helmut Langanger was appointed as a member of the Company's 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at the constituent Supervisory 
Board meeting on 23 April 2020

**	Retired

In the year under review, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee held one meeting.

Independence

Regarding independence criteria in accordance with 

C-Rule 53, the Supervisory Board follows the guidelines 

contained in Annex 1 of the Austrian Corporate 

Governance Code. According to the criteria to be used 

for determining independence pursuant to C-Rule 53 

under Annex 1 to the Austrian Code of Corporate 

Governance, the following members of the Supervisory 

Board are deemed to be independent of the Company 

and its Management Board:

	 �Norbert Zimmermann 
Brigitte Ederer 
Wolfram Littich 
Sonja Zimmermann

Therefore, the Supervisory Board is an independent 

body.

Brigitte Ederer and Wolfram Littich represent the 

interests of small shareholders in the Supervisory Board 

within the meaning of C-Rule 54 in conjunction with the 

criteria of independence defined by the Supervisory 

Board.

In the past year, no agreements requiring approval 

were in effect with members of the Supervisory Board 

or companies in which a member of the Supervisory 

Board held a considerable economic interest. The legal 

advisory services of the law firm Schleinzer & Partner, 

of which Karl Schleinzer is a partner, were provided 

by the latter on the basis of an authorization already 

granted in the past. The scope of activities provided 

by Supervisory Board member Karl Schleinzer to the 

Company as a legal advisor in the 2020 financial year 

is to be classified as not significant in accordance with 

Appendix 1 to the Austrian Corporate Governance 

Code (for details see the notes to the consolidated 

financial statements). Karl Schleinzer retired from the 

Supervisory Board upon conclusion of the Annual 

General Meeting 2020.
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MEASURES TO PROMOTE WOMEN

In the 2020 financial year, the share of men and women 

on the Executive Board and Supervisory Board was as 

follows:

EXECUTIVE BOARD AND 
SUPERVISORY BOARD*	 2020	 2019

GENDER GENDER

WOMEN MEN WOMEN MEN

ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE %

Supervisory Board 2 40 % 3 60 % 2 33 % 4 67 %

Executive Board 0 0 % 2 100 % 0 0 % 2 100 %

* Total number each as at 31 December

Since 2018, the Act on the Equal Status of Women and 

Men in the Supervisory Board (GFMA-G) has stipulated 

a mandatory gender quota of at least 30 % for new 

Supervisory Board members, rounded to full numbers of 

persons, provided that the Supervisory Board consists 

of at least six members (shareholder representatives) 

and at least 20 % of the workforce are female or male 

employees. With the re-appointment of Brigitte Ederer 

as member of the Supervisory Board of the Company 

in the year 2019, the quota was maintained, as two 

of the total of five seats on the Supervisory Board are 

occupied by women. Hence, the objectives described 

in the chapter "Diversity Concept" were continued as 

well.

SBO has a very lean corporate structure with equally 

lean hierarchies. Accordingly, we do not use the 

term "senior executives" and refrain from reporting in 

this regard. It would be distorting to mention only the 

managing directors of the subsidiaries.
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DIVERSITY CONCEPT___

The cyclical industry environment of the oilfield service 

industry is a constant challenge to the management 

and supervisory bodies of SBO and of the subsidiaries 

included in consolidation. Massive periodic fluctuations 

of demand for the products of the Company require 

vast managerial expertise and understanding of 

the forces prevailing in this sector. Additionally, the 

international positioning of the Company calls for a 

cautious approach to the cultural situation in the various 

markets.

Regarding the composition of the Executive Board 

and the Supervisory Board of the Company, the 

Company does not apply a Diversity Concept within 

the meaning of Section 243c (2) (3) UGB (Austrian 

Commercial Code), as the sustained implementation 

of such a concept would lead to significant restrictions 

for a company operating in the oilfield service industry. 

Instead, the two qualitative criteria of "key competence" 

and "experience", their maintenance and expansion, 

have been defined as material for filling positions in 

management and supervisory bodies. All individuals in 

the Supervisory Board are renowned experts in their 

respective fields, sharing their expertise in the meetings 

of the Supervisory Board. It spans from pertinent 

experience in the industry, cross-sectoral supervisory 

and/or managerial experience to qualifications in specific 

subject matters. Additionally, shareholders request 

a minimum of interpersonal homogeneity and loyalty 

ensuring a systematic pursuit of SBO's sustainable 

growth strategy. This request reaches far beyond 

prescribing explicit gender quotas. Nevertheless, 

SBO shares the view that when different generations, 

genders and cultures meet, such is important for further 

corporate development. For many years, it has been 

daily practice at SBO to make judgments on equal 

terms and beyond hierarchical structures. This is why 

new appointments for positions are guided both by 

professional qualifications and the human component.

In the 2020 financial year, the Diversity Concept was 

reflected across the entire SBO Group as follows: When 

hiring new employees, attention was paid to maintain 

a diversified and high-performing team. The share of 

newly hired staff above 50 years of age was 12 %.
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NEW HIRES BY GENDER AND AGE*� 2020

AGE

< 30 30 - 50 > 50 TOTAL

ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE %

Men 79 42 % 88 47 % 21 11 % 188 87 %

Women 12 43 % 12 43 % 4 14 % 28 13 %

Total 91 42 % 100 46 % 25 12 % 216  

* �New hires including permanent hires and personnel taken over from other SBO companies

NEW HIRES BY GENDER AND AGE*� 2019

AGE

< 30 30 - 50 > 50 TOTAL

ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE %

Men 161 37 % 220 51 % 54 12 % 435 91 %

Women 16 38 % 20 48 % 6 14 % 42 9 %

Total 177 37 % 240 50 % 60 13 % 477  

* �New hires including permanent hires and personnel taken over from other SBO companies

The Group-wide share of women in new hires in 2019 

was 13 %, and the share of women in the overall 

workforce at the end of the year came to 12 %. 

Moreover, it seems that the oilfield service industry in 

general is less attractive to women. 
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TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY GENDER AND AGE*	�  2020

AGE

< 30 30 - 50 > 50 TOTAL

ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE %

Men 182 18 % 589 60 % 222 22 % 993 88 %

Women 18 13 % 89 65 % 31 22 % 138 12 %

Total 200 18 % 678 60 % 253 22 % 1,131  

* �Total number each as at 31 December

TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY GENDER AND AGE*	�  2019

AGE

< 30 30 - 50 > 50 TOTAL

ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE %

Men 284 21 % 783 58 % 285 21 % 1,352 88 %

Women 38 21 % 111 60 % 34 19 % 183 12 %

Total 322 21 % 894 58 % 319 21 % 1,535  

* �Total number each as at 31 December

The low attractiveness of the industry to women is 

clearly reflected in terms of the respective activity. 

Women accounted for 25 % of white-collar workers and 

only 5 % of blue-collar workers (including apprentices). 

In yearly comparison, the proportion of women was 

slightly higher in comparison to the previous year. 
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TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY GENDER AND AGE*� 2020

TYPE OF EMPLOYMENT

FEMALE WHITE-
COLLAR / MALE 
WHITE-COLLAR

FEMALE BLUE-
COLLAR / MALE 
BLUE-COLLAR APPRENTICE TOTAL

ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE %

Men 303 75 % 664 95 % 26 96 % 993 88 %

Women 99 25 % 38 5 % 1 4 % 138 12 %

Total 402  702  27  1,131  

* �Total number each as at 31 December

TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY GENDER AND AGE*	 2019

TYPE OF EMPLOYMENT

FEMALE WHITE-
COLLAR / MALE 
WHITE-COLLAR

FEMALE BLUE-
COLLAR / MALE 
BLUE-COLLAR APPRENTICE TOTAL

ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE % ABSOLUTE %

Men 399 77 % 931 93 % 22 96 % 1,352 88 %

Women 116 23 % 66 7 % 1 4 % 183 12 %

Total 515 997 23 1,535  

* �Total number each as at 31 December
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Regarding the international appointment of executives, 

professional and corporate culture aspects play a key 

role. All managing directors at SBO's subsidiaries look 

back on many years of experience in the industry. As far 

as possible, second-level management and controlling 

positions are held predominantly by nationals of the 

countries where the sites are located.

REPORT ABOUT THE EXTERNAL EVALUATION

C-Rule 62 Austrian Corporate Governance Code 

(ACGC) provides for a voluntary external evaluation 

of compliance with the C-Rules of the Code at least 

every three years. SBO commissioned DORDA 

Rechtsanwälte GmbH with the evaluation for the 2019 

financial year, excluding evaluation of C-Rules 77 to 

83 ACGC. The evaluation showed that SBO complied 

with the C-Rules of the ACGC in accordance with the 

declaration of compliance issued by SBO.



"�In 2020, we generated a strong cashflow, had a high 
liquidity position and recorded a net liquidity at year-end."
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100

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT 
AND LOSS STATEMENT___

IN TEUR
NOTE 2020 2019

Sales 24 291,159 445,256

Cost of goods sold 25 -225,086 -312,690

Gross profit 66,073 132,566

Selling expenses 25 -21,112 -27,493

General and administrative expenses 25 -38,817 -39,821

Other operating expenses 26 -18,226 -12,915

Other operating income 26 6,454 8,507

Profit from operations before impairments and 
restructuring measures -5,628 60,844

Restructuring gains 27 0 746

Restructuring losses 27 -2,146 -914

Impairment of property, plant and equipment 9,12 -1,665 -485

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets 9 -12,995 0

Impairment of current assets 7 -5,529 0

Profit / loss from operations after impairments and 
restructuring measures -27,963 60,191

Interest income 28 1,574 3,598

Interest expenses 28 -4,823 -8,699

Other financial income 16 0

Other financial expenses 29 0 -10,900

Gains / losses from remeasurement of option liabilities 20 0 3,699

Financial result -3,233 -12,302

Profit / loss before tax -31,196 47,889

Income taxes 30 9,496 -15,560

Profit / loss after tax -21,700 32,329

Average number of shares outstanding 15,775,631 15,953,973

EARNINGS PER SHARE IN EUR  
(BASIC = DILUTED) -1.38 2.03
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME___

IN TEUR
NOTE 2020 2019

Profit / loss after tax -21,700 32,329

Other comprehensive income 
to be reclassified to profit or loss 
in subsequent periods

Currency translation adjustment - subsidiaries 23 -31,291 8,412

Currency translation adjustment - other items1 23 -4,890 482

Income tax effect 30 0 0

Total Other comprehensive income 
to be reclassified to profit or loss 
in subsequent periods -36,181 8,894

Other comprehensive income not 
to be reclassified to profit or loss 
in subsequent periods

Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 18 64 -801

Income tax effect 30 -16 200

Total Other comprehensive income not 
to be reclassified to profit or loss 
in subsequent periods 48 -601

Other comprehensive income, net of tax -36,133 8,293

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX -57,833 40,622

1 Mainly the result from translation differences from net investments in foreign entities such as long-term receivables
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET___

ASSETS

IN TEUR
NOTE  31.12.2020  31.12.2019

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 313,950 265,211

Trade receivables 5 54,252 112,257

Income tax receivables 3,227 264

Other receivables and other assets 6 4,862 7,147

Assets held for sale 12 2,215 3,301

Inventories 7 114,015 141,956

Total current assets 492,521 530,136

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 8 121,362 146,647

Goodwill 9 117,708 140,435

Other intangible assets 9 14,463 26,271

Long-term receivables and assets 10 3,930 5,235

Deferred tax assets 11 27,903 25,885

Total non-current assets 285,366 344,473

TOTAL ASSETS 777,887 874,609
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET___
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

IN TEUR
NOTE  31.12.2020  31.12.2019

Current liabilities

Liabilities to banks 13 33,938 31,052

Current portion of long-term loans 17 25,236 47,596

Lease liabilities 21 2,222 2,595

Trade payables 17,072 24,736

Government grants 14 215 319

Income tax payable 1,191 7,392

Other liabilities 15, 20 138,415 155,518

Other provisions 16 6,562 3,014

Total current liabilities 224,851 272,222

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans 17 245,312 206,683

Lease liabilities 21 5,125 5,899

Government grants 14 89 304

Provisions for employee benefits 18 6,859 6,862

Other liabilities 19 8,484 11,858

Deferred tax liabilities 11 129 695

Total non-current liabilities 265,998 232,301

Equity

Share capital 22 15,723 15,955

Capital reserve 62,780 68,902

Legal reserve 23 785 785

Other reserves 19 19

Currency translation reserve 23 -3,747 32,434

Retained earnings 23 211,478 251,991

Total equity 287,038 370,086

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 777,887 874,609



104

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES IN EQUITY___

2020

IN TEUR SHARE 
CAPITAL

CAPITAL 
RESERVE

LEGAL 
RESERVE

OTHER 
RESERVES

CURRENCY 
TRANSLATION 

RESERVE

RETAINED 
EARNINGS

TOTAL

NOTE 22 23 23 23

1 January 2020 15,955 68,902 785 19 32,434 251,991 370,086

Profit / loss after tax -21,700 -21,700

Other comprehensive income, net of tax -36,181 48 -36,133

Total comprehensive income,  
 net of tax 0 0 0 0 -36,181 -21,652 -57,833

Dividend payment1 -18,861 -18,861

Acquisition of treasury shares -238 -6,442 -6,680

Share-based payment 6 320 326

31 December 2020 15,723 62,780 785 19 -3,747 211,478 287,038

1 The dividend per share amounted to EUR 1.20.

2019

IN TEUR SHARE 
CAPITAL

CAPITAL 
RESERVE

LEGAL 
RESERVE

OTHER 
RESERVES

CURRENCY 
TRANSLATION 

RESERVE

RETAINED 
EARNINGS

TOTAL

NOTE 22 23 23 23

1 January 2019 15,949 68,303 785 19 23,540 236,218 344,814

Profit after tax 32,329 32,329

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 8,894 -601 8,293

Total comprehensive income,  
net of tax 0 0 0 0 8,894 31,728 40,622

Dividend payment1 -15,955 -15,955

Share-based payment 6 599 605

31 December 2019 15,955 68,902 785 19 32,434 251,991 370,086

1 �The dividend per share amounted to EUR 1.00.
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CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW 
STATEMENT___

IN TEUR
NOTE 2020 2019

Profit / loss after tax -21,700 32,329

Depreciation, amortization and impairments 55,036 48,390

Adjustment for dividends relating to put / call options 29 0 10,665

Change in provisions for employee benefits -3 1,107

Gain / loss from sale of property, plant and equipment -844 -241

Income from release of government grants -319 -338

Other non-cash expenses and revenues 9,111 -2,877

Change in deferred taxes -4,719 -609

Cashflow from profit 36,562 88,426

Expenditures for the acquisition of non-controlling interests 20 -86 -21,192

Change in trade receivables 52,944 15,600

Change in other receivables and other assets -976 2,166

Change in inventories 18,610 7,121

Change in trade payables -5,573 2,372

Change in option liabilities 0 -3,699

Change in other liabilities and provisions -7,141 7,352

Cashflow from operating activities 39 94,340 98,146

Expenditures for property, plant and equipment -16,131 -31,363

Expenditures for intangible assets -104 -137

Change in payables for capital expenditure -618 708

Expenditures for the acquisition of non-controlling interests 20 0 -8,946

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,641 5,418

Cashflow from investing activities 39 -14,212 -34,320

Free Cashflow 80,128 63,826

Acquisition of treasury shares 22 -6,680 0

Dividend payment -18,861 -15,955

Repayment of lease liabilities -2,165 -2,961

Dividends paid relating to put / call options 0 -2,186

Change in liabilities to banks 3,509 -739

Proceeds from long-term loans 17 82,468 0

Repayments of long-term loans 17 -66,096 -18,309

Repayments of other long-term liabilities -1,836 -3,789

Cashflow from financing activities 39 -9,661 -43,939

Change in cash and cash equivalents 70,467 19,887

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 265,211 241,532

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents -21,728 3,792

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 39 313,950 265,211

Supplementary information on operating cashflow

Interest received 1,244 4,100

Interest paid -4,759 -4,981

Income tax paid -4,545 -11,569
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS___

NOTE 1

GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN OILFIELD EQUIPMENT Aktiengesellschaft (the Company, SBO) with its registered office 

at Hauptstrasse 2, 2630 Ternitz, was founded on 26 May 1994 in Ternitz, Austria and is registered in the Commercial 

Register at the Wiener Neustadt Commercial Court under no. 102999w. 

The purpose of the Company is the industrial production of components and parts for the oil and gas industry, primarily 

for drilling and completion applications and the provision of services in these areas.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Vienna Stock Exchange since 27 March 2003.

NOTE 2

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020 were prepared in accordance with the principles 

of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as well as the interpretations of the International Financial 

Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), as adopted by the EU. The additional requirements of Section 245a (1) 

of the Austrian Commercial Code (Unternehmensgesetzbuch, ‘UGB’) were also adhered to.
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These consolidated financial statements of SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN OILFIELD EQUIPMENT Aktiengesellschaft 

and its subsidiaries for the 2020 financial year (reporting date: 31 December 2020) were released for publication by 

the Executive Board on 2 March 2021.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in euro. Unless otherwise indicated, all values are rounded to 

thousands of euros (TEUR). The use of automated calculation aids may result in rounding differences in the totals of 

rounded amounts and percentage figures.

NOTE 3

SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

In addition to SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN OILFIELD EQUIPMENT Aktiengesellschaft as the ultimate parent, 33 

(previous year: 34) subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020:



108

	 Notes to the consolidated financial statements  |   CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	 �   

COMPANY

INTEREST HELD 
DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY  

IN %

INTEREST HELD 
DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY  

IN %

LOCATION 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN Oilfield Technology GmbH Ternitz, AT 100.00 100.00

Schoeller-Bleckmann Beteiligungs GmbH Ternitz, AT 100.00 100.00

Schoeller-Bleckmann America Inc. Wilmington, US 100.00 100.00

Knust-Godwin LLC Houston, US 100.00 100.00

Schoeller-Bleckmann Energy Services L.L.C.* Lafayette, US 97.00 97.00

Schoeller-Bleckmann Sales Co. L.L.C. Houston, US 100.00 100.00

The WellBoss Company, LLC** Houston, US 100.00 100.00

BICO Drilling Tools Inc.* Houston, US 98.45 97.85

BICO DRILLING TOOLS FZE* Dubai, UAE 98.45 97.85

BICO Faster Drilling Tools Inc.* Nisku, CA 90.57 87.09

The WellBoss Company, Inc. Calgary, CA 100.00 100.00

Schoeller-Bleckmann Oilfield Equipment (UK) Limited Rotherham, UK 100.00 100.00

Darron Tool and Engineering Limited Rotherham, UK 100.00 100.00

Darron Oil Tools Limited Rotherham, UK 100.00 100.00

Schoeller-Bleckmann Darron Limited* Aberdeen, UK 95.00 95.00

Schoeller-Bleckmann Darron (Aberdeen) Limited* Aberdeen, UK 94.00 94.00

Techman Engineering Limited Chesterfield, UK 100.00 100.00

Schoeller-Bleckmann (UK) Limited Chesterfield, UK 100.00 100.00

OOO "Schoeller-Bleckmann"* Noyabrsk, RU 99.00 99.00

DSI FZE Dubai, UAE 100.00 100.00

Schoeller Bleckmann Saudi LLC Al-Khobar, KSA 100.00 100.00

DSI PBL de Mexico S. A. de C. V. Villahermosa, MX 100.00 100.00

ADRIANA HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED* Dubai, UAE 99.00 99.00

Schoeller Bleckmann do Brasil, Ltda. Macaé, BR 100.00 100.00

Knust-SBD Pte. Ltd. Singapore, SG 100.00 100.00

Schoeller-Bleckmann Oilfield Equipment Middle East FZE Dubai, UAE 100.00 100.00

Schoeller-Bleckmann Oilfield Equipment Vietnam Co., Ltd. Binh Duong, VN 100.00 100.00

*	 Refer to Note 19 for details on shares held by the management of these companies. 
**	Refer to Note 20 for details on shares relating to prior year's option agreement.
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The interest in each company corresponds to the voting rights. Therefore, control of the subsidiary is derived directly 

from the interest held.

The following changes occurred in the scope of consolidation during 2020:

•	� In the financial year 2020 the 100 % group owned company Schoeller-Bleckmann de Mexico S. A. de C. V. 

(SBMEX), which had sold its assets already in 2019 after closing down its business, was liquidated and deleted 

from the company register with effect of 27 November 2020 (see Note 27).

�The Company has exercised the protective clause in accordance with Section 265 (3) UGB. 

�In accordance with sections 479A and 479C of the United Kingdom Companies Act 2006, SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN 

OILFIELD EQUIPMENT Aktiengesellschaft, as holding company of Schoeller-Bleckmann Oilfield Equipment (UK) Limited, 

Registered Company No. 03240818, Techman Engineering Limited, Registered Company No. 02458616 and Darron 

Tool and Engineering (Sheffield) Limited, Registered Company No. 00967870, has given a parental guarantee to 

enable those companies to claim exemption from audit. This guarantee relates to the year ended 31 December 2020.
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NOTE 4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The accounting policies applied in the previous year generally remain unchanged, with the exception of the following:

1. Changes in accounting principles

The Group applied the following new or amended standards and interpretations for the first time in the 2020 financial 

year. However, these standards and interpretations impacted the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 

2020 only if indicated by the word ‘yes’ in the table below:

STANDARDS /  
INTERPRETATIONS EFFECTIVE DATE1

MATERIAL IMPACT ON 
SBO GROUP’S FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS

IAS 1 
IAS 8 
Amendments Definition of Material 1.1.20201 no

IFRS 3 
Amendments

Business Combinations -  
Definition of a business 1.1.20201

potential application on future 
acquisitions

IFRS 9 
IAS 39 
IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1.1.20201 no

Amendments
References to the Conceptual Framework  
in IFRS Standards 1.1.20201 no

IFRS 16 
Amendments COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions  1.6.20201, 2 no

1 To be applied in the EU in reporting periods starting on or after the indicated date. 
2 Retrospective application for transactions before 1.6.2020.
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The following new or revised standards and interpretations which have been published but not adopted by the EU, 

or which are not yet mandatory, were not applied early in the 2020 financial year. They will be applied in the future 

reporting period for which application is mandatory.

STANDARDS /  
INTERPRETATIONS EFFECTIVE DATE1

MATERIAL IMPACT ON 
SBO GROUP’S FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS

IAS 1 
Amendments

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current 1.1.20232 no

IAS 1 
Amendments Disclosure of Accounting policies 1.1.20232 no

IAS 8 
Amendments

Accounting policies - Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors 1.1.20232 no

IAS 16 
Amendments

Property, Plant and Equipment (Proceeds before 
intended use) 1.1.20222 no

IAS 37 
Amendments Onerous Contracts: Costs of fulfilling a contract 1.1.20222 no

Annual 
Improvements

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 
2018-2020 Cycle 1.1.20222 no

IFRS 4 
Amendments

Insurance contracts - Extension of the temporary 
exemption from applying IFRS 9 1.1.20211 no

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1.1.20232 no

IFRS 3 
Amendments Reference to the conceptual framework 1.1.20222 no

IFRS 9, IAS 39, 
IFRS 7, IFRS 4, 
IFRS 16 
Amendments Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 1.1.20211 no

1 To be applied in the EU in financial years beginning on or after the indicated date. 
2 �This standard is not yet mandatory in the EU and was not applied early.  

The date indicated is the effective date as determined by the IAS.
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2. Reporting date

The reporting date of all companies included in the consolidated financial statements is 31 December.

3. Accounting of non-controlling interests in the consolidated financial statements

Non-controlling interests in the Group are recognized at the proportionate share of the remeasured identifiable net 

assets at the acquisition date. Subsequently, an appropriate share of net profit / loss after tax and other comprehensive 

income is allocated to non-controlling interests. Thus, a loss at the respective subsidiary could lead to a negative 

balance. Changes in the equity interest in a subsidiary without loss of control are recognized as equity transactions. 

For details on liabilities related to the option agreement exercised before the 2020 financial year, refer to Note 20.

4. Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in euros, the functional and reporting currency of the parent 

company. Each company within the Group sets its own functional currency. The items included in the financial 

statements of each company are measured using this functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the transaction date. Monetary items 

denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate as at the reporting date. Currency differences 

are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they occur. 

When preparing the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries which are 

prepared using their functional currency are translated into euros using the modified closing rate method:

• 	 Assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, are translated at the closing rate.

• 	 All income and expense items of foreign subsidiaries are translated using an average annual rate.
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Currencies developed as follows:

RATE ON REPORTING DATE AVERAGE ANNUAL RATE
1 EUR = 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 2020 2019

USD 1.2271 1.1234 1.1413 1.1196

GBP 0.8990 0.8508 0.8892 0.8773

CAD 1.5633 1.4598 1.5294 1.4857

MXN 24.4160 21.2202 24.5118 21.5573

BRL 6.3735 4.5157 5.8900 4.4135

VND 28,499.3 26,206.0 26,765.2 26,226.5

Currency translation differences from the inclusion of financial statements of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial 

statements, as well as from long-term foreign currency intragroup receivables that qualify as part of a net investment 

in a foreign entity, are recorded in the consolidated financial statements within equity under the item CURRENCY 
TRANSLATION RESERVE; the change in the current year is presented under OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 

5. Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities with a residual term of up to one year are classified as current, those with a residual term of more 

than one year as non-current. Residual terms are determined as at the reporting date.

Operating assets and liabilities, such as trade receivables and trade payables, are always classified as current even if 

their maturity is more than 12 months after the reporting date as this corresponds to the usual business cycle.
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6. Financial instruments

Transactions of financial instruments are recognized at the settlement date.

Categories according to IFRS 9

The consolidated balance sheet includes the following financial instruments in accordance with IFRS 9:

AT AMORTIZED COST

Financial assets

All cash balances, demand deposits, and short-term highly-liquid financial investments that can be converted to 

known amounts of cash and cash equivalents on demand, and which are subject to only insignificant fluctuations in 

value included under the item CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, are classified as cash funds. Current investments 

are non-derivative financial assets not held for trading that are available-for-sale assets with a term of less than three 

months.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not listed on an active market mainly 

comprise of TRADE RECEIVABLES as well as other loans issued and receivables (these loans were granted to the 

managers of subsidiaries for shares or participation rights), and are reported within LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES AND 
ASSETS.

Receivables are recognized at cost at the settlement date and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using 

the effective interest method, less any allowances for impairments. Gains and losses are recognized in consolidated 

profit or loss due to amortization under the effective interest method, upon impairment or when a loan or receivable is 

derecognized.
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The Company grants payment terms to its customers at customary business terms, but generally does not require any 

additional collateral or payment guarantees to secure the amounts due. Occasional customers and customers located 

in high risk countries from whom the Company obtains confirmed letters of credit are excluded from this policy. Trade 

receivables that are granted beyond the normal payment terms bear interest at arm’s length rates.

The Group uses a simplified method to calculate the expected credit loss for trade accounts receivable. Receivables 

are regularly evaluated and, if necessary, allowances for doubtful accounts are established. These allowances are 

sufficient to cover the expected default risk, actual defaults result in derecognition of the respective receivable. The 

decision of whether to account for the default risk by means of allowances or to derecognize the receivable depends 

on the reliability of the assessment of the risk situation.

Management evaluates the adequacy of the allowances for doubtful accounts based on experienced credit defaults. 

An impairment matrix is used that considers the maturity structure of receivables and experiences with regard to 

defaults during the past 5 years, whereby unsuccessful legal measures were also considered as default after 3 years, 

and customer creditworthiness as well as changes in payment behavior. Due to the cyclicality in the oilfield service 

industry and recurring economic downturns and upswings in the industry, future expectations regarding potential bad 

debt patterns can also be derived from historical developments. Stringent receivables management, which includes 

close coordination with the sales department from the acceptance of the order to the receipt of payment, ongoing 

credit checks to reduce credit risk, as well as close monitoring of payment behaviour, not only in the light of the 

ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, also provide a solid basis for assessing expected payment defaults.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities comprise in particular trade payables, liabilities to banks as well as lease liabilities.

Liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less transaction costs associated with the borrowing and are subsequently 

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses resulting from the use of the 

effective interest method are recognized in consolidated profit or loss.
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In addition, financial liabilities include purchase prices for shares in subsidiaries held by their management. The 

managers are contractually obligated to sell these shares back to the Company when specified events occur and the 

Company is obligated to repurchase the shares. The repurchase price is based on the amount of the pro-rata equity 

on the sale date. Pursuant to IAS 32.23, such contracts give rise to a financial liability for the present value of the 

redemption amount. As the value cannot be determined exactly in advance, the liability is measured using the pro-

rata equity at the reporting date, which includes the portion of the income from the current financial year that in turn 

is recognized in the consolidated profit and loss statement within INTEREST INCOME OR EXPENSE. This current 

income portion is considered representative of the effective interest result.

Additional financial liabilities result from participation rights in subsidiaries granted to management. These participation 

rights may only be transferred to third parties with the Company’s approval, and the Company has a call option upon 

the occurrence of specified events, in which event the redemption amount is based on the subsidiary’s net assets 

as at the exercise date. The current share of income is considered to be representative of the effective interest result 

which changes the liability accordingly.

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Derivative financial instruments and hedging relationships

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as currency futures to hedge currency risks. These derivative 

financial instruments are recognized at fair value at the contract date and are subsequently measured at fair value. 

Derivative financial instruments are recognized as assets if their fair values are positive and as liabilities if fair values 

are negative.

The Company uses hedging measures to hedge foreign currency risks from recognized monetary assets and liabilities. 

While these measures do not satisfy the requirements for hedge accounting, they effectively contribute to the hedging 

of financial risk in accordance with risk management principles.
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Gains and losses from hedges which serve to hedge the exchange risks from intragroup sales transactions in foreign 

currencies and which do not satisfy the criteria for hedge accounting are not presented separately in profit or loss but 

rather together with currency gains and losses from these sales transactions in profit from operations. The Company 

reserves the right to opt also in future to apply the criteria of IAS 39 for hedge accounting.

Regarding the option liability relating to cancellable non-controlling interests see Note 20.

In connection with a business combination in 2010, a foreign currency hedge of the purchase price was concluded 

between the signing and the closing, which was recognized as a fair value hedge of a fixed off-balance sheet obligation 

as the underlying. The loss attributable to the secured hedge was recognized as a basis adjustment to the acquired 

assets and is now recognized in profit or loss in accordance with the recognition of these assets in profit or loss (in 

line with depreciation over the estimated useful lives which expired for other intangible assets as planned in 2020).

For the existing financial instruments as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, see Note 35.

7. Inventories

Inventories consist of materials and purchased parts in various stages of completion and are recognized at cost or 

the lower net realizable value at the reporting date. Inventory usage is determined using the first-in, first-out, weighted 

average price or specific price method. Costs of finished goods include the costs for raw materials, other directly 

allocable expenses as well as pro-rata overheads. Borrowing costs are not capitalized unless they relate to qualifying 

assets. Inventory risks arising from slow moving goods or reduced marketability are accounted for through appropriate 

valuation allowances.
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8. Property, plant and equipment and Other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and Other intangible assets are measured at cost less depreciation and amortization. 

Depreciation/amortization is generally recognized using the straight-line method over the expected useful life of the 

asset. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

USEFUL LIFE IN YEARS

Other intangible assets:

Software 4

Technology 5 - 10

Customer base 5 - 10

Non-compete agreements 5 - 10

Trademarks 10

Property, plant and equipment:

Buildings and improvements 5 - 50

Technical plant and machinery 3 - 17

Other equipment, operating and office equipment 2 - 10

Right-of-use assets 3 - 10*

* in exceptional cases longer according to the underlying contract (17 and 22 years, respectively)

On each reporting date the Company assesses whether there are indications that property, plant and equipment or other 

intangible assets may be impaired. If such indications exist, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses on continuing operations are recognized in profit or loss under IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT and IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, respectively.
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An assessment is made at each reporting date whether there are indications that previously recognized impairment 

losses no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has 

been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment 

loss was recognized. The reversal is limited to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount may not exceed either its 

recoverable amount or the carrying amount that would have resulted, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss 

been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs are also expensed as incurred unless they are related to a qualifying asset.

Leased assets capitalized according to IFRS 16 are recorded within property, plant and equipment as right-of-use 

assets. The lease liabilities resulting from the future lease payments are presented in the balance sheet as lease 

liabilities. Interest rates for capitalized leased assets are based on the minimum interest rate for new loans at the 

inception of each lease or in correspondence with the lessor’s implicit rate of return. SBO applies the practical 

expedient for lease agreements with a lease term equal or less than 12 months as well as for low value lease 

agreements (see Note 21).

9. Goodwill

Goodwill is recognized at cost and subsequently tested for impairment annually as at 31 December or additionally 

during the year if there is a triggering event. For this purpose, goodwill is assigned to cash generating units and 

compared to the business units’ value in use based on the expected cashflows.

Once recognized, an impairment of goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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10. Current and deferred income taxes

Current tax refund claims and tax liabilities for current and previous periods are measured in the amount to be 

recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The amount is calculated based on the tax rates and tax laws applicable 

at the reporting date.

The Company uses the balance sheet liability method prescribed by IAS 12 to recognize deferred taxes. Deferred 

tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period in which the 

asset will be realized or the liability settled. If there are losses in the current or previous periods, deferred tax assets are 

recognized for unused tax loss carryforwards only to the extent that there are substantial indications based on existing 

mid-term plans that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilized. For 

tax loss carryforwards which do not expire, the basis is the ability to utilize them within the next five years.

Current and deferred taxes which relate to items recognized within OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME or directly 

within equity are not recognized in profit or loss, but rather in OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME or directly in equity.

11. Government grants

Government grants are recognized only when there is reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with any 

conditions attached to the grants and that the grants will be received. Grants relating to costs are recognized as 

income over the period necessary to match them with the related costs, for which they are intended to compensate, 

on a systematic basis.

Grants relating to assets are recognized as a deferred income item as soon as all conditions necessary for the receipt 

of the grant have been satisfied. The deferred income is reversed over the useful life of the respective assets and 

presented in OTHER OPERATING INCOME in the consolidated profit and loss statement.

12. Provisions

In accordance with IAS 37, provisions are recognized when the Company has current legal or constructive obligations 

as a result of past events and for which payment is probable. Provisions are recognized at the amount determined 
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based on management’s best estimate at the reporting date. Provisions are not recorded if they can not be reasonably 

estimated.

13. Provisions for employee benefits

DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

Defined benefit plans concern solely obligations for severance benefits of Austrian companies. Upon termination of 

employment or normal retirement, employers must make a lump sum payment to the employee if they were employed 

for three years or more and employment commenced before 1 January 2003. Severance payments range from six to 

twelve months of salary at the time of separation depending on the length of service. Payments must be made upon 

normal retirement or termination by the employer, but not upon voluntary departure by the employee. The amount of 

the provision is calculated on each reporting date using actuarial measurements based on the projected unit credit 

method with a creditable service period from the beginning of the employment to the time of planned retirement for 

each employee, and corresponds to the present value of the employee’s vested benefit claims at the end of the 

reporting period. The retirement age used refers to current legal provisions. Expected future salary increases and 

employee turnover discounts are considered based on medium-term historical experience.

All remeasurements relating to defined benefit plans (actuarial gains and losses) are recognized under OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, in accordance with IAS 19. Refer to Note 18 for further details on provisions for 

severance payments.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

Defined contribution pension schemes exist at several Group companies based either on specific legal obligations 

under national law or based on shop agreements or individual contractual pension agreements. The Group’s obligation 

is limited at paying the contributions to each pension fund when due. There is no legal or constructive obligation to 

make future payments. All contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense at the time when 

employees have provided the services that obligate the Company to make the contribution.
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OTHER LONG-TERM PERSONNEL OBLIGATIONS

In accordance with Austrian collective work agreements, employees are entitled to jubilee payments depending on 

their length of service (defined benefit plan). The amounts to be accrued for these provisions are also calculated using 

the projected unit credit method. The parameters used for the provision for severance pay are also applied when 

calculating the provision for jubilee payments. Remeasurements (actuarial gains or losses) are recognized in profit or 

loss.

14. Revenue recognition

Performance obligations arising from the sale of manufactured products and goods are recognized as control is 

transferred, generally upon delivery to the customer, and are consequently recognized at a point of time. Performance 

obligations from service and repair work are recognized when the service has been rendered, which is the delivery of 

the goods to the customer. Performance obligations resulting from providing on site customer support for the usage 

of SBO tools are satisfied during the time of staff being on site. As a consequence, revenue is recognized over time.

Individual entities within the SBO Group operate as lessors. Rental revenues are recognized based on actual usage 

by the customer (performance obligations which are satisfied over time). In general, no minimum lease obligations or 

minimum revenues are stipulated in the agreements. In this context SBO does not hold finance lease agreements.

For contracts with payment terms of a maximum of one year, the company waives to adjust the amount of the 

promised consideration by any financing component for practical reasons and considerations of materiality.

Interest income is recognized on a pro-rata basis, using the effective interest method.
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15. Research and development

Pursuant to IAS 38, research costs are recognized in profit or loss when incurred. Development costs are expensed 

when incurred, if the requirements for capitalization of development costs in accordance with IAS 38 are not fully met. 

Development costs are recognized in profit or loss in SBO’s consolidated financial statements in the period in which 

they are incurred, because the corresponding recognition criteria were not satisfied.

16. Share-based payment

In 2014 an agreement on share-based payments was entered into with the Chief Executive Officer. The granting 

requires valid employment. An agreement on the granting of a voluntary severance benefit in the form of SBO shares 

at the end of employment was also concluded. In the course of extending the Management Board mandate in 2018 

this agreement was also extended. As the compensation is and will be settled using SBO shares, the current expense 

from these agreements is recognized in personnel expense and within equity (see Note 33). 

17. Estimates, judgments, and assumptions

When preparing the consolidated annual financial statements under International Financial Reporting Standards, 

estimates, assumptions, and judgments must be made to a certain extent which impact the amounts presented in the 

balance sheet, the Notes to the financial statements and the profit and loss statement. The amounts actually arising 

in the future may deviate from the estimates; however, from its current perspective management believes that there 

will not be any material negative impacts on the consolidated financial statements in the near future. The significant 

estimates and judgments underlying the consolidated annual financial statements are explained below.
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Assumptions and discretionary decisions must be made when recognizing and measuring INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

recognized in the course of business combinations (see Note 9).

Estimates are necessary about the period over which PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT and INTANGIBLE 
ASSETS can be expected to be used (see Notes 8 and 9). In addition, if indications of impairment of PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT or INTANGIBLE ASSETS are identified, estimates are required when determining the 

recoverable amount. When evaluating right-of-use assets and lease liabilities estimates are required for determining 

the term of a lease, and extension options, respectively.

An estimate of the value in use is made for the annual impairment test of GOODWILL in which management must 

estimate the expected future cashflows of the cash generating units and choose an appropriate discount rate (see 

Note 9).

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that taxable income will be 

available, so that the loss carryforwards can actually be used. When accounting for DEFERRED TAX ASSETS, a 

significant exercise of judgment by management is required regarding the timing and extent to which future taxable 

income will be available in order to actually use the temporary differences or loss carryforwards (see Note 11).

Management estimates of pricing and market development are necessary in order to determine carrying amounts when 

measuring INVENTORIES (see Note 7). As based on the underlying customer contracts no revenue recognition over 

time according to the percentage-of-completion method is applied, estimates regarding services already rendered 

as well as future costs to be expected for short-term orders are only required to determine potential provisions for 

onerous contracts.

In addition to evaluations based on historic cash receipts RECEIVABLES require assumptions regarding the probability 

of default (see Note 5). Besides overdue balances and market risks, also past customer experiences are taken into 

account. Regarding SALES REVENUES estimations are required for expected returns relating to sales with a right of 

return (see Note 15) as well as for volume discounts to be granted.
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For the recognition of PROVISIONS, management must evaluate the probability of occurrence at the reporting date. 

Provisions are recognized at the value that corresponds to management’s best estimate at the reporting date (see 

Note 16).

Expenses for defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial calculations. The actuarial measurement is 

based on assumptions regarding the discount rates, future wage and salary increases, mortality rates, and employee 

turnover rates (see Note 18).

The option liability relating to cancellable non-controlling interests was measured at fair value at the acquisition date 

and was subsequently remeasured at fair value on each reporting date. The fair value was determined based on the 

discounted cashflows, which were derived from the most recent earnings forecast of the company involved. Until the 

first possible date of exercising the option, judgments were necessary when determining future cashflows, the timing 

of exercising the option, and the choice of an appropriate discount rate. For the option exercised before the 2020 

financial year, part of the option liability was not paid out due to an existing legal dispute. Until the legal dispute is fully 

and finally resolved or a settlement is reached, the remaining option liability will be carried forward at an amount based 

on the contractually agreed mechanism to be applied under normal circumstances and on actual results of the period 

concerned (see Note 20).

Liabilities for management’s interest in subsidiaries and participation rights are measured using estimates of the service 

period of the respective individuals in the company and future profitability of the subsidiaries. The Company assumes 

that the respective share of the subsidiary’s annual income essentially corresponds to the effective interest expense 

(see Note 19). 
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NOTE 5

TRADE RECEIVABLES

An analysis of trade receivables is presented below:

31.12.2020� IN TEUR

MATURITY GROSS VALUE LUMPSUM  
ALLOWANCE (ECL)

INDIVIDUAL  
ALLOWANCE

NET VALUE

Not or < 30 days past due 47,049 -284 0 46,765

30 - 90 days past due 3,942 -83 -65 3,794

90 - 180 days past due 2,136 -55 -304 1,777

> 180 days past due 6,691 -64 -4,711 1,916

Total 59,818 -486 -5,080 54,252

31.12.2019� IN TEUR

MATURITY GROSS VALUE LUMPSUM  
ALLOWANCE (ECL)

INDIVIDUAL  
ALLOWANCE

NET VALUE

Not or < 30 days past due 83,995 -252 0 83,743

30 - 90 days past due 20,186 -153 0 20,033

90 - 180 days past due 7,270 -123 -220 6,927

> 180 days past due 7,851 -411 -5,886 1,554

Total 119,302 -939 -6,106 112,257

Trade receivables typically have payment terms of up to 90 days. As of 31 December 2020 and as of 31 December 2019 

no trade receivables had a term of more than 12 months.
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The carrying amount of impaired receivables amounted to TEUR 66 (previous year: TEUR 111). Allowances 

for doubtful accounts are recognized in line with IFRS 9 based on historical experience and in consideration of 

days sales outstanding (see Note 4). As of 31 December 2020 allowances measured for lifetime expected 

credit losses according to the simplified approach amounted to TEUR 486 (previous year: TEUR 939).  

Allowances developed as follows: 

IN TEUR  2020 2019

As at 1 January 7,045 6,845

Currency translation adjustments -559 138

Utilization -2,224 -1,377

Reversal -513 -1,412

Additions 1,817 2,851

As at 31 December 5,566 7,045

No collateral was received for the receivables listed.

NOTE 6

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

This line item mainly consists of receivables from tax authorities and prepaid expenses. In addition, this line item includes 

assets from sales with a right of return according to IFRS 15 amounting to TEUR 210 (previous year: TEUR 544).

No collateral was received for the receivables and no valuation allowances have been recognized.
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NOTE 7

INVENTORIES

The classification of inventories is shown in detail below:

IN TEUR  31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Raw materials and supplies 10,049 14,221

Work in progress 51,820 71,540

Finished goods 52,146 56,195

Total 114,015 141,956

Valuation allowances expensed in 2020 were TEUR 8,184 (previous year: TEUR 3,663). This includes impairments 

on inventories in the amount of TEUR 5,529 recorded in the "Oilfield Equipment" (OE) segment, due to low utilization 

of individual product lines of the motor fleet in North America beginning with the second quarter of 2020. These 

expenses are included within IMPAIRMENT OF CURRENT ASSETS, whereas the remaining valuation expenses 

amounting to TEUR 2,655 (previous year: TEUR 3,663) is included within COST OF GOODS SOLD.  

NOTE 8

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of the gross carrying amounts and the accumulated depreciation and impairments of property, plant and 

equipment is presented below:
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2020
IN TEUR LAND AND 

BUILDINGS
TECHNICAL 
PLANT AND 
MACHINERY

OTHER  
EQUIPMENT, 
OPERATING 
AND OFFICE 
EQUIPMENT

PREPAYMENTS 
AND ASSETS 

UNDER 
CONSTRUCTION

RIGHT OF USE 
ASSETS

TOTAL

Cost

1 January 2020 98,004 346,099 13,625 12,748 12,809 483,285

Currency translation 
adjustments -5,329 -19,191 -662 -733 -918 -26,833

Additions 791 12,355 1,165 1,820 1,897 18,028

Reclassifications 1,579 1,971 60 -3,610 0 0

Disposals -385 -22,893 -993 -84 -2,055 -26,410

31 December 2020 94,660 318,341 13,195 10,141 11,733 448,070

Accumulated depreciation  
and impairment

1 January 2020 33,208 283,567 11,130 5,590 3,143 336,638

Currency translation 
adjustments -1,745 -15,211 -530 -392 -289 -18,167

Additions from depreciation 3,131 23,973 1,107 0 2,650 30,861

Additions from impairment 0 1,665 0 0 0 1,665

Reclassifications 0 637 0 -637 0 0

Disposals -380 -21,169 -942 -83 -1,715 -24,289

31 December 2020 34,214 273,462 10,765 4,478 3,789 326,708

Carrying amount

31 December 2020 60,446 44,879 2,430 5,663 7,944 121,362

31 December 2019 64,796 62,532 2,495 7,158 9,666 146,647

Impairments amounting to TEUR 1,665 were recognized based on the impairment tests carried out as of 30 June 2020 

and relate to parts of the motor fleet in North America in the "Oilfield Equipment" (OE) segment (see Note 9). 
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2019
IN TEUR LAND AND 

BUILDINGS
TECHNICAL 
PLANT AND 
MACHINERY

OTHER  
EQUIPMENT, 
OPERATING 
AND OFFICE 
EQUIPMENT

PREPAYMENTS 
AND ASSETS 

UNDER 
CONSTRUCTION

RIGHT OF USE 
ASSETS

TOTAL

Cost

1 January 2019 99,751 385,571 14,277 3,133 8,913 511,645

Currency translation 
adjustments 1,349 6,255 250 64 302 8,220

Additions 3,384 19,874 1,314 6,791 3,915 35,278

Reclassifications 431 -3,794 36 3,261 0 -66

Classification as ‘held for sale’ -6,081 -170 0 0 0 -6,251

Disposals -830 -61,637 -2,252 -501 -321 -65,541

31 December 2019 98,004 346,099 13,625 12,748 12,809 483,285

Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment

1 January 2019 32,742 314,155 11,857 0 189 358,943

Currency translation 
adjustments 461 5,020 189 4 8 5,682

Additions from depreciation 3,221 27,477 1,226 0 3,089 35,013

Additions from impairment 485 0 0 0 0 485

Reclassifications 0 -5,610 24 5,586 0 0

Classification as ‘held for sale’ -2,951 -170 0 0 0 -3,121

Disposals -750 -57,305 -2,166 0 -143 -60,364

31 December 2019 33,208 283,567 11,130 5,590 3,143 336,638

Carrying amount

31 December 2019 64,796 62,532 2,495 7,158 9,666 146,647

31 December 2018* 67,009 71,416 2,420 3,133 8,724 152,702

* already including right of use assets capitalized as at 1 January 2019.
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The Company has production facilities in the following countries: Austria, the USA, Vietnam, and Singapore. Service 

and maintenance support sites as well as sales outlets are maintained in the USA, Canada, the UK, Singapore, the 

United Arab Emirates, Saudi Arabia, Russia, Mexico, and Brazil.

As at 31 December 2020, purchase commitments for investments in property, plant and equipment amounted to 

TEUR 3,675 (previous year: TEUR 5,044).

For details on capitalized right-of-use assets see Note 21.
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NOTE 9

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The gross carrying amounts and the accumulated amortization of intangible assets are summarized below:

2020
IN TEUR GOODWILL TECHNOLOGY NON-COMPETE 

AGREEMENTS
CUSTOMER  

BASE
OTHER 

INTANGIBLE 
ASSETS 

TOTAL

Cost

1 January 2020 243,107 70,839 12,269 36,666 13,989 376,870

Currency translation 
adjustments -18,048 -5,266 -723 -2,743 -841 -27,621

Additions 0 0 0 0 104 104

Disposals -7,238 0 -2,969 0 -17 -10,224

31 December 2020 217,821 65,573 8,577 33,923 13,235 339,129

Accumulated amortization and 
impairments

1 January 2020 102,672 51,783 9,855 35,017 10,837 210,164

Currency translation 
adjustments -7,433 -4,045 -604 -2,716 -694 -15,492

Additions from amortization 0 5,774 1,181 1,622 938 9,515

Additions from impairment 12,112 377 0 0 506 12,995

Disposals -7,238 0 -2,969 0 -17 -10,224

31 December 2020 100,113 53,889 7,463 33,923 11,570 206,958

Carrying amount

31 December 2020 117,708 11,684 1,114 0 1,665 132,171

31 December 2019 140,435 19,056 2,414 1,649 3,152 166,706
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2019
IN TEUR GOODWILL TECHNOLOGY NON-COMPETE 

AGREEMENTS
CUSTOMER  

BASE
OTHER 

INTANGIBLE 
ASSETS 

TOTAL

Cost

1 January 2019 235,564 68,673 11,936 35,440 13,528 365,141

Currency translation 
adjustments 7,543 2,166 333 1,226 258 11,526

Additions 0 0 0 0 137 137

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 66 66

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0

31 December 2019 243,107 70,839 12,269 36,666 13,989 376,870

Accumulated amortization and 
impairments

1 January 2019 97,801 43,650 7,772 30,617 9,496 189,336

Currency translation 
adjustments 4,871 1,553 243 1,093 176 7,936

Additions from amortization 0 6,580 1,840 3,307 1,165 12,892

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0

31 December 2019 102,672 51,783 9,855 35,017 10,837 210,164

Carrying amount

31 December 2019 140,435 19,056 2,414 1,649 3,152 166,706

31 December 2018 137,763 25,023 4,164 4,823 4,032 175,805

As at 31 December 2020, purchase commitments for acquisitions of intangible assets amounted to TEUR 0 (previous 

year: TEUR 0).
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1. GOODWILL 

Goodwill is attributable to the following cash generating units and segments: 

IN TEUR 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 

Segment "Advanced Manufacturing & Services" (AMS)

Knust-Godwin LLC 10,960 19,849

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN Oilfield Technology GmbH 4,655 4,655

Schoeller-Bleckmann Darron (Aberdeen) Limited 798 798

Segment "Oilfield Equipment" (OE)

The WellBoss Company, LLC 80,892 88,352

DSI FZE 20,403 22,244

BICO Drilling Tools Inc. 0 4,410

BICO Faster Drilling Tools Inc. 0 127

Total 117,708 140,435

All cash generating units are measured based on the value in use by discounting expected future cashflows using 

the weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC was determined based on the current market data for 

comparable companies in the same industry segment and adjusted for expected specific inflation rates for each 

country. The detailed planning period covers five years (previous year: five years), and the cashflows are based on 

budgeting by management. For deriving cashflows in the terminal value, a fixed growth rate of 1 % (previous year: 1 %) 

was assumed for all cash generating units. 
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The following discount rates were applied as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

WACC (BEFORE TAX)
IN % 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Segment "Advanced Manufacturing & Services" (AMS)

Knust-Godwin LLC 11.8 % 11.3 %

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN Oilfield Technology GmbH 17.4 % 14.7 %

Schoeller-Bleckmann Darron (Aberdeen) Limited 17.4 % 14.5 %

Segment "Oilfield Equipment" (OE)

The WellBoss Company, LLC 12.3 % 11.6 %

DSI FZE 11.3 % 10.2 %

BICO Drilling Tools Inc. 11.6 % 10.9 %

Cashflows were determined based on revenue forecasts and planned capital expenditures. The value in use of a 

cash generating unit is impacted the most by sales revenues. Forecasts of sales and cashflows take into account the 

cyclicality of the industry derived from historical experience on the one hand, and long-term developments of the sales 

market on the other. Sales forecasts for all cash generating units are based on the expected business development 

in the oilfield service industry. This is derived from expected drilling activities, the geographic sales markets, and 

company-specific developments considering increased planning risks due to the current COVID-19 pandemic. In 

addition, margin forecasts are derived from the expected product mix and cost developments based on expected 

developments of material prices and planned capital expenditures. The estimated personnel development (based on 

planned headcount, required qualifications of employees needed and expected personnel cost based on the current 

economic situation) was also taken into account.

The worldwide spread of the COVID-19 pandemic caused a significant reduction in drilling activities, starting in the 

second quarter of 2020 particularly, and consequently led to changed assumptions on short and medium-term oil 

price developments as well as drilling activities and corresponding expectations regarding E&P spendings in the oilfield 

service industry. Therefore, goodwill was tested for impairment as of 30 June 2020, and led to the impairments listed 

below. 
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The calculation of the value in use for each cash generating unit as of 30 June 2020 was based on updated cashflow 

plans for a detailed planning period of 5 years with cashflows being adjusted based on current estimations of 

management reflecting decreased short-term and medium-term profit expectations in the current market environment. 

In order to consider the increased forecast uncertainty caused by the low visibility at that time, three alternative scenario 

plans were used for each cash generating unit, in which different timing for the expected increase in E&P spendings 

was assumed. The cashflows of the individual scenarios were weighted according to their expected probability of 

occurrence. For the terminal value a fixed growth rate of 1 % was applied.

Impairment tests performed as at 30 June 2020 resulted in goodwill impairments of TEUR 12,112 as well as impairments 

of property, plant and equipment of TEUR 1,665 for the year 2020. Goodwill impairment expenses of TEUR 7,754 

relate to the cash generating unit Knust-Godwin LLC in the "Advanced Manufacturing & Services" (AMS) segment 

(WACC before tax as of 30 June 2020: 10.8 %). In the "Oilfield Equipment" (OE) segment, impairments of goodwill 

amounting to TEUR 4,236 and impairments of property, plant and equipment of TEUR 1,665 (WACC before tax as 

of 30 June 2020: 10.7 %) relate to the cash-generating unit BICO Drilling Tools Inc. As a result, the goodwill of BICO 

Drilling Tools Inc. was fully impaired. Furthermore, due to lowered profit expectations in North America impairments of 

other intangible assets amounting to TEUR 883 were recognized in the cash generating unit BICO Drilling Tools Inc. 

in the reporting period. In addition, the goodwill of its subsidiary BICO Faster Drilling Tools Inc. of TEUR 122 was fully 

impaired.

The annual impairment tests carried out as of 31 December 2020 did not result in any further impairments. These 

annual impairment tests were based on updated medium-term plans from the annual budgeting process which were 

prepared considering the potential implications of the COVID-19 pandemic. After the distortions that occurred in 2020 

these plans assume a moderate increase in drilling and completion activities in the first half of 2021, which is expected 

to gain momentum starting from the second half of the year. Based on the assumption that the COVID-19 pandemic 

can be contained by means of the global roll-out of vaccines, a recovery in general economic performance is expected 

in the medium term, which is also expected to be accompanied by a recovery in demand for oil and gas to the level 

prior to the start of the pandemic within the planning period. Stabilized oil prices will encourage a further increase 

in drilling activity and thus in spendings for exploration and production, which were used as the basis for the plans.

A sensitivity analysis was carried out for all cash generating units as at 31 December 2020. As the value in use 

reacts to changes in the assumptions regarding cashflows and the discount factors in particular, the analysis on 

key assumptions took into account an isolated increase in the discount factor by one percentage point as well as a 

reduction of cashflows by 20 % (previous year: 10 %), as deemed possible by management. This analysis resulted in 

no impairment loss on any cash generating unit.
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In the 2019 financial year, the two units Resource Well Completion Technologies, Inc. and Downhole Technology, 

LLC, which were both allocated to the "Oilfield Equipment" (OE) segment were organizationally merged and have been 

operating under The WellBoss Company since then. In this context, the goodwill allocated to the respective cash-

generating units was completely reallocated to The WellBoss Company in the "Oilfield Equipment" (OE) segment. 

2. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS mainly comprise technology, customer base, trademarks, and rights from non-

compete agreements relating to downhole circulation technology (circulation tools) from a business combination in 

2010. These assets were amortized over a useful life of 10 years and were fully amortized in 2020 as planned (carrying 

amount previous year: TEUR 3,507).

In addition, as part of the initial recognition of Resource Well Completion Technologies Inc. (now The WellBoss 

Company, Inc.) in 2014, acquired technologies, customer base as well as non-compete agreements were capitalized. 

The carrying amount of technology as of 31 December 2020 amounts to TEUR 518 (previous year: TEUR 1,221). 

The acquired customer base as well as non-compete agreements were already fully amortized in the previous year 

as planned.

As part of the initial recognition of Downhole Technology, LLC (now The WellBoss Company, LLC) in 2016, acquired 

technologies (carrying amount as of 31 December 2020: TEUR 10,985; previous year: TEUR 14,285) and trademarks 

(carrying amount as of 31 December 2020: TEUR 916; previous year: TEUR 1,191) were capitalized based on a 

useful life of ten years. In addition, rights from non-compete agreements (carrying amount as of 31 December 2020: 

TEUR 1,114; previous year: TEUR 2,191) were recognized and will be amortized over a period of six years.

Additional OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS relate to technologies acquired in the course of a business combination in 

2012.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS also include usage rights for IT software.
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NOTE 10

LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES AND ASSETS

This item consists primarily of interest-bearing loans, which have been granted to the management of companies 

included in the scope of consolidation for the acquisition of shares or profit participation rights in these companies (see 

also Note 19). The Company has only a limited credit risk as the shares must be returned to the Company if the loan 

conditions are not satisfied. In general, partial repayments are scheduled, but the full settlement of the loan has to be 

made when returning the shares and participation rights, and therefore at the end of the employment at the latest. The 

change in the business year 2020 relates to the repayment of loans which happened mainly due to returning shares 

and participation rights.

IN TEUR 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Loans 3,065 4,464

Other receivables and assets 865 771

Total 3,930 5,235

As of 31 December 2020 and 2019 no impairments were required. There were no past due receivables.

No collateral was received for the other receivables and assets listed.
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NOTE 11

DEFERRED TAXES

The deferred tax assets and liabilities result from the following items:

IN TEUR 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

ASSETS LIABILITIES ASSETS LIABILITIES

Property, plant and equipment 1,616 -3,524 1,721 -6,698

Other intangible assets (differences in useful lives) 2,615 -155 1,685 -141

Goodwill and other intangible assets (measurement 
differences) 5,835 -6,053 6,523 -8,047

Inventories (measurement differences) 4,696 0 6,531 -31

Valuation of shares in subsidiaries 163 0 325 0

Option liability from cancellable non-controlling interests 15,602 0 18,095 0

Other items (measurement differences) 2,921 -226 1,480 -513

Provisions 2,407 0 2,459 0

Foreign currency effects from elimination of inter-company 
balances -248 0 -72 0

Tax loss carryforwards 2,125 0 1,873 0

Subtotal 37,732 -9,958 40,620 -15,430

Offset within legal tax units and jurisdictions -9,829 9,829 -14,735 14,735

Total 27,903 -129 25,885 -695
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Deferred taxes amounting to TEUR 6,419 (previous year: TEUR 8,727) relating to tax loss carryforwards for which their 

future use is uncertain based on the current mid-term planning were not recognized or adjusted. These will expire as 

follows:

IN TEUR 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 AFTER 2025 NEVER TOTAL

0 0 0 0 0 1,433 4,986 6,419

The gross deferred tax assets include tax claims of two companies in North America that generated a loss in the 

current financial year and whose deferred tax assets exceed the deferred tax liabilities by TEUR 2,329. The recognition 

of these deferred tax assets as of 31 December 2020 is based on the company‘s enlarged product range, increasing 

drilling activities in North America and the significant increase in investments in the oilfield service industry expected 

in the medium term.

Deferred tax assets in the amount of TEUR 163 (previous year: TEUR 325) include tax claims from impairments of 

financial investments in the amount of TEUR 650 (previous year: TEUR 1,300) to be distributed over seven years 

according to the Austrian tax law.

Concerning the option liability from cancellable non-controlling interests see Note 20.

There are outside basis differences (i.e. between the tax base of equity interests and the pro-rata equity) at subsidiaries 

included in the consolidated financial statements, in particular from retained earnings and losses not covered by 

equity. As at 31 December 2020, timing differences amounted to TEUR 90,862 (previous year: TEUR  83,889), 

because distributions or disposals of equity investments of individual companies would generally be taxable. 

However, as the Group does not plan on dividends from or disposals of these companies in the foreseeable future, in 

accordance with IAS 12.39, no deferred taxes were recognized. Likewise, no withholding taxes were recognized as 

at 31 December 2020 due to the lack of planned distributions (previous year: TEUR 0). 
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NOTE 12

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

As of 31 December 2020, the assets held for sale include property related to a closed production facility in the United 

Kingdom in the "Advanced Manufacturing & Services" (AMS) segment. Based on the sales proceeds less costs to 

sell achieved in January 2021 impairments of TEUR 917 were recognized as of 31 December 2020 and reported 

in the profit and loss statement under RESTRUCTURING EXPENSES. The carrying amount of the property as of 

31 December 2020 is TEUR 2,147. In the 2019 financial year this property was reclassified to assets held for sale, 

and an impairment loss of TEUR 485 was recognized. 

NOTE 13

LIABILITIES TO BANKS

As at 31 December 2020, the current liabilities to banks were as follows:

CURRENCY AMOUNT IN TEUR INTEREST RATE IN %

GBP loans 6,674 1.15 % variable

USD loans 3,264 2.05 % variable

Subtotal 9,938

Export promotion loans (EUR) 24,000 0.18 - 0.45 % variable

Total 33,938
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As at 31 December 2019, the current liabilities to banks were as follows:

CURRENCY AMOUNT IN TEUR INTEREST RATE IN %

GBP loans   7,052 1.90 % variable

Subtotal   7,052

Export promotion loans (EUR) 24,000 0.18 - 0.45 % variable

Total 31,052

The export promotion loans represent revolving credit facilities that can be used by the Company permanently as long 

as it complies with certain lending agreements. In accordance with export promotion guidelines, receivables in the 

amount of TEUR 28,800 (previous year: TEUR 28,800) have been stipulated as security for these loans. 

NOTE 14

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

As at 31 December 2020, subsidies received amounted to TEUR 304 (previous year: TEUR 623). The grants include 

a subsidy by a government investment and technology fund, as well as other investment subsidies received for the 

acquisition of property, plant and equipment and research and development expenses. Individual investment subsidies 

are tied to the adherence of investments in promoted areas (e.g. number of employees). As of 31 December 2020 

and also in the previous year the Company complied with all requirements for the government grants recorded in this 

line item. 



143

	 Notes to the consolidated financial statements  |   CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	 �   

NOTE 15

OTHER LIABILITIES

Other current liabilities break down as follows:

IN TEUR 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Unused vacation 1,361 2,652

Other personnel expenses 6,423 9,159

Legal and professional fees 1,364 1,499

Tax liabilities 2,948 1,928

Social security and other employee benefits 1,907 2,300

Refund liabilities according to IFRS 15 403 1,415

Contract liabilities according to IFRS 15 1,878 4,960

Option liability from cancellable  
non-controlling interests 106,946 116,905

Miscellaneous other liabilities 15,185 14,700

Total 138,415 155,518

Refer to Note 20 for details on the option liability from cancellable non-controlling interests.

Miscellaneous other liabilities include liabilities of TEUR 10,762 (previous year: TEUR 8,194) relating to shares in 

companies within the SBO Group for which put / call option agreements had existed (see Note 20). The major part of 

this amount refers to dividends not yet paid. 
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Other liabilities further include contract liabilities (advance payments received and accrued revenue). Changes in 

contract liabilities for the years 2020 and 2019 are as follows: 

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Contract liabilities as of 1 January 4,960 214

Prepayments received 1,186 4,766

Recognized as revenues -4,114 -173

Currency translation adjustments -154 153

Contract liabilities as of 31 December 1,878 4,960
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NOTE 16

OTHER PROVISIONS

The other provisions developed as follows:

IN TEUR 31.12.2019 UTILIZATION REVERSAL ADDITIONS CURRENCY 
TRANSLATION 
ADJUSTMENTS

31.12.2020

Warranties and 
guarantees 2,377 -233 0 610 0 2,754

Other 637 -117 -79 3,644 -277 3,808

Total 3,014 -350 -79 4,254 -277 6,562

The increase in the provision for warranty risks in 2020 is attributable to increased sales in the relevant business field.

In the 2020 financial year, former employees of SBO Group filed a lawsuit with regard to labor law issues. The 

company denies the sum of the allegations claimed in the individual complaints both, on the merits and in the amount. 

In total, provisions of TEUR 3,423 were made for cost of proceedings and potential claims, of which TEUR 3,260 were 

recognized within other provisions. 
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NOTE 17

LONG-TERM LOANS INCLUDING CURRENT PORTION  
(AMORTIZATION FOR THE FOLLOWING YEAR)

As at 31 December 2020, long-term loans amount to TEUR 270,548. Thereof, an amount of 25,236 is to be repaid 

during the next year. In total long-term loans were comprised of the following:

CURRENCY AMOUNT IN TEUR INTEREST RATE IN % TERM REPAYMENT

EUR 3,000 2.445 % fixed 2018 – 2028 bullet loan

EUR 10,000 1.832 % fixed 2018 – 2027 annually from 2021

EUR 19,500 1.732 % fixed 2018 – 2027 annually from 2021

EUR 6,000 1.350 % variable 2018 – 2027 annually from 2021

EUR 20,500 2.352 % fixed 2018 – 2027 bullet loan

EUR 27,500 2.100 % fixed 2020 – 2026 bullet loan

EUR 10,000 2.100 % variable 2020 – 2026 bullet loan

EUR 3,000 1.900 % variable 2020 – 2025 quarterly from 2023

EUR 40,500 1.900 % fixed 2020 – 2025 bullet loan

EUR 4,500 1.961 % fixed 2018 – 2025 bullet loan

EUR 10,000 1.707 % fixed 2018 – 2025 annually from 2022

EUR 30,000 1.782 % fixed 2018 – 2024 bullet loan

EUR 860 0.000 % fixed 2008 – 2024 quarterly from 2011

USD 1,365 1.000 % fixed 2020 – 2023 monthly from 2021

EUR 10,000 1.482 % fixed 2018 – 2023 bullet loan

EUR 18,750 1.582 % fixed 2018 – 2023 bullet loan

EUR 2,500 1.842 % fixed 2016 – 2023 bullet loan

EUR 10,000 2.060 % fixed 2016 – 2023 bullet loan

EUR 27,273 0.589 % fixed 2016 – 2023 semi-annually from 2018

EUR 5,000 1.090 % fixed 2018 – 2022 bullet loan

EUR 300 0.000 % fixed 2015 – 2022 quarterly from 2017

EUR 4,000 0.850 % fixed 2018 – 2021 quarterly from 2019

EUR 5,000 1.430 % fixed 2016 – 2021 bullet loan

EUR 1,000 1.616 % fixed 2016 – 2021 bullet loan

270,548
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In total loans in the amount of TEUR 1,160 (previous year: TEUR 1,665) were backed by collateral. They relate to lien 

on land, buildings, and machinery with a carrying amount of TEUR 10,152 (previous year: TEUR 10,634).

See Note 35 for fair values; see Note 36 for interest rate risks.

NOTE 18

PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at the reporting date, the provisions for employee benefits consisted of the following:

IN TEUR 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Severance payments 4,589 4,656

Jubilee payments 2,270 2,206

Total 6,859 6,862

The actuarial assumptions used for calculating the provisions of severance and jubilee payments were as follows:

2020 2019

Discount rate 0.90 % 0.90 %

Salary increases 3.50 % 3.50 %

Employee turnover rate 0.0 % - 15.0 % 0.0 % - 15.0 %
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Provisions were calculated using the Pagler & Pagler’s AVÖ 2018-P (previous year: AVÖ 2018-P) mortality tables. 

Remeasurements of provisions for severance payments (actuarial gains or losses) are recognized in OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, in accordance with IAS 19.

No contributions were made to separately managed funds for the obligations presented.

Provisions for severance payments

The provision for severance payments developed as follows:

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Present value of severance obligation as at 1 January 4,656 3,970

Current service cost 198 169

Interest cost 42 71

Total expenses for severance payments 240 240

Remeasurements -64 801

Current severance payments -243 -355

Present value of severance benefit obligation as at  
31 December 4,589 4,656

The expenses shown in the table are included in the consolidated profit and loss statement within personnel expenses 

of each functional area (see Note 25).
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Remeasurements of provisions for severance payments recognized in OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME in 

accordance with IAS 19 are comprised of the following:

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Remeasurement of obligations

  from changes to financial assumptions 0 432

  from historical experience -64 369

Total -64 801

The average term of the severance obligations as at 31 December 2020 was 10.6 years (previous year: 11.3 years).

Sensitivity analysis

The effects on the obligations resulting from changes in significant actuarial assumptions are presented in the following 

sensitivity analysis. One significant influencing factor was changed in each case, while the remaining inputs were 

held constant. In reality, however, it is rather unlikely that these factors do not correlate. The changed obligation was 

determined in line with the actual obligation, using the projected unit credit method in accordance with IAS 19.

SEVERANCE PAYMENTS
PRESENT VALUE OF OBLIGATION (DBO) 

31.12.2020

IN TEUR CHANGE IN ASSUMPTION CHANGE IN PROVISION GIVEN AN 
INCREASE IN ASSUMPTION 

CHANGE IN PROVISION GIVEN  
A DECREASE IN ASSUMPTION

Discount rate +/- 0.5 percentage points -229 250

Increase in salaries +/- 0.5 percentage points 233 -216
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Provision for jubilee payments

The provision for jubilee payments developed as follows:

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Present value of jubilee payment obligation as at 1 January 2,206 1,785

Current service cost 191 148

Interest cost 20 32

Total expenses for jubilee payments 211 180

Remeasurements -85 272

Current jubilee payments -62 -31

Present value of jubilee payment obligation as  
at 31 December 2,270 2,206

Defined contribution pension plans

Payments made in connection with defined contribution pension and employee benefit plans were expensed and 

amounted to TEUR 580 in the 2020 financial year (previous year: TEUR 639). Contributions of approximately TEUR 500 

are expected for the following year.
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NOTE 19

OTHER LIABILITIES

Other non-current liabilities break down as follows:

IN TEUR 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Management interests 3,396 4,863

Participation rights 3,398 4,647

Other liabilities 1,690 2,348

Total 8,484 11,858

 

The management of the following companies included in the scope of consolidation held shares in their respective 

companies:

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Company

BICO Drilling Tools Inc. 1.55 % 2.15 %

BICO DRILLING TOOLS FZE 1.55 % 2.15 %

BICO Faster Drilling Tools Inc. 8.00 % 11.00 %

Schoeller-Bleckmann Energy Services L.L.C. 3.00 % 3.00 %

Schoeller-Bleckmann Darron Limited 5.00 % 5.00 %

Schoeller-Bleckmann Darron (Aberdeen) Limited 6.00 % 6.00 %

ADRIANA HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED 1.00 % 1.00 %

Management thus has a pro-rata interest in these companies.
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The management of the following companies included in the scope of consolidation held participation rights in their 

respective companies:

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Company

DSI FZE 0.40 % 0.90 %

SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN Oilfield Technology GmbH 0.85 % 1.10 %

The WellBoss Company, LLC 1.15 % 1.30 %

The effective interest expense recognized for management interests and participation rights is reported under 

INTEREST EXPENSES and INTEREST INCOME. 

NOTE 20

OPTION LIABILITY FROM CANCELLABLE NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

In the course of a business combination in 2016, the Company has concluded an option agreement with non-

controlling shareholders on the later acquisition of such non-controlling interests. The Company granted the non-

controlling shareholders the right to offer their shares to the Company, and at the same time, the Company committed 

to purchase the offered shares. In addition, the Company acquired the right to purchase the shares of the non-

controlling shareholders, who have committed themselves to transfer their shares to the Company in such case 

(put / call option). The purchase price of the option liabilities from cancellable non-controlling interests depended in 

the previous year on the results achieved by the company in question.

At the acquisition date this option liability was recognized in OTHER LIABILITIES, and referred to the discounted 

amount of the expected payment from this cancellable option based on the current corporate planning at that date, 

because the Group had an unconditional payment obligation. From a Group’s perspective, 100 % of the shares in 

these companies are thus recognized due to this option commitment. Consequently, 100 % of the results of the 

respective subsidiary are attributed to the owners of the parent company. 
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The option liability was subsequently measured using the discounted expected payment amount as at the reporting 

date based on current corporate planning. They were discounted using a risk-adequate interest rate for the respective 

term of the commitment. The interest cost from current discounting is presented under INTEREST EXPENSES. Gains 

and losses due to changes of the discounted expected payment amount are recognized in GAINS / LOSSES FROM 
REMEASUREMENT OF OPTION LIABILITIES.

SBO has already exercised its right to acquire the minority interests of 32.3 % in Downhole Technology, LLC (now The 

WellBoss Company, LLC) before 2020 with its share in the company reaching 100 % as of 1 April 2019. A purchase 

price of TUSD 33,742 (TEUR 30,138) was paid for 6.6 % of the shares in the fiscal year 2019, a subordinated 

remaining amount of TUSD 98 (TEUR 86) in 2020. There is a legal dispute with a former minority member regarding 

the termination of his employment contract in 2018, which may have an effect on the purchase price to be paid for 

the acquisition of the remaining 25.7 % of the interests. Any payment is delayed until the dispute is fully and finally 

resolved. In the 2020 financial year, a partial judgment of the court of first instance was issued against the company. 

As of 31 December 2020 the final judgment had not yet been signed. In any case, the company will appeal against the 

first instance judgment. In line with 31 December 2019 provision was made in the consolidated financial statements as 

of 31 December 2020 on the basis of the contractually agreed mechanism to be applied under normal circumstances 

(see Note 4.17). Depending on the outcome of the proceedings or a potential settlement, the purchase price to be 

paid could be determined subject to equity of the company, hence be significantly lower than the amount provided for. 

At present, the outcome of the proceedings cannot be predicted with any certainty.

In the cashflow statement of the year 2019 a portion of the paid purchase price for 6.6 % of shares relating to the 

amount which was estimated and recognized, respectively, as of acquisition date 1 April 2016 is included in the 

cashflow of investing activities. The portion which exceeded the amount estimated as of acquisition date and which 

was expensed in the income statement in later periods was included in the cashflow from operating activities.

Gains from revaluation of the reporting period 2019 resulted from a difference between actual results and the estimation 

of results as of 31 December 2018, and were reported in the income statement within INCOME / EXPENSE FROM 
REVALUATION OF OPTION COMMITMENTS. Of that an amount of TEUR 758 refers to realized gains. 
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The development of the option liability concerning business combination Downhole Technology is shown below: 

IN TEUR 2020 2019

As at 1 January 116,905 145,059

Accrued interest 0 2,788

Remeasurement gains recognized 0 -3,699

Disposal from settlement -86 -30,138

Currency translation adjustments -9,873 2,895

As at 31 December 106,946 116,905

According to the effective interest method the liability was compounded until the contractually agreed payment date 

in 2019. Remeasurement gains and losses are recognized in position GAINS / LOSSES FROM REMEASUREMENT 
OF OPTION LIABILITIES.

NOTE 21

LEASING

The capitalized right-of-use assets are allocated to following asset categories:

IN TEUR 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Land and buildings 7,595 8,470

Technical plant and machinery 0 0

Other equipment, operating and office equipment 349 1,196

Total 7,944 9,666
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Right-of-use assets are amortized on a straight-line basis according to the lease term and considering extension 

options. Amortization of the year 2020 breaks down as follows:

IN TEUR 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Land and buildings 1,991 1,551

Technical plant and machinery 0 65

Other equipment, operating and office equipment 659 1,473

Total 2,650 3,089

The maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments included in the present value of lease liabilities as of 

31 December 2020 breaks down as follows:

IN TEUR 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

due < 1 year 2,097 2,779

due 2 - 5 years 4,043 5,201

due > 5 years 2,169 1,593

Total of undiscounted lease payments 8,309 9,573

Amounts recognized in profit and loss relating to leases in 2020 break down as follows:

IN TEUR 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Interest expenses for lease liabilities 319 302

Expenses for short-term leases 348 1,585

Expenses for low value leases 37 34
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NOTE 22

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s share capital as at 31 December 2020 as well as at 31 December 2019 was EUR 16 million and is 

divided into 16 million shares with a par value of EUR 1.00 each.

In the Annual General Meeting from 23 April 2019 the Executive Board was authorized for a period of five years to 

increase share capital by up to TEUR 1,600 through the issue of new shares, provided the consent of the Supervisory 

Board. The Annual General Meeting on 23 April 2020 authorized the Executive Board to acquire treasury shares 

of the Company up to a maximum of 10 % of the share capital for a period of 30 months. In the 2020 financial 

year 231,938 treasury shares were acquired by the Company for a purchase price of TEUR 6,502 based on the 

authorization from the Annual General Meeting from 24 April 2018 which was still valid at this time. In 2019 no treasury 

shares were acquired by the Company. In addition 6,000 treasury shares were acquired over the counter in 2020 for 

a purchase price of TEUR 178 (see Note 33).

As at the 2020 reporting date, the Company held 276,535 treasury shares (previous year: 44,597 shares), which 

corresponds to 1.73 % (previous year: 0.28 %) of the share capital with a cost of TEUR 8,964 (previous year: 

TEUR 2,479). The number of shares outstanding is thus 15,723,465 shares (previous year: 15,955,403 shares).

In the course of a business combination in 2010 an agreement was entered to transfer 50,000 shares as contingent 

consideration, if specified future sales targets were achieved. As the sales target was not met in 2020, there is no 

dilution effect on the number of shares outstanding as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, Berndorf Industrieholding AG, Vienna held approximately 33.4 % of the share capital 

(previous year: approximately 33.4 %).
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NOTE 23

RESERVES

Austrian law requires the establishment of a LEGAL RESERVE in the amount of 10 % of the Company’s nominal share 

capital. As long as the legal reserve and other restricted capital reserves do not reach this amount, the Company is 

required to allocate 5 % of its annual net profit, reduced by a loss carry forward to the legal reserve. Only the annual 

financial statements of the parent company prepared in accordance with Austrian accounting principles are decisive 

for the establishment of this reserve. No further allocation is required because the amount of the reserve already 

recognized is sufficient.

The CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE mainly includes currency translation differences from the inclusion of 

financial statements of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements. Currency translation differences and 

the associated income tax effects from long-term intragroup foreign currency receivables that qualify as part of a 

net investment in a foreign entity are also included in this position. The change in 2020 amounting to TEUR -4,890 

(previous year: TEUR 482) is recognized in OTHER INCOME in the statement of comprehensive income.

RETAINED EARNINGS include current income after tax according to the income statement and, in addition, actuarial 

gains and losses from the revaluation of the net debt from defined benefit severance obligations. These will not be 

reclassified to the income statement in future periods.

In the financial year 2020 a dividend amounting to TEUR 18,861 (previous year: TEUR 15,955) was distributed relating 

to a share capital eligible for dividends of TEUR 15,717 (previous year: TEUR 15,955). Accordingly, the dividend per 

share amounted to EUR 1.20 (previous year: EUR 1.00).
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NOTE 24

SALES REVENUES

Sales break down as follows:

ADVANCED MANUFACTURING  
& SERVICES

OILFIELD EQUIPMENT TOTAL

IN TEUR 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Product sales 141,672 198,764 70,821 120,196 212,493 318,960

Services and repairs 13,933 20,407 2,641 11,398 16,574 31,805

Rental revenue 4,038 4,569 58,054 89,922 62,092 94,491

Total 159,643 223,740 131,516 221,516 291,159 445,256

North America 84,258 113,803 83,739 181,508 167,997 295,311

Europe 32,833 48,538 3,555 3,440 36,388 51,978

Middle East 5,367 8,593 18,827 16,137 24,194 24,730

Other 37,185 52,806 25,395 20,431 62,580 73,237

Total 159,643 223,740 131,516 221,516 291,159 445,256

The revenues are classified based on the customer’s location. In 2020 sales revenues of TEUR 230,015 relate to 

performance obligations which were satisfied at a point of time (previous year: TEUR 347,871) and TEUR 61,144 to 

performance obligations which were satisfied over time (previous year: TEUR 97,385).

The Company rents drilling machinery under rental contracts with terms of generally less than a year. With only a few 

exceptions, rental income charged is based on usage and is therefore variable.
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NOTE 25

ADDITIONAL BREAKDOWN OF EXPENSES

As the Company classifies its expenses by function following the cost of sales method the following additional 

disclosures are required by IAS 1 (presentation using the nature of expense format):

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Cost of materials 102,332 160,169

Personnel expenses 97,354 132,489

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment including 
impairments 32,526 35,498

Amortization of other intangible assets including 
impairments 10,398 12,892

Impairment loss from goodwill 12,112 0

As a result of COVID-19 subsidies received by individual foreign subsidiaries, personnel expenses for the 2020 

financial year were reduced by TEUR 1,151.

NOTE 26

OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES 

The main items within OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES are:

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Research and development expenses 8,289 8,813

Exchange losses 9,772 3,001
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Development costs have not been capitalized to date due to the uncertainties of the future economic benefits 

attributable to them.

The main items within OTHER OPERATING INCOME are: 

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Exchange gains 2,961 6,006

Income from the disposal of fixed assets 997 1,240

NOTE 27

RESTRUCTURING GAINS AND LOSSES

The relocation of production capacities in the "Advanced Manufacturing & Services" (AMS) segment in connection 

with the closure of the locations Techman in the United Kingdom and SBMEX in Mexico initiated in 2018 resulted in 

RESTRUCTURING LOSSES of TEUR 1,367 in 2020 (previous year: TEUR 914). These mainly relate to impairments 

and other expenses relating to the property held for sale in the United Kingdom (see note 12) as well as personnel 

expenses. In addition, restructuring expenses include expenses from the deconsolidation of SBMEX amounting 

to TEUR 778, which result almost exclusively from the reclassification of currency translation differences from the 

CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE into profit and loss.

In connection with these restructuring transactions in the financial year 2019 also RESTRUCTURING GAINS of 

TEUR 746 were achieved, which mainly relate to the sale of machines. 
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NOTE 28

INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSES

INTEREST INCOME breaks down as follows:

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Bank deposits and other loans 1,230 3,493

Effective interest on management interests and 
participation rights 334 105

Interest income 1,574 3,598

INTEREST EXPENSES break down as follows:

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Loans 4,172 4,800

Compounding of the option liability from cancellable non-
controlling interests 0 2,788

Effective interest on management interests and 
participation rights 332 809

Interest expense relating to lease liabilities IFRS 16 319 302

Interest expenses 4,823 8,699

Regarding the option liability from cancellable non-controlling interest see Note 20. 
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NOTE 29

OTHER FINANCIAL EXPENSES

OTHER FINANCIAL EXPENSES in the 2019 financial year include dividend distributions at TEUR 10,665 with respect 

to shares in companies within the SBO Group for which there were put / call option agreements (see Note 20). 

NOTE 30

INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of income taxes applying the Austrian corporate tax rate to consolidated tax rate is presented below: 
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IN TEUR 2020 2019

Consolidated tax expense at a presumed tax rate of 25 % 
(income + / expense -)

 
7,799 -11,972

Foreign tax rate differentials -547 2,742

Change in foreign tax rates (tax loss carryback) 2,180 0

Withholding and foreign taxes -1,528 -782

Valuation of investments 2,207 0

Impairment of goodwill -538 0

Non-deductible expenses -838 -598

Non-taxable income and tax allowances 252 63

Prior year adjustments 135 316

Unrecognized tax loss carryforwards -1,885 -3,422

Utilization of tax loss carryforwards not recognized in the 
previous year 1,155 424

Profit share of management interests and non-controlling 
interests 68 -2,155

Other differences 1,035 -176

Consolidated tax expense / income 9,495 -15,560

Profit / loss before tax -31,196 47,889

Consolidated tax rate 30.4 % 32.5 %

INCOME TAXES break down as follows:

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Current taxes 4,778 -16,177

Deferred taxes 4,717 617

Total 9,495 -15,560
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The current tax income on the one hand results from tax loss carry back options in North America introduced as part 

of the COVID-19 aid package ("CARES Act") and the application of higher US tax rates from the past and on the other 

hand from tax claims with regard to impairment of investments.

The following income taxes were recognized under OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Current taxes

Remeasurements IAS 19 -16 200

Total -16 200

Due to currency translation differences the net deferred tax asset presented in the balance sheet was reduced by 

TEUR 2,133 in the 2020 financial year (previous year: increased by TEUR 278).

The Company’s dividend distribution to shareholders did not result in any income tax consequences for the Company 

for the 2020 financial year or the 2019 comparison period.

NOTE 31

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates worldwide, mainly in one single industry segment, the design and manufacturing of drilling 

equipment for the oil and gas industry.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the following segment report follows the management approach, in which the entire 

Executive Board of SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN OILFIELD EQUIPMENT Aktiengesellschaft is the chief operating 

decision maker monitoring the performance of the business units and deciding on the allocation of resources to the 

business segments.
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The "Advanced Manufacturing & Services" (AMS) segment comprises the high-precision manufacturing and repair 

of drill collars and complex MWD (Measurement While Drilling) / LWD (Logging While Drilling) components from non-

magnetic, corrosion resistant stainless steel. These form the housing for the sensitive measuring instruments that are 

used for the precise measurement of inclination and direction of the drillstring as well as petrophysical parameters.

The "Oilfield Equipment" (OE) segment bundles a wide range of highly-specialized solutions for the oil and gas 

industry: High-performance drilling motors and tools for the targeted driving of the drill string, special tools for downhole 

circulation technology (circulation tools), and products for the resource-efficient completion of reservoirs in the two 

dominant technologies, Sliding Sleeve and Plug-n-Perf.

Management of the Company and the allocation of resources are based on the financial performance of these 

segments. Management monitors sales revenues, profit from operations, and profit / loss before tax of the business 

units separately for the purpose of making decisions on the allocation of resources.

The amounts presented are a summary of the separate balance sheets and income statements the individual 

companies included in the consolidated financial statements. Individual holding adjustments and consolidation entries 

(elimination of intercompany profit and loss and other intragroup transactions) must be accounted for to attain the 

consolidated results presented. Results in the total column correspond to those in the profit and loss statement.

Intragroup sales are made at arm’s length conditions.

2020
IN TEUR ADVANCED 

MANUFACTURING & 
SERVICES

OILFIELD 
EQUIPMENT

SBO-HOLDING & 
CONSOLIDATION

GROUP

External sales 159,643 131,516 0 291,159

Intercompany sales 38,642 18,799 -57,441 0

Total sales 198,285 150,315 -57,441 291,159

Profit / loss from operations  
before impairments and restructuring measures 14,355 -6,780 -13,203 -5,628

Profit / loss before tax 6,195 -19,887 -17,504 -31,196

Capital expenditures 4,458 13,646 28 18,132

Depreciation and amortization 19,770 34,526 740 55,036

thereof impairments 7,754 6,906 0 14,660

Headcount (average) 849 394 30 1,273
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In the 2020 financial year profit / loss before tax in the segment "Advanced Manufacturing & Services" (AMS) includes, 

besides the impairments of goodwill shown above, restructuring losses of TEUR 2,146. In the segment "Oilfield 

Equipment" (OE) profit / loss before tax in the year 2020 includes besides the impairments of intangible assets and 

fixed assets also impairments of current assets in amount of TEUR 5,529 (see Notes 7, 9 and 27).

2019
IN TEUR ADVANCED 

MANUFACTURING & 
SERVICES

OILFIELD 
EQUIPMENT

SBO-HOLDING & 
CONSOLIDATION

GROUP

External sales 223,740 221,516 0 445,256

Intercompany sales 82,921 22,598 -105,519 0

Total sales 306,661 244,114 -105,519 445,256

Profit / loss from operations  
before impairments and restructuring measures 33,867 28,662 -1,685 60,844

Profit / loss before tax 33,983 18,823 -4,917 47,889

Capital expenditures 11,868 23,523 24 35,415

Depreciation and amortization 14,114 33,460 816 48,390

thereof impairments 485 0 0 485

Headcount (average) 931 589 27 1,547

In the 2019 financial year profit / loss before tax in the segment "Oilfield Equipment" (OE) includes a gain from the 

remeasurement of the option liability in the amount of TEUR 3,699. In addition to impairment expenses of TEUR 485 

reported above profit / loss before tax of the segment "Advanced Manufacturing & Services" (AMS) includes 

restructuring losses of TEUR 914 and restructuring gains of TEUR 746 in 2019.
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Geographic information:

Sales break down as follows:

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Austria 1,488 1,916

USA 158,335 276,962

Rest of World 131,336 166,378

Total sales 291,159 445,256

The revenues are classified based on the customer’s location. There are no other countries with sales exceeding 10 % 

of the SBO Group’s total sales.

See Note 36 for information regarding the most important customers.

Non-current assets break down as follows:

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Austria 33,731 37,774

United Kingdom 13,130 15,821

USA 163,683 206,200

Canada 4,323 6,407

United Arab Emirates 27,019 32,944

Rest of World 11,647 14,207

Total non-current assets 253,533 313,353

Assets are classified based on each company’s location.
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NOTE 32 

REMUNERATION OF THE EXECUTIVE AND SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Executive Board’s remuneration was comprised of the following:

2020
IN TEUR FIXED VARIABLE TOTAL

Gerald Grohmann 674 444 1,118

Klaus Mader 448 214 662

Total 1,122 658 1,780

2019
IN TEUR FIXED VARIABLE TOTAL

Gerald Grohmann 665 534 1,199

Klaus Mader 452 251 703

Total 1,117 785 1,902

The variable remuneration relates to amounts granted for the prior year that were paid out in the current year.

Expenses for pensions and severance payments for the two members of the Executive Board amounted to TEUR 118 

(previous year: TEUR 437), which relate to expenses of TEUR 142 (previous year: TEUR 151) for defined contribution 

pension agreements and a gain in amount of TEUR 24 (previous year: expense of TEUR 286) for defined benefit 

agreements. Expenses for share-based payments incurred in financial years 2020 and 2019 are not included in the 

remuneration amounts presented above. See Note 33 for information on the voluntary severance and share-based 

payments.



169

	 Notes to the consolidated financial statements  |   CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	 �   

Remuneration for the Supervisory Board of the 2020 financial year relating to the 2019 financial year amounted to 

TEUR 173 (previous year: TEUR 220), which was a combination of a flat reimbursement for expenses and a variable 

component based on the Group’s results.

No loans were granted to the members of the Executive or Supervisory Boards in the 2020 or 2019 financial years. 

NOTE 33

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Share-based payments in the 2020 financial year resulted in expenses of TEUR 326 (previous year: TEUR 605). In 

the 2014 financial year, the Chairman of the Executive Board, Mr Gerald Grohmann, was granted an annual transfer 

of 6,000 SBO shares, contingent upon valid employment. The first transfer was made in 2014. Mr Grohmann may 

not dispose of or encumber the shares for a period of two years following each transfer, however not exceeding 

the termination of the employment agreement. In 2018 the annual granting of 6,000 SBO shares was extended in 

accordance with the extension of the Management Board mandate until 2021. The market value of 6,000 shares 

at the transfer date in 2020 was TEUR 153 (previous year: TEUR 444). The market value of the 12,000 shares 

already transferred and still subject to disposal restrictions was TEUR 373 as at 31 December 2020 (previous 

year: 12,000 shares with a market value of TEUR 604). As part of the existing contract the company repurchased 

6,000 shares in the first quarter of 2020 from Ing. Grohmann, for which a payment at the market value on the day of 

repurchase of TEUR 178 was made.

Also in the 2014 financial year, the Company granted the Chairman of the Executive Board a voluntary severance 

payment of 30,000 SBO shares at the end of the employment contract. At the commitment date the value per share 

was determined to be EUR 70.00, based on the average price for the preceding 36 months. As provisions were made 

already in previous years there were no further expenses for the company in 2020. The expense related to share 

based payments is not included in the remuneration disclosed in Note 32 due to the existing restraint on disposal and 

due to the severance payments granted only at the end of employment.
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NOTE 34

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The following transactions with related parties not included in the SBO Group’s scope of consolidation were settled 

at arm’s length conditions:

The law firm of Schleinzer & Partner is the Company’s legal consultant. One of the law firm’s partners, Dr Karl Schleinzer, 

was a member of the Supervisory Board until April 2020. Professional fees for 2020 amounted to TEUR 36 (previous 

year: TEUR 36), of which TEUR 9 was unsettled as at 31 December 2020 (previous year: TEUR 9).
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NOTE 35

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments

FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

The Austrian company hedges its receivables balances denominated in US dollars and CAN dollars by entering into 

forward exchange contracts. All transactions are short-term exposures (3 - 8 months).

FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS AS AT 31.12.2020
IN TEUR RECEIVABLES AT  

HEDGED RATE
RECEIVABLES AT  

REPORTING DATE RATE
FAIR VALUE

USD 4,630 4,475 155

CAD 289 287 2

FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS AS AT 31.12.2019
IN TEUR RECEIVABLES AT  

HEDGED RATE
RECEIVABLES AT  

REPORTING DATE RATE
FAIR VALUE

USD 15,234 15,099 135

CAD 339 341 -2

The forward exchange contracts are measured at fair value and recognized in profit or loss since the requirements for 

hedge accounting in accordance with IAS 39 are not fully met.

OTHER DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

There is also an option liability relating to cancellable non-controlling interests (see Note 20).
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Overview of existing financial instruments
The following table shows the financial instruments, broken down by categories in accordance with IFRS 9:

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS� 31.12.2020
IN TEUR VALUATION METHOD ACC. TO IFRS 9

Carrying  
amount

No financial 
instrument

Financial  
asset at  

amortized cost

Financial  
liability at 

amortized cost

At fair value  
through  

profit & loss

Carrying amount 
financial  

instrument

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 313,950 0 313,950 313,950

Trade receivables 54,252 0 54,252 54,252

Income tax receivable  3,227 3,227 0

Other receivables and other assets 4,862 4,705 157 157

Assets held for sale 2,215 2,215 0

Inventories 114,015 114,015 0

Total current assets 492,521 124,162 368,202 0 157 368,359

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 121,362 121,362 0

Goodwill 117,708 117,708 0

Other intangible assets 14,463 14,463 0

Long-term receivables and assets 3,930 865 3,065 3,065

Deferred tax assets 27,903 27,903 0

Total non-current assets 285,366 282,301 3,065 0 0 3,065

TOTAL ASSETS 777,887 406,463 371,267 0 157 371,424

Current liabilities

Liabilities to banks 33,938 0 33,938 33,938

Current portion of long-term loans 25,236 0 25,236 25,236

Lease liabilities 2,222 0 2,222 2,222*

Trade payables 17,072 0 17,072 17,072

Government grants 215 215 0

Income tax payable 1,191 1,191 0

Other liabilities 138,415 16,284 15,185 106,946 122,131

Other provisions 6,562 6,562 0

Total current liabilities 224,851 24,252 0 93,653 106,946 200,599

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans 245,312 0 245,312 245,312

Lease liabilities 5,125 0 5,125 5,125*

Government grants 89 89 0 0

Provisions for employee benefits 6,859 6,859 0 0

Other liabilities 8,484 261 8,223 8,223

Deferred tax liabilities 129 129 0 0

Total non-current liabilities 265,998 7,338 0 258,660 0 258,660

Equity

Share capital 15,723 15,723 0

Capital reserve 62,780 62,780 0

Legal reserve 785 785 0

Other reserves 19 19 0

Currency translation reserve -3,747 -3,747 0

Retained earnings 211,478 211,478 0

Total equity 287,038 287,038 0 0 0 0

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 777,887 318,628 0 352,313 106,946 459,259

* Lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost according to IFRS 16.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS � 31.12.2019
IN TEUR VALUATION METHOD ACC. TO IFRS 9

Carrying  
amount

No financial 
instrument

Financial  
asset at  

amortized cost

Financial  
liability at 

amortized cost

At fair value  
through  

profit & loss

Carrying amount 
financial  

instrument

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 265,211 0 265,211 265,211

Trade receivables 112,257 0 112,257 112,257

Income tax receivable  264 264 0

Other receivables and other assets 7,147 7,003 144 144

Assets held for sale 3,301 3,301 0

Inventories 141,959 141,956 0

Total current assets 530,136 152,524 377,468 0 144 377,612

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 146,647 146,647 0

Goodwill 140,435 140,435 0

Other intangible assets 26,271 26,217 0

Long-term receivables and assets 5,235 771 4,464 4,464

Deferred tax assets 25,885 25,885 0

Total non-current assets 344,473 340,009 4,464 0 0 4,464

TOTAL ASSETS 874,609 492,533 381,932 0 144 382,076

Current liabilities

Liabilities to banks 31,052 0 31,052 31,052

Current portion of long-term loans 47,496 0 47,596 47,596

Lease liabilities 2,595 0 2,595 2,595*

Trade payables 24,736 0 24,736 24,736

Government grants 319 319 0

Income tax payable 7,392 7,392 0

Other liabilities 155,518 23,914 14,688 116,916 131,604

Other provisions 3,014 3,014 0

Total current liabilities 272,222 34,639 0 120,667 116,916 237,583

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans 206,683 0 206,683 206,683

Lease liabilities 5,899 0 5,899 5,899*

Government grants 304 304 0 0

Provisions for employee benefits 6,862 6,862 0 0

Other liabilities 11,858 207 11,651 11,651

Deferred tax liabilities 695 695 0 0

Total non-current liabilities 232,301 8,068 0 224,233 0 224,233

Equity

Share capital 15,995 15,995 0

Capital reserve 68,902 68,902 0

Legal reserve 785 785 0

Other reserves 19 19 0

Currency translation reserve 32,434 32,434 0

Retained earnings 251,991 251,991 0

Total equity 370,086 370,086 0 0 0 0

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 874,609 412,793 0 344,900 116,916 461,816

* Lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost according to IFRS 16.
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Fair value of financial instruments

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments by 

valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities.

Level 2: �Techniques for which all inputs which have significant effects on the recognized fair value are observable, 

either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: �Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recognized fair value that are not based 

on observable market data.

The financial instruments recognized at fair value in the consolidated financial statements are allocated as shown 

below: 

2020
IN TEUR BALANCE SHEET ITEM TOTAL LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3

Assets

Derivatives (FVTPL)
Other receivables and other 

assets 157 157 0

Liabilities

Derivatives (FVTPL) Other liabilities -106,946 0 -106,946

2019
IN TEUR BALANCE SHEET ITEM TOTAL LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3

Assets

Derivatives (FVTPL)
Other receivables and other 

assets 144 144 0

Liabilities

Derivatives (FVTPL) Other liabilities -116,916 -11 -116,905
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There were no reclassifications between the individual measurement levels during the 2020 and 2019 reporting 

periods. If required, items are generally reclassified at the end of the reporting period.

The derivatives assigned to level 3 exclusively consist of the option liability from cancellable non-controlling interests 

(see Note 20).

The forward exchange contracts are measured based on observable spot exchange rates.

For fixed rate loans received and lease liabilities, the fair value was calculated by discounting the expected future 

cashflows using market interest rates. For variable rate bank loans and loans received and issued, discounting 

corresponds to current market rates, which is why the carrying amounts largely equal the fair values. Cash and cash 

equivalents, trade receivables and trade payables and all other items have mostly short residual terms. The carrying 

amounts therefore equal the fair values on the reporting date.
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The carrying amount and the different fair value for financial instruments measured at cost are presented in the table 

below:

2020 2019
IN TEUR LEVEL CARRYING AMOUNT FAIR  

VALUE
CARRYING AMOUNT FAIR  

VALUE

Liabilities

Loans and bank  
liabilities 2 -304,486 -312,196 -285,331 -293,595

Net result from financial instruments

The following table shows the gains/losses (net result) by categories in accordance with IFRS 9: 

2020
IN TEUR REMEASUREMENT DERECOGNITION/DISPOSAL

ADJUSTMENT PROFIT AND  
LOSS

OTHER  
COMPREHENSIVE  

INCOME

PROFIT AND  
LOSS

OTHER  
COMPREHENSIVE  

INCOME

NET RESULT

at amortized costs  
(loans and receivables) -1,304 - - -280 - -1,584

at fair value through  
profit or loss (derivatives) - +24 - - - +24
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2019
IN TEUR REMEASUREMENT DERECOGNITION/DISPOSAL

ADJUSTMENT PROFIT AND  
LOSS

OTHER  
COMPREHENSIVE  

INCOME

PROFIT AND  
LOSS

OTHER  
COMPREHENSIVE  

INCOME

NET RESULT

at amortized costs  
(loans and receivables) -1,439 - - -58 - -1,497

at fair value through  
profit or loss (derivatives) - +1,123 - - - +1,123

The total interest expense determined using the effective interest method for financial liabilities not valued at fair value 

through profit or loss was TEUR 4,823 (previous year: TEUR 5,911). Net results in the category at amortized costs 

include interest expenses of TEUR 0 (previous year: TEUR 0) and in the category at fair value through profit or loss 

TEUR 0 (previous year: TEUR 2,788).

NOTE 36

RISK REPORT

The SBO Group’s operations are exposed to a number of risks that are inextricably linked to its worldwide business 

activities. Efficient management and control systems are used to recognize, analyze, and manage these risks, with 

the help of which the management of the individual operations monitors the operating risks and reports them to Group 

management.

From a current perspective, no risks can be identified that jeopardize the Company’s existence as a going concern.
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GENERAL ECONOMIC RISKS, COVID-19 AND ITS CONSEQUENCES

The business development of SBO is to a large extent exposed to economic cycles, in particular to the cycle of oil 

and gas drilling activities of national and international oil companies. In order to minimize the associated fluctuation risk 

in bookings, the group‘s production entities are designed for highest possible flexibility.

Global economic output was heavily impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic in the 2020 financial year. The forecasts 

for the short-term effects on the global economy are still associated with high uncertainties. High liquidity and a sound 

balance sheet support our position even in a challenging environment. Consistent working capital management and 

precautionary borrowings in the financial year 2020 further strengthened our liquidity base. CAPEX were reduced to a 

minimum and cost savings were implemented as part of crisis management.

Apart from that, the energy sector is also in a long-term transition with the aim of gradually replacing fossil fuels with 

renewable energies. A tightened climate policy could trigger a decline in the demand for oil and thereby affect the 

business of the SBO Group. But an energy turnaround can only be achieved through oil and natural gas, because 

these form integral parts for technologies in the field of renewable energies. Gas is also an indispensable part in the 

energy mix and plays an essential role for the exit from coal. SBO sees itself as part of the energy transition and rates 

climate-related risks for its business model as low.

Further information on general economic risks can be found in the management report.

SALES AND PROCUREMENT RISKS

The market for the SBO Group’s products and services is determined to a great extent by the continuous development 

and use of new technologies. Securing and maintaining the customer base therefore depends on the ability to offer 

new products and services tailored to the customer’s needs.

In 2020, the three largest customers (which are globally-active service companies in the directional drilling market) 

accounted for a share of sales of approximately 44.0 % (previous year: 36.0 %). SBO counters the risk of suffering 

potential noticeable sales declines from the loss of a customer through continuous innovation, quality assurance 

measures and close customer retention.
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On the procurement side, raw materials and in particular alloy surcharges for non-magnetic steel are subject to significant 

price fluctuations. These are partly passed on to customers with alloy surcharges being part of our agreements. The 

Company procures high-alloy special steel, which is its most essential raw material, to a great extent from one supplier 

and is therefore exposed to the risk of delayed deliveries, capacity bottlenecks, or business interruptions. From today‘s 

perspective, the Company foresees no difficulty in continuing to obtain quality steel from this supplier. However, in the 

event of a failure by this supplier, there are only limited options for replacement procurement in the short-term.

SUBSTITUTION RISKS

SBO is subject to the risk of substitution of its products and technologies, which may also result in the growth of 

new competitors. SBO counters this risk through ongoing market observation, active proximity to customers, and 

proprietary innovations.

FINANCIAL RISKS

One the one hand, the Company has various financial assets, such as trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, 

and short-term investments as a direct result of its business operations. On the other hand, it also uses financial 

instruments such as liabilities to banks and trade payables, which ensure the financing of the Company’s operations.

In addition, the Company has derivative financial instruments to hedge foreign exchange risks arising from its business 

operations and financing sources. Derivatives are not used for trading or speculative purposes.

The financial instruments principally entail interest-related cashflow risks, as well as liquidity, currency, and credit risks.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

Foreign currency risks arise from fluctuations in the value of financial instruments or cashflows as a result of exchange 

rate fluctuations.

Foreign currency risks arise in the SBO Group where balance sheet items and income and expenses are generated or 

incurred in a currency other than the local currency. Forward exchange contracts (mainly in US dollars) are concluded 

to hedge receivables and liabilities in foreign currencies.

Over the long-term, SBO invoices an average of approximately 80 % of its sales in US dollars. This is due to its 

customer structure which mainly comprises companies of the oil- and gas industry headquartered in the US that 

settle their worldwide activities in US dollars. Also, from a long-term perspective, only about 50 % to 60 % of costs 

are incurred in US dollars as important production facilities are located not just in the US. For reasons of costs and 

expedience, SBO does not hedge its entire net dollar exposure. In any case, SBO’s earnings are dependent on the 

USD/EUR exchange rate.

Additional risks arise from translating the annual financial statements of the foreign companies into the Group currency. 

Sales, earnings, and carrying amounts of these companies depend on the applicable exchange rate. As a result of 

the significant investments in the US, the primary sales market and location of important production facilities, changes 

in the US dollar have a substantial impact on the consolidated financial statements.

The table below shows the impact of a potential change in the USD exchange rate on the consolidated financial 

statements, based on reasonable judgment, and only in respect of the changes in value of derivative instruments 

(forward exchange contracts) as there are no material trade receivables or trade payables that are not denominated 

in the Group’s functional currency:

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Change in EUR/USD exchange rate +10 cents -10 cents +10 cents -10 cents

Change in profit / loss before tax +390 -390 +1,365 -1,365
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INTEREST RATE RISKS

Interest rate risks result from fluctuations in market interest rates which lead to changes in value of financial instruments 

and interest rate-related cashflows.

Almost all long-term loans existing as at the reporting date have fixed interest rates and are therefore not subject 

to interest rate risk. However, the fair value of these long-term loans is subject to fluctuations. The interest rates for 

individual loans are disclosed in Note 17. With the exception of loans and lease liabilities, no other liabilities are interest 

bearing and therefore are not subject to any interest rate risk.

The interest rate risk is further reduced by the portfolio of short-term interest-bearing investments which the Company 

continuously holds. Depending on whether the Company has a surplus of financial resources on the investment or 

borrowing side, interest rate risks could therefore result from an increase or decrease in interest rates.

The table below shows the impact of a possible potential change in interest rates, based on reasonable judgment, on 

the interest expense for variable-rate liabilities to banks and on interest income for variable-rate bank balances (there 

are no impacts on consolidated equity):

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Change in basis points + 10 + 20 + 10 + 20

Change in profit / loss before tax +159 +318 +160 +320
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CREDIT RISKS

Credit risk arises from the non-performance of contractual obligations by business partners and the resulting asset 

losses. The maximum default risk equals the carrying amount of the receivables.

The credit risk related to our receivables from customers can be considered as low as there have been long-standing, 

stable business relations with all major customers. Furthermore, the creditworthiness of new and existing customers 

is checked regularly and outstanding balances are monitored closely. Loss allowances are recognized for credit risks 

(see Notes 4 and 5).

With regard to loans to the management of subsidiaries, the credit risk is limited by the surety of the acquired shares 

(see Note 10).

For other financial assets (cash and cash equivalents), the maximum credit risk upon default of the counterparty is the 

carrying amount of the financial instrument. However, this credit risk may be considered as low since we only choose 

highly-rated banks.

LIQUIDITY RISKS

Liquidity risk consists in the risk of not being able to access the financial resources required to settle liabilities incurred 

at all times and in due time.

Due to the Company’s strong self-financing capability, the liquidity risk is relatively low. The Company generates liquid 

funds through its operating business and uses external bank financing when needed. Due to spreading financing 

facilities across the world, there is no material risk concentration.

A key instrument of liquidity management is the ongoing monitoring of liquidity and financial planning of the operating 

units by Group Management. Financing requirements are centrally managed and based on the consolidated financial 

reporting of the Group members.
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The tables below show all contractually obligated payments as at 31 December for principal payments, repayments, 

and interest from recognized financial liabilities, including derivative financial instruments, with disclosure of the 

undiscounted cashflows for the following financial years:

31.12.2020
IN TEUR DUE ON DEMAND 2021 2022 2023 2024 or beyond

Liabilities to banks 34,139

Long-term loans - 29,848 27,014 62,768 171,923

Lease liabilities - 2,097 1,493 1,374 3,345

Management interests and participation 
rights - - - - 6,794

Trade payables - 17,072 - - -

Derivatives - 106,946 - - -

Other - 31,469 702 55 933

Total 34,139 187,432 29,209 64,197 182,995

31.12.2019
IN TEUR DUE ON DEMAND 2020 2021 2022 2023 or beyond

Liabilities to banks 31,243 - - - -

Long-term loans - 51,988 46,489 24,747 148,028

Lease liabilities - 2,779 1,926 1,373 3,495

Management interests and participation 
rights - - - - 9,510

Trade payables - 24,736 - - -

Derivatives - 116,916 - - -

Other - 39,121 886 300 1,162

Total 31,243 235,540 49,301 26,420 162,195

Derivatives as of 31 December 2020 shown above as due in 2021 (as of 31 December 2019 as due in 2020) mainly 

refer to the option liability for cancellable non-controlling interests (see Note 20).
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Capital management

The Company’s primary goal is to ensure to maintain a high credit rating and a solid equity ratio in order to support our 

operations and maximize shareholder value.

The gearing ratio (net debt and net liquidity, respectively, as a percentage of equity) is used in particular to monitor and 

manage capital. Net debt and net liquidity, respectively, comprise long-term loans and bank liabilities, less cash and 

cash equivalents.

The gearing ratio was -3.3 % as at 31 December 2020 (previous year: 5.4 %):

IN TEUR 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Liabilities to banks 33,938 31,052

Long-term loans 270,548 254,279

Less: cash and cash equivalents -313,950 -265,211

Net liquidity (-) / net debt (+) -9,464 20,120

Total equity 287,038 370,086

Gearing -3.3 % 5.4 %

For the shareholders of the parent, the average long-term dividend rate aimed for is 30 % to 60 % (of the consolidated 

profit after tax).



185

	 Notes to the consolidated financial statements  |   CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	 �   

NOTE 37

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 or 31 December 2019.

NOTE 38

OTHER OBLIGATIONS

Other obligations exist solely from short-term leases or low value leases (see Note 21) and purchase commitments for 

investments in property, plant and equipment (see Note 8). 
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NOTE 39

CASHFLOW STATEMENT

The Company’s cashflow statement shows the change of cash and cash equivalents for the Company and the 

subsidiaries during the reporting year as a result of cash inflows and outflows. Cash funds correspond to the cash 

and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet and are comprised solely of cash-in-hand and bank balances 

including short-term deposits.

Within the cashflow statement, cashflows are broken down into cashflows from operating activities, from investing 

activities and from financing activities.

The cashflows from foreign operations have been allowed for by applying average foreign exchange rates.

The cashflows from operating activities are determined using the indirect method by starting with adjusting net income 

after income taxes and adjusting it for non-cash income and expenses. This result and the recognized changes in 

working capital (excluding cash funds) equal the cashflow from operating activities.

Cash inflows and outflows from current operations include inflows and outflows from interest payments and income 

taxes.

Dividend payments are presented as part of financing activities. 

See to Note 20 for details on payments relating to the purchase of minority interests. 
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Financial liabilities were as follows during the 2020 and 2019 financial years: 

2020 1.1.2020 CASH  
CHANGES

NON-CASH  
CHANGES

31.12.2020

IN TEUR Foreign  
currency effects

Other  
changes 

Long-term loans including 
current portion 254,279 16,372 -103 0 270,548

Liabilities to banks 31,052 3,509 -623 0 33,938

Lease liabilities 8,494 -2,484 -552 1,888 7,346

Other financial liabilities 9,510 -1,837 -405 -474 6,794

Total liabilities from 
financing activities 303,335 15,560 -1,683 1,414 318,626

2019 1.1.2019 CASH  
CHANGES

NON-CASH  
CHANGES

31.12.2019

IN TEUR Foreign  
currency effects

Other  
changes 

Long-term loans including 
current portion 272,588 -18,309 0 0 254,279

Liabilities to banks 31,412 -740 380 0 31,052

Lease liabilities 7,713 -3,260 273 3,768 8,494

Other financial liabilities 17,459 -3,793 206 -4,362 9,510

Total liabilities from 
financing activities 329,172 -26,102 859 -594 303,335
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NOTE 40

EMPLOYEES

The number of employees on an annual average and as at the reporting date was:

ANNUAL AVERAGE REPORTING DATE
2020 2019 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Blue collar 852 1,017 728 1,020

White collar 421 530 403 515

1,273 1,547 1,131 1,535

NOTE 41

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

After the reporting date there were no events of particular significance that would have changed the presentation 

of the Group’s net assets, financial position, and results of operations in the consolidated financial statements as at 

31 December 2020.
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NOTE 42

PROPOSED DIVIDEND

The Executive Board recommends distributing no dividend for 2020. In the previous year a dividend distribution of 

EUR 1.20 per share was made which resulted in a total distribution of MEUR 18.9. 

NOTE 43

EXPENSES INCURRED FOR THE GROUP AUDITOR

The following expenses were incurred for the Group auditor, Ernst & Young Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft m. b. H.:

IN TEUR 2020 2019

Audit fees 158 178

Other services 34 63

Audit fees for the years 2020 and 2019 include both the audit of the consolidated financial statements as well as the 

audits of the financial statements of the entities in Austria.



190

	 PART 2: Areas of sustainability and developments in 2020  |   CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	 �   

MANAGEMENT 
DISCLOSURES___

EXECUTIVE BOARD:

Ing. Gerald Grohmann  
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mag. Klaus Mader  
(Chief Financial Officer) 

The current executive board contract with Mr Gerald 

Grohmann is effective for a term of office until 31 

December 2021 and that of Mr Klaus Mader until 30 

September 2023.

COMMITTEES OF THE 
SUPERVISORY BOARD:

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

	 Mag. Norbert Zimmermann 
	 Mag. Dipl. Ing. Helmut Langanger 
	 Mag. Sonja Zimmermann

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

	 Mag. Norbert Zimmermann 
	 Dr. Wolfram Littich 
	 Mag. Sonja Zimmermann

SUPERVISORY BOARD:

Mag. Norbert Zimmermann  
(Chairman) 
	 Initial appointment: 1995 

	 End of the current term: 2022

Mag. Brigitte Ederer  
(Deputy Chairwoman) 
	 Initial appointment: 2014 

	 End of the current term: 2024

Mag. Dipl. Ing. Helmut Langanger 
	 Initial appointment: 2003 

	 End of the current term: 2024

Dr. Wolfram Littich 
	 Initial appointment: 2016 

	 End of the current term: 2021

Dr. Karl Schleinzer 
	 Initial appointment: 1995 (until 23.04.2020) 

	� retired upon conclusion of the Annual General 

Meeting

Mag. Sonja Zimmermann 
	 Initial appointment: 2018  

	 End of the current term: 2023
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Each year at least one member of the Supervisory Board 

retires at the end of the Annual General Meeting, which 

ensures that the election of at least one member to the 

Supervisory Board can be resolved during the annual 

meeting. To the extent the retirement sequence does 

not arise from the term of office, it is decided by lot. In 

the Supervisory Board meeting that takes place prior to 

the holding of an annual general meeting for discussing 

proposed resolutions and nominations in accordance 

with Section 108 (1) Austrian Stock Corporation Act 

(Aktiengesetz, ‘AktG’), the member of the Supervisory 

Board who will retire at the end of the subsequent 

annual general meeting must be determined by lot. The 

retiring member can be reelected immediately.

Ternitz, 2 March 2021

	 Gerald Grohmann	 Klaus Mader

Executive Board
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AUDITOR'S REPORT*
REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUDIT OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements 

of SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN OILFIELD EQUIPMENT 
Aktiengesellschaft, Ternitz, and of its subsidiaries (the 

Group) comprising the consolidated statement of financial 

position as of December 31, 2020, the consolidated 

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 

income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity 

and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the 

fiscal year then ended and the notes to the consolidated 

financial statements.

Based on our audit the accompanying consolidated 

financial statements were prepared in accordance with 

the legal regulations and present fairly, in all material 

respects, the assets and the financial position of the 

Group as of December 31, 2020 and its financial 

performance for the year then ended in accordance with 

the International Financial Reportings Standards (IFRS) as 

adopted by EU, and the additional requirements under 

Section 245a Austrian Company Code UGB.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the regulation 

(EU) no. 537/2014 (in the following „EU regulation“) and in 

accordance with Austrian Standards on Auditing. Those 

standards require that we comply with International 

Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under 

those regulations and standards are further described 

in the „Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements“ section of our report. 

We are independent of the Group in accordance with 

the Austrian General Accepted Accounting Principles 

and professional requirements and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion as of that date.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 

professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements of the fiscal 

year. These matters were addressed in the context of 

our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We considered the following matters as key audit matter 

for our audit: 

1.	 Valuation of goodwill 

2.	� Valuation of property, plant and equipment and 

inventories in the Oilfield Equipment segment

1. Valuation of goodwill

DESCRIPTION
In its consolidated financial statements, SCHOELLER-

BLECKMANN OILFIELD EQUIPMENT Aktiengesellschaft 

shows Goodwill of mEUR 117.7.

Under IFRS, as adopted by the EU, an entity is required to 

annually test the amount of goodwill for impairment. In 2020, 

goodwill impairment losses of mEUR 12.5 were already 

recognized during the year as a result of the COVID 19 

pandemic.

Recoverability of goodwill depends on both external 

factors such as the development of oil prices, the 

development of input factors for discount rates, rig counts 
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and drilling activities as well as internal evaluations such 

as the development of customer behavior and requires 

management discretionary decisions. The significant risk 

in the course of performing tests of impairment lies in the 

estimation of future cash flows and discount rates. 

We refer to the disclosure in the notes to the consolidated 

financial statements in sections „Note 4, pts 9“ and „Note 

9, subsection 1. Goodwill“.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE MATTER:
To address this risk, we have performed, among others, 

the following audit procedures:

We have assessed the design of the entity’s procedures 

for conducting impairment tests.

The composition of the cash-generating units (CGUs) 

as well as the allocation of the assets, liabilities and 

cashflows thereto has been audited.

Forecasted sales, results and investments were 

reconciled to approved budgets by the Board of 

Management and material planning assumptions (sales, 

expenditures, investments, changes in Working Capital) 

have been assessed in order to verify the appropriateness 

of budget information. For selected CGUs, we have 

reconciled the planning assumptions with external market 

data. Cashflows used in the group’s impairment tests 

have been assessed regarding the methodology as well 

as clerical accuracy. Assumptions related to discount 

factors as well as growth rates have been assessed as 

well.

We involved EY valuation specialists in our audit proce

dures related to the assessment of the appropriateness 

of valuation models, cash flow assumptions as well as 

input factors.

We also evaluated whether disclosures regarding 

impairment testing in the notes to the consolidated 

financial statements were made in line with IAS 36.

2. Valuation of property, plant and equipment and 
inventories in the Oilfield Equipment segment

DESCRIPTION
In its consolidated financial statements as of December 

31, 2020, SCHOELLER-BLECKMANN OILFIELD 

EQUIPMENT Aktiengesellschaft discloses carrying 

amounts for property, plant and equipment of EUR 121.4 

million and carrying amounts for inventories of EUR 114.0 

million. In 2020, impairment losses of EUR 1.7 million 

were recognized on property, plant and equipment and 

impairment losses of EUR 5.7 million on inventories in the 

Oilfield Equipment segment during the year as a result of 

the COVID 19 pandemic. 

Under IFRS, as adopted by the EU, an entity is required 

to assess for intangible assets with finite useful lives and 

property, plant and equipment at each balance sheet 

date whether there is any indication that an asset may 

be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity shall 

estimate the asset‘s recoverable amount. For inventories, 

IFRS require measurement at the lower of cost and net 

realizable value.

Recoverability of property, plant and equipment depends 

on external factors, such as the effects of the COVID 19 

pandemic and related developments in oil prices, input 

factors for discount rates, rig counts and drilling activities, 

as well as internal estimates regarding further development 

of customer behavior and requires management to make 

judgments. The main risk in the context of impairment 

testing is the estimation of future cash flows and discount 

rates. The main risk in estimating the net realizable value 

of inventories is the determination of appropriate write-

downs.

The corresponding disclosures of SCHOELLER-

BLECKMANN OILFIELD EQUIPMENT Aktiengesellschaft 

on property, plant and equipment as well as on the 

related impairment tests are included in the notes to the 

consolidated financial statements in sections „Note 4, 
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pts 8“ and „Note 8“. The disclosures on inventories and 

the related impairment losses are included in sections 

„Note 4, pts 7” and „Note 7“ to the consolidated financial 

statements.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE MATTER:
To address this risk, we have performed, among others, 

the following audit procedures:

We have assessed the design of the entity’s procedures 

for conducting impairment tests.

The composition of the cash-generating units (CGUs) 

as well as the allocation of the assets, liabilities and 

cashflows thereto has been audited.

Forecasted sales, results and investments were 

reconciled to approved budgets by the Board of 

Management and material planning assumptions (sales, 

expenditures, investments, changes in Working Capital) 

have been assessed in order to verify the appropriateness 

of budget information. For selected CGUs, we have 

reconciled the planning assumptions with external market 

data. Cashflows used in the group’s impairment tests 

have been assessed regarding the methodology as well 

as clerical accuracy. Assumptions related to discount 

factors as well as growth rates have been assessed as 

well.

We involved EY valuation specialists in our audit proce

dures related to the assessment of the appropriateness 

of valuation models, cash flow assumptions as well as 

input factors.

We also evaluated whether disclosures regarding 

impairment testing in the notes to the consolidated 

financial statements were made in line with IAS 36.

In order to assess the appropriateness of the valuation 

of inventories in the affected companies in the North 

American region, we have performed, among others, the 

following audit procedures:

 

-	� Review of the Group‘s accounting policy regarding 

the recognition of impairment losses on inventories as 

well as the compliance with this policy by the Group 

companies in the North American region

-	� Detailed Audit procedures based on sampling and 

analytical procedures to verify the plausibility of the 

impairment losses recognized and the recoverability 

of inventories as of December 31, 2020

-	� Discussions with management regarding their 

assessment of the recoverability of inventories.

We also evaluated whether disclosures on impairment 

testing in the notes for property, plant and equipment 

were made in line with IAS 36 and for inventories in line 

with IAS 2.

OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. 

The other information comprises the information included 

in the annual report 2020 (apart from the consolidated 

financial statements, the management report for the 

Group and the auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements 

does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, to consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 

audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 

that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have 

nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND OF THE 
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS 

as adopted by the EU, and the additional requirements 

under Section 245a Austrian Company Code UGB for 

them to present a true and fair view of the assets, the 

financial position and the financial performance of the 

Group and for such internal controls as management 

determines are necessary to enable the preparation 

of consolidated financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, 

management is responsible for assessing the Group’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 

as applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the Group or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 

do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the 

Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the consolidated financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 

high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with the EU regulation 

and in accordance with Austrian Standards on Auditing, 

which require the application of ISA, always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the EU regulation 

and in accordance with Austrian Standards on Auditing, 

which require the application of ISA, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional 

scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

•	� identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 

of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 

the override of internal control.

•	� obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 

to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the Group’s internal control.

•	� evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management.

•	� conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 

of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 

in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 

up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 

continue as a going concern.
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•	� evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 

of the consolidated financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 

statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	� obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 

the financial information of the entities or business 

activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 

consolidated financial statements. We are responsible 

for the direction, supervision and performance of the 

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our 

audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement 

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them 

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 

be thought to bear on our independence, and where 

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit 

Committee, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 

current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless 

law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 

determine that a matter should not be communicated in 

our report because the adverse consequences of doing 

so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

COMMENTS ON THE MANAGEMENT  
REPORT FOR THE GROUP

Pursuant to Austrian Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles, the management report for the Group is to be 

audited as to whether it is consistent with the consolidated 

financial statements and as to whether the management 

report for the Group was prepared in accordance with 

the applicable legal regulations.

Regarding the consolidated non-financial statement 

contained in the group management report, it is our 

responsibility to examine whether it has been prepared, 

to read it and to evaluate whether it is, based on our 

knowledge obtained in the audit, materially inconsistent 

with the consolidated financial statements or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the 

management report for the Group in accordance with 

Austrian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Austrian 

Standards on Auditing for the audit of the management 

report for the Group.

Opinion
In our opinion, the management report for the Group was 

prepared in accordance with the valid legal requirements, 

comprising the details in accordance with Section 243a 

Austrian Company Code UGB, and is consistent with the 

consolidated financial statements.
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Statement

Based on the findings during the audit of the 

consolidated financial statements and due to the thus 

obtained understanding concerning the Group and 

its circumstances no material misstatements in the 

management report for the Group came to our attention.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
ARTICLE 10 EU REGULATION

We were elected as auditor by the ordinary general 

meeting at April 23, 2020. We were appointed by the 

Supervisory Board on April 23, 2020. We are auditors 

without cease since 1996.

We confirm that the audit opinion in the Section „Report 

on the consolidated financial statements“ is consistent 

with the additional report to the audit committee referred 

to in article 11 of the EU regulation.

We declare that no prohibited non-audit services (article 

5 par. 1 of the EU regulation) were provided by us and 

that we remained independent of the audited company 

in conducting the audit.

RESPONSIBLE AUSTRIAN CERTIFIED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTANT

The engagement partner is Mag. Markus Jandl, Certified 

Public Accountant.

Vienna, March 2, 2021

Ernst & Young 
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft m.b.H.

	 Mag. Markus Jandl mp	 ppa Dipl.-Ing. (FH) Mag. Manfred Siebert mp 

	 Wirtschaftsprüfer / Certified Public Accountant	 Wirtschaftsprüfer / Certified Public Accountant

* �This report is a translation of the original report in German, which is solely valid. Publication or sharing with third parties of the consolidated financial statements together 
with our auditor‘s opinion is only allowed if the consolidated financial statements and the management report for the Group are identical with the German audited 
version. This audit opinion is only applicable to the German and complete consolidated financial statements with the management report for the Group. Section 281 
paragraph 2 UGB (Austrian Company Code) applies to alternated versions.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD 
ON THE 2020 FINANCIAL YEAR___
In the 2020 financial year, the Supervisory Board 

performed its duties assigned to it by law and 

the Company‘s articles of association. It held five 

meetings and received regular oral and written reports 

about the business development and situation of 

the Company and its Group companies from the 

Executive Board, including information about relevant 

business occurrences. The 2020 financial year was 

dominated by the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The discussions between the Supervisory Board and 

Executive Board focused, along with the strategic 

orientation and development of the Group, in particular 

in view of measures in connection with climate change 

and other environmental, social, and governance 

(ESG)-related topics, also on the challenges that have 

been coming along with COVID-19, as well as on key 

business transactions and measures.

The 2020 Annual General Meeting was held virtually in 

conformity with the COVID-19-legislation. At this Annual 

General Meeting, Dr. Karl Schleinzer retired from the 

Supervisory Board of the Company. We thank Dr. Karl 

Schleinzer for his long-term activity for the Company 

and wish him all the best for the future.

The Executive Board remained unchanged in the 2020 

financial year.

The Supervisory Board has two committees: The Audit 

Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee. 

In the 2020 financial year, the Remuneration 

Committee convened once to deal with the principles 

of remuneration of the members of the Supervisory 

Board in accordance with Section 98a Austrian Stock 

Corporation Act (AktG) and principles of remuneration 

of the members of the Executive Board in accordance 

with Section 78a Austrian Stock Corporation Act (AktG), 

which have been presented to the 2020 Annual General 

Meeting and approved by it.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in the 2020 

financial year to discuss the financial reports of the 

Company (consolidated and annual financial statements) 

and performed the duties assigned to it according to 

Section 92 (4a) Austrian Stock Corporation Act (AktG) 

(remuneration policy). Representatives of Ernst & Young 

Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft m.b.H as auditor of 

the annual financial statements and the consolidated 

financial statements of the Company attended the 

meeting of the Audit Committee which dealt with the 

preparation of the adoption of the annual financial 

statements and consolidated financial statements 2019 

and their audit and reported about the auditing process. 

In addition, the Audit Committee held a meeting for in-

depth discussion about the planning of the audits of 

the annual financial statements and the consolidated 

financial statements 2020 with representatives of Ernst 

& Young Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft m.b.H. The 

Supervisory Board was informed regularly about the 

results of the meetings of the Audit Committee.

The annual financial statements as of 31 December 

2020 and the management report were audited by 

Ernst & Young Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft m.b.H. 

The audit revealed that the annual financial statements 

comply with the legal requirements, give a true and fair 

view of the Company‘s assets and financial position 

as of 31 December 2020 and of the earnings situation 

of the Company for the financial year from 1 January 

2020 to 31 December 2020, and that the management 



199

	 report of the supervisory board on the 2020 financial year	 �   

report has been prepared according to applicable legal 

requirements, contains accurate information pursuant 

to Section 243a Austrian Commercial Code (UGB) 

and is consistent with the annual financial statements, 

and that the Corporate Governance Report required 

according to Section 243c Austrian Commercial Code 

(UGB) was prepared by analogy with the provisions of 

Section 251 (3) Austrian Commercial Code (UGB).

The consolidated financial statements as of 31 

December 2020, which have been prepared in 

accordance with the International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) to be applied in the EU, and the 

consolidated management report were also audited by 

Ernst & Young Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft m.b.H. 

The audit revealed that the consolidated financial 

statements comply with the legal requirements, give a 

true and fair view of the Group‘s assets and financial 

position as of 31 December 2020 and of the earnings 

situation and the cashflows of the Group for the 2020 

financial year, and that the consolidated management 

report has been prepared in accordance with applicable 

legal requirements, contains accurate information 

pursuant to Section 243a Austrian Commercial 

Code (UGB) and is consistent with the consolidated 

financial statements, and that the consolidated non-

financial statement required pursuant to Section 267a 

Austrian Commercial Code (UGB) and the consolidated 

Corporate Governance Report required according to 

Section 267b Austrian Commercial Code (UGB) were 

prepared by analogy with the provisions of Section 251 

(3) Austrian Commercial Code (UGB).

As the audits did not give rise to any objections, the 

auditors issued unqualified audit opinions both for the 

annual financial statements 2020 and the consolidated 

financial statements 2020.

At its meeting on 16 March 2021, and after dis

cussion and review by the Audit Committee, the 

Supervisory Board reviewed the submitted annual 

financial statements as of 31 December 2020 and 

the management report as well as the consolidated 

financial statements as of 31 December 2020 and 

the consolidated management report including the 

non-financial statement pursuant to Section 267a 

Austrian Commercial Code (UGB) and the Corporate 

Governance Report. The final results of these reviews 

did not give rise to any objections. At its meeting on 

16 March 2021 the Supervisory Board approved the 

annual financial statements as of 31 December 2020, 

which are therefore adopted pursuant to Section 96 

(4) Austrian Stock Corporation Act (AktG). In addition, 

the Supervisory Board consented at that meeting 

to the proposal submitted by the Executive Board 

regarding appropriation of the net profit reported in 

the annual financial statements of the Company as of 

31 December 2020. 

The Supervisory Board extends its thanks and 

appreciation to the members of the Executive Board 

and all employees of the SBO Group for their strong 

commitment and performance in the 2020 financial 

year and thanks the shareholders and customers of the 

SBO Group for their trust.

Ternitz, 16 March 2021

 

The Supervisory Board

Norbert Zimmermann
(Chairman)
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Schoeller-Bleckmann Oilfield Equipment AG 
Hauptstrasse 2, A-2630 Ternitz, Austria 
phone: (+43) 2630 315 100, Fax: (+43) 2630 315 501 
e-mail: info@sbo.co.at

BICO Drilling Tools Inc. 
1604 Greens Road, Houston, TX 77032, USA 
phone: (+1) 281 590 6966, fax: (+1) 281 590 2280 
e-mail: sales@bicodrilling.com

BICO Drilling Tools FZE 
Plot Number B060E02, P.O. Box 30576, 
Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai, UAE 
phone: (+971) 4 880 8218, fax: (+971) 4 883 4022 
e-mail: sales@bicodrilling.com

BICO Faster Drilling Tools Inc. 
2107 – 7th Street, Nisku, AB T9E 7YE, Canada 
phone: (+1) 780 955 5969, fax: (+1) 780 955 4707 
e-mail: sales@bicodrilling.com

DSI FZE 
Round About 10, Road 911, P.O. Box 30576,  
Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai, U.A.E. 
phone: (+971) 4 880 8228, Fax: (+971) 4 880 8218 
e-mail: enquiries@dsi-pbl.com

DSI PBL de Mexico, S.A. De C.V. 
Paseo de las Flores 277 
Jardines de Villahermosa 
C.P. 86027 Villahermosa 
Tabasco, Mexico 
phone: (+52) 993 357 5767 
e-mail: mexico@dsi-pbl.com

Schoeller Bleckmann Saudi LLC 
Office 408, Al Salah Tower 
Prince Faisal Bin Fahad Street, 
Al Bandriyah, Al Khobar PO BOX 21553 
Kingdom od Saudi Arabia 
phone: (+966) 138 348 814, fax: (+966) 138 353 401 
e-mail: enquiries@dsi-pbl.com

Knust-Godwin LLC 
586 Stonegate Drive, Katy, Tx 77494, USA 
phone: (+1) 713 785 1060, fax: (+1) 713 953 4580 
e-mail: postmaster@kgsbo.com

Knust-SBD Pte Ltd. 
14 Gul Street 3 
Singapore 629268 
phone: (+65) 6861 4302, fax: (+65) 6861 4556  
e-mail: sales@knust-sbd.com.sg
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The WellBoss Company, Inc. 
6285 76th Avenue SE 
Calgary, AB, T2C 5L9, Canada 
phone: (+1) 403 723 2262 
e-mail: info@thewellboss.com

The WellBoss Company, LLC 
12450 Cutten Road, 
Houston, TX 77066, USA 
phone: (+1) 281 820 2545, fax: (+1) 281 809 7123 
e-mail: info@thewellboss.com

Schoeller-Bleckmann Darron (Aberdeen) Ltd. 
Howemoss Terrace, Kirkhill Industrial Estate, Dyce, 
Aberdeen AB21 0GR, UK 
phone: (+44) 1224 799 600, fax: (+44) 1224 770 156 
e-mail: sales@sbdl.co.uk

Schoeller-Bleckmann Darron Ltd. 
Industrial Zone, Panel XI, Noyabrsk, 629800, Yamala 
Nenetsky Autonomous Region, Russian Federation 
phone: (+7) 3496 342602, (+7) 3496 342604,  
fax: (+7) 3496 342603 
e-mail: office@sbdr.ru; sbdr_operation@sbdr.ru

Schoeller Bleckmann do Brasil Ltda. 
Rua Anézio Teixeira de Mendonça, 88 / 96. 
27932-105 - Imboassica - Macaé - RJ - Brasil 
phone: (+55) 223737 0260  
e-mail: comercial@sbbrasil.com

Schoeller-Bleckmann Energy Services L.L.C. 
712 St. Etienne Road, P.O. Box 492, Broussard,  
LA 70518-0492, USA 
phone: (+1) 337 837 2030, fax: (+1) 337 837 4460 
e-mail: info@sbesllc.com

Schoeller-Bleckmann  
Oilfield Equipment Middle East FZE 
Roundabout 10, Road 911, P.O. Box 61327,  
Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai, U.A.E. 
phone: (+971) 4883 4228, fax: (+971) 4883 4022 
e-mail: info@sboe.ae

Schoeller-Bleckmann  
Oilfield Equipment Vietnam Co., Ltd. 
Lot B2.6, D3 Street, Dong An 2 Industrial Park,  
Thu Dau Mot City, 
Binh Duong Province, Vietnam 
phone: (+84) 274 3 589 590,  
fax: (+84) 274 3 589 595 
e-mail: info@sboevn.com

Schoeller-Bleckmann  
Oilfield Technology GmbH 
Hauptstrasse 2, A-2630 Ternitz, Austria 
phone: (+43) 2630 315 410, fax: (+43) 2630 315 401 
e-mail: sbot@sbo.co.at

Schoeller-Bleckmann Sales Co. L.L.C. 
11525 Brittmoore Park Drive,  
Houston, TX 77041, USA 
phone: (+1) 713 856 6500, fax: (+1) 713 856 6565 
e-mail: info@sbsaleshouston.com
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GLOSSARY___

CIRCULATION TOOL / PBL TOOL

The circulation tool – also called PBL tool – is a special 

tool used for pumping plugging material through lateral 

openings in the drillstring to the annulus to mitigate 

mud circulation losses in permeable rock formations 

(or crevices). Furthermore, it is also applied for hole 

cleaning operations. The use of such specialty tools 

creates considerable time and cost benefits for 

operators, as drilling can be continued with only a short 

interruption.

COMPOSITE

Composite refers to composite materials, such as 

fiberglass.

DRILLING MOTOR

A drilling motor is used to drive the drillstring forward 

below the surface. In the drilling motor, hydraulic energy 

is converted into rotational energy, enabling rotational 

movement of the drill bit. In state-of-the-art drilling 

projects, rotation is additionally supported by the top 

drive unit installed on the drilling rig. Today‘s rotary 

steerable tools ensure that loss of torque in directional 

drilling operations is reduced to a minimum.

DRILLING A WELL

Drilling is part of oil or gas exploration projects. Drilling 

the exploration well is an essential step of the initial 

phase of exploration. Appraisal and production wells 

follow after successful completion of the exploration 

well. Once drilling operations have been concluded, 

the well is completed so as to be prepared for oil and 

gas production.

DECLINE RATE

Decline rate refers to the reduction in oil output from 

a well over time. Depending on the reservoir and well, 

production rates from a well are declining with increasing 

intensity, unless specific additional investments are 

made to counteract the decline. 

DIRECT METAL LASER SINTERING (DMLS)

Direct Metal Laser Sintering (DMLS) is an additive 

manufacturing technology to produce customized, 

highly complex metal parts in a short time by applying 

high-precision 3D metal printing.
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DIRECTIONAL DRILLING 

Directional drilling is applied to drive the drillstring 

forward both in vertical and horizontal direction in order 

to increase the recovery factor of a reservoir, while 

keeping the number of mother boreholes at a stable low 

level. Often, vertical wellbores are used as starting point 

for drilling horizontal and deviated wells to reduce the 

environmental footprint of operations. Direction drilling 

is common in shale reservoirs because it allows drillers 

to perforate the most productive zones. Directional 

drilling is applied in more than 90 % of all exploration 

projects in North America. 

DRILLED BUT UNCOMPLETED WELLS (DUCs)

Drilled but uncompleted well refers to a well after the 

end of the drilling process where initial completion has 

not been performed yet. For statistical reasons it is 

assumed that drilling is finished 20 days after it was 

started. Initial completion is considered performed after 

the well has been stimulated for the first time.

EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION

Exploration refers to the development of a reservoir, 

and production to the extraction of oil and gas from a 

reservoir. Exploration and production are both part of 

what is called upstream.

FRAC PLUG

Frac plug refers to the special equipment used in Plug-

n-Perf completion operations serving to isolate various 

zones to build up pressure for hydraulic fracturing. 

State-of-the-art versions are composite frac plugs, all 

composite frac plugs and dissolvable frac plugs. Today, 

sometimes more than 100 frac plugs are used per well, 

depending on the design and well.

HORIZONTAL DRILLING

Horizontal drilling refers to a well where the departure 

from the vertical exceeds 80 degrees. It should be 

noted that some wells are designed such that, after 

reaching the 90-degree horizontal, the trajectory 

actually points upward again. Horizontal drilling is part 

of directional drilling.
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LOGGING WHILE DRILLING (LWD)

Logging While Drilling refers to the collection of 

geophysical parameters (and thus the discovery of 

reservoirs) in real time while the drillstring is driven 

forward.

MEASUREMENT WHILE DRILLING (MWD)

Measurement While Drilling refers to the measuring of 

inclination and direction of the drillstring while it is driven 

forward.

PAD DRILLING

Pad drilling refers to drilling several horizontal wells from 

only one (mobile) drilling rig. Pad means the site where 

the wellheads of several boreholes are located. Pad 

drilling saves high costs required for disassembling 

and reassembling a rig at another site and reduces the 

overall surface footprint. Operators can drill five to ten 

wells from one pad.

PLUG-N-PERF

Plug-n-Perf, beside Sliding Sleeve refers to one of the 

dominating well completion technologies. In this type 

of completion, zones are isolated by a frac plug so as 

to build up pressure to hydraulically perforate the rock. 

RESERVOIR 

Reservoir refers to a subsurface body of rock having 

sufficient porosity and permeability to store and 

transmit fluids. Sedimentary rocks are the most 

common reservoir rocks, as they have more porosity 

then igneous and metamorphic rocks and form under 

pressure conditions at which hydrocarbons can be 

preserved.

RIG

Rig refers to the structure used for actual drilling.

RIG COUNT

Rig count refers to the number of active drilling rigs for 

the exploration of oil and gas reservoirs in the individual 

regions.

SLIDING SLEEVE

Sliding Sleeve, besides Plug-n-Perf, refers to one of 

the dominating well completion technologies. In the 

process, pressure is built up for hydraulic fracturing 

of the formation inside the production string and 

discharged into the formation by opening the Sliding 

Sleeve.
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SMART DART

The innovative Smart Dart system combines both, the 

benefits of the Plug-n-Perf and an efficient Sliding Sleeve 

solution for well completion. The Smart Dart opens any 

amount of sleeves following an individually adjustable, 

mechanical system. Thereby, multiple sleeves can be 

opened with a single dart in a frac phase.

SPENDING FOR EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION

Spending for exploration and production (E&P 

spending) refers to the aggregate expenditure for oil 

and gas exploration. E&P spending forecasts serve 

as an indicator for the development of the oilfield 

service industry worldwide or for the respective region 

indicated.

THRU TUBING

Thru tubing refers to milling out performed by the drilling 

motor inside the production string, such as milling 

out frac plugs. Other than in downhole (or open hole) 

drilling, it does not imply drilling through the rock and is 

therefore much gentler to conduct.

VERTICAL DRILLING 

Vertical drilling refers to wells with a departure from the 

vertical of up to 80 degrees. In many cases, vertical 

drilling today is performed using directional drilling.

WELL COMPLETION 

Well completion refers to the process step in which the 

well is prepared for oil or gas production once drilling 

operations have been concluded.

For further explanations on terms used in the oil and gas industry please refer to the glossary of SBO on  

www.sbo.at.
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